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Preface

Accounting Trends & Techniques —2006, Sixtieth Edition (the current edition), is a compilation of data
obtained by a survey of 600 annual reports to stockholders undertaken for the purpose of analyzing the
accounting information disclosed in such reports. The annual reports surveyed were those of selected
industrial, merchandising, technology, and service companies for fiscal periods ending between February
25, 2005 and February 3, 2006.

Significant accounting trends, as revealed by a comparison of current survey findings with those
of prior years, are highlighted in numerous comparative tabulations throughout this publication. These
tables show trends in such diverse accounting matters as financial statement format and terminology
and the accounting treatment of transactions and events reflected in the financial statements.

Accounting techniques are illustrated by excerpts from the annual reports of the survey companies.
References (in the form of a listing of company reference numbers—see the following paragraph) to
additional illustrations of an accounting technique may be requested from the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants by contacting Robert Durak, Director, at:

Harborside Financial Center
201 Plaza Three, Jersey City, NJ 07311-3881
Telephone: (201) 938-3065
Fax: (201) 521-5427
E-mail: rdurak@aicpa.org

Each of the 600 survey companies included in the current edition has been assigned a company
reference number which is used for reference in the discussion of pertinent information. Companies
not included from the prior edition were eliminated because of a business combination with another
company or a delisting by the SEC. The identification numbers of the eliminated companies have not
been reused. Over the years, company reference numbers 601 through 1148 have been assigned to the
replacement companies. In the current edition, company reference numbers 1149 through 1178 have
been assigned to additional replacement companies. The 600 companies in the current edition are listed
in the Appendix of 600 Companies both alphabetically and by company reference number.

We would appreciate your feedback! We hope the additions described above are informative and
useful. However, we urge you to give us your comments regarding the content of this publication,
suggested improvements for future editions, and any other feedback. Please direct your comments
to Robert Durak at the above address or phone numbers. All comments will be considered and kept
strictly confidential.

Robert Durak, CPA, Director—Accounting & Auditing Publications
AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Order/technical information:

Accounting Trends & Techniques: (201) 938-3491
AICPA Technical Hotline: (888) 777-7077, option 5
AICPA Member Satisfaction (order department): (888) 777-7077, option 1
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COMPANIES SELECTED FOR SURVEY

1.01 This section is concerned with general information
about the 600 companies selected for the survey and with
certain accounting information usually disclosed in notes ac-
companying the basic financial statements.

1.02 All 600 companies included in the survey are regis-
tered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
Many of the survey companies have securities traded on one
of the major stock exchanges—81% on the New York and
2% on the American. The remaining 17% were traded on
“over-the-counter” exchanges.

1.03 Each year, companies are selected from the latest
Fortune 1000 listing to replace those companies that were
deleted from the survey (see the Appendix of 600 Companies
for a comprehensive listing of the 600 companies as well as
those that were added and removed in this edition). Compa-
nies are deleted from the survey when they have either been
acquired, have become privately held (and are, therefore, no
longer registered with the SEC), or have ceased operations.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

Section 1: General

1.04
TABLE 1-1: INDUSTRY CLASSIFICATIONS

2005 2004
Advertising, marketing..........cc.oevneerrecenereriieeeneeen. 2 2
Aerospace ........ovureerns . 17 17
ADPATEL......cvirirecrrirerecrsii s 13 15
Beverages..........coicrnisneneeninns 10 10
Building materials, glass. 8 8
Chemicals.........c.cconererenirnennnee 27 27
Computer and data services... 20 17
Computer peripherals.......cc.oviernnsinnerseeneees 7 8
Computer SOMWArE...........c..evmreereeeecemmnrasesesnesannns 11 9
Computers, office equipment.......... " 1
Diversified outsourcing services..... 1 10
Electronics, electrical equipment.... . 43 42
Engineering, construction............c...cvceuu.... 14 12
Entertainment..........cc.ocemiiieesiecnnssnescneeneeans 10 7
FOOd.....oeerrerereeeerrirens 23 23
Food and drug stores.. 17 16
FOOd SEIVICES......oovmrrrererermrriecernrssecenans 10 9
Forest and paper products.............coccueeeuvecermniens 19 20
FUMNIUPE ..o seeseeseessssneees 11 10
General merchandisers... 9 10
Health care........coooo.... 1 10
Homebuilders.............. 7 4
Hotels, casinos, resorts.......... 6 7
Industrial and farm equipment............cc.cvuuervecmnns 36 36
Medical products and equipment...........c.ccoueeennunene 12 13
Metal products..........cccourerreermmncnneens s 18 19
MetalS........c.covrmrereencireinnnes cerverereeenes 15 15
Mining, crude-oil production.............cccoveceneinineninns 12 14
MISCEIlANEOUS........co.cverereseeerarriraaeeeeiseieseneresiseene 5 6
Motor vehicles and parts..... 14 15
Network communications.... 6 7
Petroleum refining............ccreermnmereneeeermsneessecennens 14 14
PharmacutiCals..........c.ceeeerummunnmnunececsverneesnssieneenee 10 10
Publishing, printing...........ccocvemeerereecesnunscsscenns 21 21
Rubber and plastic products..........ccccovueeeccriinnan 7 7
Scientific, photographic, and control equipment... 19 19
SeMICONAUCOTS. ...cv.cvuevececeeieesaereree e seeecesenees 14 14
S08pS, COSMEHCS......eoersirererernersestesrerssarsiens 7 7
Specialty retailers.........coueoreseresesses 18 18
Telecommunications.............ceeerceiseecmeesissisnnnns 12 16
Temporary help...... 5 5
TEXHIES vt 4 4
TODACCO. ...ttt e 5 6
Toys, Sporting goods.........cocc.wurmremrresiisnesneneenn, 2 2
Transportation equipment...........ccoovvvenrnmminie 4 4
Trucking, truck 1€asing..........cccoeimrinriiecccnirnnnnnn, 5 5
Waste management............coomervicreecrnnisnnnnnns 3 3
WHOIESAIETS.........coovrcreeereerer e srececeisasnaneseeenenns 15 16
Total Companies 600 600
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1.05 Table 1-2 indicates the relative size of the survey com-
panies as measured by dollar amount of revenue.

1.06
TABLE 1-2: REVENUE OF SURVEY COMPANIES
2005 2004 2003 2002

Less than $100,000,000.............. 21 16 23 23
Between $100,000,000 and

$500,000,000........c.cocreverrrveas 34 40 41 44
Between $500,000,000 and

$1,000,000,000.........ccrevveveenn 35 43 52 55
Between $1,000,000,000 and

$2,000,000,000.........cocererennen. 103 105 110 128
Between $2,000,000,000 and

$3,000,000,000..........coc0cvvreme.. 80 82 77 64
Between $3,000,000,000 and

$4,000,000,000.........ccocoon.e... 44 42 42 46
Between $4,000,000,000 and

$5,000,000,000.......c..c0c0oernene. 34 39 43 40
Between $5,000,000,000 and

$10,000,000,000..................... 99 93 91 84
More than $10,000,000,000........ 150 140 121 116
Total Companies...........ccoueuenrn. 600 600 600 600

INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 14a-3
TO BE INCLUDED IN ANNUAL REPORTS
TO STOCKHOLDERS

1.07 Rule 14a-3, Information to Be Furnished to Security
Holders, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, states that
annual reports furnished to stockholders in connection with
the annual meetings of stockholders should include audited
financial statements —balance sheets as of the 2 most recent
fiscal years, and statements of income and of cash flows for
each of the 3 most recent fiscal years. Rule 14a-3 also states
that the following information, as specified in Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) Regulation S-K, Standard In-
structions for Filing Forms Under the Securities Act of 1933,
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Energy Policy and Con-
servation Act of 1975, should be included in the annual report
to stockholders:

. Selected quarterly financial data.

. Disagreements with accountants on accounting and

financial disclosure.

Summary of selected financial data for last 5 years.

. Description of business activities.

. Segment information.

. Listing of company directors and executive officers.

. Market price of Company’s common stock for each
quarterly period within the two most recent fiscal
years.

. Management’s discussion and analysis of financial
condition and results of operations.

9. Quantitative and qualitative disclosures about mar-

ket risk.

NOUTAWL P

o)
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1.08 Examples of items 1, 3, 8, and 9 follow. Included with
the item 8 examples are excerpts from management’s dis-
cussion and analysis as to forward looking information, lig-
uidity and capital resources, new accounting standards, and
critical accounting policies.

1.09 Examples of segment information disclosures are pre-
sented under “Segment Information” in this section.
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Quarterly Financial Data
1.10
BELLSOUTH CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars are in millions, except per share amounts)

Note S: Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

In the following summary of quarterly financial information, all
adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of each period
were included.

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Total
2004
Operating revenues $4,976 $5,083 $5,095 $5,146 $20,300
Operating income 1,358 1,442 1,401 1,088 5,289
Provision for income taxes 623 516 465 188 1,792
Income from continuing operations 1,150 939 852 453 3,394
Net income $1,599 $ 996 $ 799 $1,364 $ 4,758
Basic eamings per share®®:
Income from continuing operations $ 063 $ 0.51 $ 047 $025 $ 1.85
Net income $ 087 $ 054 $ 044 $ 074 $ 260
Diluted earnings per share®:
Income from continuing operations $ 0.63 $ 051 $ 046 $ 025 $ 185
Net income $ 087 $ 054 $ 044 $074 $ 259
Total comprehensive income $1,713 $1,007 $ 789 $1,677 $ 5,186
2005
Operating revenues $5,091 $5,142 $5,072 $5,242 $20,547
Operating income 1,352 1,350 a7 997 4,670
Provision for income taxes 354 394 392 249 1,389
Income from continuing operations 683 795 817 618 2,913
Net income $1,064 $ 795 $ 817 $ 618 $ 3,204
Basic earnings per share®®:
Income from continuing operations $ 037 $ 043 $ 045 $ 0.34 $ 1.60
Net income $ 0.58 $ 043 $ 045 $ 0.34 $ 181
Diluted eamings per share®@:
Income from continuing operations $ 037 $ 043 $ 044 $ 0.34 $ 159
Net income $ 058 $ 043 $ 044 $ 034 $ 1.80
Total comprehensive income $1,141 $ 805 $ 859 $ 632 $ 3437

@ Due to rounding, the sum of quarterly earnings per share amounts may not agree to year-to-date earnings per share amounts.

The quarters shown were affected by the items listed below.
These items are specific to net income.

2004

¢ First quarter included a gain related to the sale of our
operations in Denmark, which increased net income by
$295, or $0.16 per share.

¢ First quarter also included a charge for a settlement
with the South Carolina Consumer Advocate, which de-
creased net income by $33, or 0.02 per share.

* We recorded losses related to service repairs in the
wireline business due to Hurricanes Charley, Frances,
Ivan and Jeanne, which reduced net income by $23, or
$0.01 per share in the third quarter and by $77, or $0.04
per share, in the fourth quarter.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

Our equity in earnings from Cingular Wireless included
losses related to wireless merger integration costs for
the Cingular Wireless/AT&T Wireless merger, a fair value
adjustment for the sale of Cingular Wireless Interac-
tive, and lease accounting adjustments, which reduced
our net income by $17, or $0.01 per share, in the third
quarter and by $92, or $0.05 per share in the fourth
quarter. In addition, our equity in earnings from Cingular
Wireless included amortization of intangibles, primarily
customer lists, that were acquired as part of Cingular’s
merger with AT&T Wireless. These charges reduced our
net income by $80, or $0.04 per share, in the fourth
quarter.
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Fourth quarter also included charges related to sever-
ance and lease termination payments, which reduced
net income by $18, or $0.01 per share.

We recorded income (losses) related to our Discontin-
ued Operations which impacted net income by $449,
or $0.24 per share, in the first quarter; by $57, or $0.03
per share, in the second quarter; by $(53), or $(0.03) per
share, in the third quarter; and by $911, or $0.50 per
share, in the fourth quarter.

First quarter included income of $381, or $0.21 per
share, related to our Discontinued Operations.

We recorded charges related to the early extinguish-
ment of debt, which reduced net income by $14, or
$0.01 per share, in the first quarter and $12, or $0.01
per share, in the second quarter.

Third quarter included a gain related to the sale of our
operations in Israel, which increased net income by
$228, or $0.12 per share.

We recorded losses related to asset impairments and
service repairs in the wireline business due to Hurricane
Katrina, which reduced net income by $177, or $0.10
per share, in the third quarter and by $145, or $0.08 per
share, in the fourth quarter.

Our equity in earnings from Cingular Wireless included
losses related to wireless merger integration costs for
the Cingular Wireless/AT&T Wireless merger and hurri-
cane costs, which reduced our net income by $21, or
$0.01 per share, in the first quarter, $42, or $0.02 per
share, in the second quarter, $79, or $0.04 per share,
in the third quarter, and $82, or $0.05 per share, in the
fourth quarter. In addition, our equity in earnings from
Cingular Wireless included amortization of intangibles,
primarily customer lists, that were acquired as part of
Cingular’s merger with AT&T Wireless. These charges
reduced our net income by $100, or $0.05 per share, in
the first quarter, $91, or $0.05 per share, in the second
quarter, $94, or $0.05 per share, in the third quarter, and
$90, or $0.05 per share, in the fourth quarter.

Fourth quarter included a deferred revenue adjustment
that corrected a system coding error that was resulting
in underreporting revenues in prior periods. The adjust-
ment increased net income by $29, or $0.02 per share.
Fourth quarter also included charges related to sever-
ance, which reduced net income by $59, or $0.03 per
share.
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1.11
EASTMAN CHEMICAL COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. Quarterly Sales and Earnings Data—Unaudited

(Dollars in millions, except per First Second Third  Fourth
share amounts) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2005
Sales $1,762  $1,752 $1,816 $1,729
Gross profit 399 374 352 279
Asset impairment and

restructuring charges 9 10 4 10
Net earnings 162 206 123 66
Net eamings per share(")

Basic $204 $25 $151 § 081

Diluted $200 $251 $150 $ 081
2004
Sales $1,597  $1676 $1,649 $1,658
Gross profit 235 270 257 216
Asset impairment and

restructuring charges 67 79 42 18
Net earnings (loss) (6) 84 38 54
Net earings (loss) per share("

Basic $(0.07) $108 $050 $ 069

Diluted $(0.07) $1.07 $049 $ 068

() Each quarter is calculated as a discrete period; the sum of the
four quarters may not equal the calculated full-year amount.
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Selected Information for Five Years
1.12
HARRIS CORPORATION (JUN)

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes our selected historical fi-
nancial information for each of the last five fiscal years.
All amounts presented have been restated on a continuing

operations basis. Discontinued operations are more fully dis-
cussed in Note 2: Discontinued Operations in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements. The selected financial in-
formation shown below has been derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements, which for data presented
for fiscal years 2005 and 2004 are included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. This table should be read in
conjunction with our other financial information, including
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condi-
tion and Results of Operations” and the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial State-
ments, included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form
10-K.

(In millions, except per share amounts) 20059 2004@ 2003%) 20024 20016
Revenue from product sales and services $3,000.6 $2,518.6 $2,060.6 $1,835.8 $1,871.0
Cost of product sales and services 2,176.8 1,888.3 1,543.2 1,353.4 1,384.8
Interest expense 245 249 26.7 3438
Income from continuing operations before income taxes 180.0 108.2 131.7 78.8
Income taxes 543 379 4.7 53.3
Income from continuing operations 125.7 70.3 87.0 255
Discontinued operations net of income taxes 71 (10.8) 4.4) 4.1)
Net income 132.8 59.5 82.6 21.4
Average shares outstanding (diluted) 140.3 138.0 132.7 133.9
Per share data (diluted):
Income from continuing operations 92 53 .66 19
Discontinued operations .05 (-08) (.04) (-03)
Net income 97 45 62 16
Cash dividends .20 .16 10 10
Net working capital 994.9 847.1 694.8 7218
Net plant and equipment 283.3 281.6 262.1 2722
Long-term debt 4014 4016 283.0 384.4
Total assets 2,457 4 2,225.8 2,075.3 1,855.4 1,951.9
Shareholders’ equity 1,439.1 1,278.8 1,183.2 1,149.9 1,115.2
Book value per share 9.64 8.91 8.67 8.47

() Results for fiscal 2005 include a $7.0 million after-tax ($.05 per diluted share) charge related to a write-off of in-process research and
development costs and impairment losses on capitalized software development costs associated with our acquisition of Encoda, a $6.4
million after-tax ($.05 per diluted share) write-down of our passive investments due to other-than-temporary impairments, a $5.7 million
after-tax ($.04 per diluted share) gain related to our execution of a patent cross-licensing agreement and a $3.5 million after-tax ($.02 per

diluted share) income tax benefit from the settlement of a tax audit.
Results for fiscal 2004 include an $8.1 million after-tax ($.06 per diluted share) charge related to cost-reduction actions taken in our Microwave

@

Communications and Broadcast Communications segments, a $5.8 million after-tax ($.04 per diluted share) loss and a $4.4 million after-tax
($.03 per diluted share) gain in two unrelated patent infringement cases, a $3.4 million after-tax ($.02 per diluted share) write-down of our
interest in Teltronics, Inc., a $3.0 million after-tax ($.02 per diluted share) gain from the reversal of a previously established reserve for the
consolidation of our Broadcast Communications segment’s European operations and a $3.3 million after-tax ($.02 per diluted share) income

@ tax benefit from the settlement of a foreign tax audit.

«

Resullts for fiscal 2003 include a $12.2 million after-tax ($.09 per diluted share) gain on the sale of our minority interest in our LiveTV, LLC

joint venture, a $5.6 million after-tax ($.04 per diluted share) write-down of inventory related to our exit from unprofitable products and the
shutdown of our Brazilian manufacturing plant in our Microwave Communications segment, an $8.1 million after-tax ($.06 per diluted share)
charge related to our disposal of assets remaining from our telecom switch business and a $10.8 million after-tax ($.08 per diluted share)
charge for cost-reduction measures taken in our Microwave Communications and Broadcast Communications segments as well as our

“ corporate headquarters.

=

Results for fiscal 2002 include a $10.4 million after-tax ($.08 per diluted share) charge in our Microwave Communications segment related to

cost-reduction actions taken in its international operations and collection losses related to the bankruptcy of a customer in Latin America,
a $6.8 million after-tax ($.05 per diluted share) gain on the sale of our minority interest in our GE Harris Energy Control Systems, LLC joint
venture and a $6.6 million after-tax ($.05 per diluted share) write-down of our investment interest in Terion, Inc.

5

Resullts for fiscal 2001 include a $73.5 million after-tax ($.55 per diluted share) charge for the write-off of purchased in-process research and

development, a $21.7 million after-tax ($.16 per diluted share) gain on the sale of our minority interest in our GE-Harris Railway Electronics,
LLC joint venture and a $13.1 million after-tax ($.10 per diluted share) write-down of marketable securities.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques
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1.13
JONES APPAREL GROUP, INC. (DEC)

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following financial information is qualified by reference
to, and should be read in conjunction with, our Gonsolidated
Financial Statements and Notes thereto and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations” contained elsewhere in this Report. The se-
lected consolidated financial information presented below is
derived from our audited Consolidated Financial Statements
for each of the five years in the period ended December
31, 2005. We completed our acquisitions of McNaughton,
Gloria Vanderbilt, l.e.i., Kasper, Maxwell and Barneys at var-
ious dates within the five-year period and, accordingly, the
results of their operations are included in our operating re-
sults from the respective dates of acquisition.

(All amounts in millions except net income per share data) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Income statement data
Net sales $5,014.6 $4,592.6 $4,339.1 $4,312.2 $4,073.8
Licensing income {net) 59.6 57.1 36.2 28.7 248
Total revenues 5,074.2 4,649.7 43753 43409 4,098.6
Cost of goods sold 3,243.8 2,944.4 2,738.6 2,657.0 2,570.4
Gross profit 1,830.4 1,705.3 1,636.7 1,683.9 1,528.2
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,333.2 1,176.9 1,056.9 1,093.3 1,004.1
Amortization of goodwill — — — — 442
Operating income 497.2 528.4 579.8 590.6 479.9
Interest income 1.1 19 35 46 45
Interest expense and financing costs 76.2 51.2 58.8 62.7 84.6
Equity in earnings of unconsolidated affiliates 3.2 3.8 25 1.0 —
Income before provision for income taxes 425.3 4829 527.0 533.5 399.8
Provision for income taxes 151.0 181.1 198.4 201.2 163.6
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle 2743 301.8 328.6 332.3 236.2
Cumulative effect of change in accounting for intangible assets, net of tax — — — 13.8 —
Net income $ 2743 $ 3018 $ 3286 $ 3185 $ 236.2
Per share data
Income per share before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle
Basic $ 233 $ 24 $ 258 $ 259 $ 1.92
Diluted $ 230 $ 239 $ 248 $ 246 $ 182
Net income per share
Basic $ 233 $ 24 $ 258 $ 248 $ 192
Diluted $ 230 $ 239 $ 248 $ 236 $ 182
Dividends paid per share $ 044 $ 036 $ 0.16 — —
Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic 118.0 123.6 127.3 128.2 123.2
Diluted 119.2 126.5 136.5 139.0 133.7
Balance sheet data
Working capital $ 4478 $ 6123 $ 8269 $ 890.9 $ 7628
Total assets 4577.8 4,550.8 4,187.7 3,852.6 3,373.5
Short-term debt and current portion of long-term debt and capital lease
obligations 357.3 203.2 180.8 6.3 7.7
Long-term debt, including capital lease obligations 789.8 1,016.6 835.1 978.1 976.6
Stockholders’ equity 2,666.4 2,653.9 2,537.8 2,303.5 1,905.4
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Resuits
of Operations

1.14
CONSTELLATION BRANDS, INC. (FEB)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS

Overview

The Company is a leading international producer and mar-
keter of beverage alcohol brands with a broad portfolio
across the wine, imported beer and spirits categories. The
Company has the largest wine business in the world and is
the largest multi-category supplier of beverage alcohol in the
United States; a leading producer and exporter of wine from
Australia and New Zealand; and both a major producer and
independent drinks wholesaler in the United Kingdom.

The Company reports its operating results in three seg-
ments: Constellation Wines (branded wine, and U.K. whole-
sale and other), Constellation Beers and Spirits (imported
beer and distilled spirits) and Corporate Operations and
Other. Amounts included in the Corporate Operations and
Other segment consist of general corporate administration
and finance expenses. These amounts include costs of ex-
ecutive management, corporate development, corporate fi-
nance, human resources, internal audit, investor relations, le-
gal and public relations. Any costs incurred at the corporate
office that are applicable to the segments are allocated to
the appropriate segment. The amounts included in the Cor-
porate Operations and Other segment are general costs that
are applicable to the consolidated group and are therefore
not allocated to the other reportable segments. All costs re-
ported within the Corporate Operations and Other segment
are not included in the chief operating decision maker’s eval-
uation of the operating income performance of the other op-
erating segments. The business segments reflect how the
Company’s operations are being managed, how operating
performance within the Company is being evaluated by se-
nior management and the structure of its internal financial
reporting. In addition, the Company excludes acquisition re-
lated integration costs, restructuring and related charges and
net unusual costs that affect comparability from its definition
of operating income for segment purposes.

The Company’s business strategy is to remain focused
across the beverage alcohol industry by offering a broad
range of products in each of the Company’s three major
categories: wine, imported beer and spirits. The Company
intends to keep its portfolio positioned for superior top-line
growth while maximizing the profitability of its brands. In ad-
dition, the Company seeks to increase its relative importance
to key customers in major markets by increasing its share of
their overall purchasing, which is increasingly important in a
consolidating industry. The Company’s strategy of breadth
across categories and geographies is designed to deliver
long-term profitable growth. This strategy allows the Com-
pany more investment choices, provides flexibility to address
changing market conditions and creates stronger routes-to-
market.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

Marketing, sales and distribution of the Company’s prod-
ucts, particularly the Constellation Wines segment'’s prod-
ucts, are managed on a geographic basis in order to fully
leverage leading market positions within each geographic
market. Market dynamics and consumer trends vary signif-
icantly across the Company’s three core geographic mar-
kets—the U.S., Europe (primarily the U.K.) and Australasia
(Australia/New Zealand). Within the U.S. market, the Com-
pany offers a wide range of beverage alcohol products across
the Constellation Wines segment and the Constellation Beers
and Spirits segment. In Europe, the Company leverages its
position as the largest wine supplier in the U.K. In addition,
the Company leverages its U.K. wholesale business as a
strategic route-to-market for its imported wine portfolio and
as a key supplier of a full range of beverage alcohol products
to large national accounts. Within Australasia, where con-
sumer trends favor domestic wine products, the Company
leverages its position as one of the largest wine producers in
Australia.

The Company remains committed to its long-term finan-
cial model of growing sales (both through acquisitions and
organically), expanding margins and increasing cash fiow to
achieve superior earnings per share growth and improve re-
turn on invested capital.

The environment for the Company’s products is fairly com-
petitive in each of the Company’s key geographic markets,
due, in part, to industry and retail consolidation. Competi-
tion in the U.S. beers and spirits markets is normally intense,
with domestic beer producers increasing brand spending in
an effort to gain market share.

Additionally, the supply of certain raw materials, particu-
larly grapes, as well as consumer demand, can affect the
overall competitive environment. Two years of lighter than
expected California grape harvests, combined with a reduc-
tion in wine grape acreage in California, has brought the U.S.
grape supply more into balance with demand. This has led to
an overall firming of the pricing of wine grape varietals from
California. In Australia, two years of record grape harvests
have contributed to an oversupply of certain red grape va-
rietals, which has led to an overall reduction in grape costs
for these varietals and greater pricing competition in the do-
mestic market.

In Fiscal 2005 (as defined below), the Company’s net sales
increased 15.1% over Fiscal 2004 (as defined below) pri-
marily from increases in branded wine net sales, the inclu-
sion of $84.5 million of net sales of products acquired in the
Robert Mondavi acquisition, increases in U.K. wholesale net
sales and imported beer net sales, the inclusion of an addi-
tional one month of net sales of products acquired in the
Hardy Acquisition (as defined below) and a favorable for-
eign currency impact. Operating income increased 16.5%
over the comparable prior year period primarily due to a re-
duction in acquisition-related integration costs, restructuring
and related charges and net unusual costs (see below un-
der Fiscal 2005 compared to Fiscal 2004 Operating Income
discussion), partially offset by increased selling and adver-
tising expenses, as the Company continues to invest behind
the imported beer portfolio and certain wine brands to drive
growth and broader distribution, and increased Corporate
general and administrative expenses. Lastly, as a result of
the above factors and lower interest expense for Fiscal 2005,
net income increased 25.4% over the comparable prior year
period.

ATT-SEC 1.14
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The following discussion and analysis summarizes the
significant factors affecting (i) consolidated results of op-
erations of the Company for the year ended February 28,
2005 (“Fiscal 2005”), compared to the year ended Febru-
ary 29, 2004 (“Fiscal 2004”), and Fiscal 2004 compared to
the year ended February 28, 2003 (“Fiscal 2003”), and (ji) fi-
nancial liquidity and capital resources for Fiscal 2005. This
discussion and analysis also identifies certain acquisition-
related integration costs, restructuring and related charges
and net unusual costs expected to affect consolidated results
of operations of the Company for the year ending Febru-
ary 28, 2006 (“Fiscal 2006”). This discussion and analysis
should be read in conjunction with the Company’s con-
solidated financial statements and notes thereto included
herein.

Common Stock Splits

On April 7, 2005, the Board of Directors of the Company
approved two-for-one stock splits of the Company’s Class
A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock, which were
distributed in the form of stock dividends on May 13, 2005,
to stockholders of record on April 29, 2005. Share and per
share amounts have been retroactively restated to give effect
to these common stock splits.

Acquisitions in Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004 and Equity
Method Investment

Acaquisition of Robert Mondavi

On December 22, 2004, the Company acquired all of the
outstanding capital stock of The Robert Mondavi Corpora-
tion (“Robert Mondavi”), a leading premium wine producer
based in Napa, California. In connection with the produc-
tion of its products, Robert Mondavi owns, operates and
has an interest in certain wineries and controls certain vine-
yards. Robert Mondavi produces, markets and sells pre-
mium, super-premium and fine California wines under the
Woodbridge by Robert Mondavi, Robert Mondavi Private Se-
lection and Robert Mondavi Winery brand names. Wood-
bridge and Robert Mondavi Private Selection are the lead-
ing premium and super-premium wine brands, respectively,
in the United States.

The acquisition of Robert Mondavi supports the Com-
pany’s strategy of strengthening the breadth of its portfolio
across price segments to capitalize on the overall growth
in the premium, super-premium and fine wine categories.
The Company believes that the acquired Robert Mondavi
brand names have strong brand recognition globally. The
vast majority of Robert Mondavi’s sales are generated in the
United States. The Company intends to leverage the Robert
Mondavi brands in the United States through its selling, mar-
keting and distribution infrastructure. The Company also in-
tends to further expand distribution for the Robert Mondavi
brands in Europe through its Constellation Europe infrastruc-
ture beginning in the first half of fiscal 2006.

The Company and Robert Mondavi have complementary
businesses that share a common growth orientation and op-
erating philosophy. The Robert Mondavi acquisition provides
the Company with a greater presence in the fine wine sec-
tor within the United States and the ability to capitalize on
the broader geographic distribution in strategic international
markets. The Robert Mondavi acquisition supports the Com-
pany’s strategy of growth and breadth across categories
and geographies, and strengthens its competitive position

ATT-SEC 1.14

in its core markets. In particular, the Company believes there
are growth opportunities for premium, super-premium and
fine wines in the United Kingdom, United States and other
wine markets. Total consideration paid in cash to the Robert
Mondavi shareholders was $1,030.7 million. Additionally, the
Company expects to incur direct acquisition costs of $11.2
million. The purchase price was financed with borrowings un-
der the Company’s 2004 Credit Agreement (as defined be-
low). In accordance with the purchase method of accounting,
the acquired net assets are recorded at fair value at the date
of acquisition. The purchase price was based primarily on
the estimated future operating results of Robert Mondavi, in-
cluding the factors described above, as well as an estimated
benefit from operating cost synergies.

The results of operations of the Robert Mondavi busi-
ness are reported in the Constellation Wines segment and
are included in the consolidated results of operations of the
Company from the date of acquisition. The acquisition of
Robert Mondavi is significant and the Company expects it
to have a material impact on the Company’s future results
of operations, financial position and cash flows. In particu-
lar, the Company expects its future results of operations to
be significantly impacted by, among other things, the flow
through of anticipated inventory step-up and adverse grape
cost, acquisition-related integration costs, restructuring and
related charges, and interest expense associated with the
2004 Credit Agreement (as defined below). Adverse grape
cost represents the amount of historical inventory cost on
Robert Mondavi’s balance sheet that exceeds the Company’s
estimated ongoing grape cost and is primarily due to the pur-
chase of grapes by Robert Mondavi prior to the acquisition
date at above-market prices as required under the terms of
their existing grape purchase contracts.

In connection with the Robert Mondavi acquisition and
Robert Mondavi’s previously disclosed intention to sell cer-
tain of its winery properties and related assets, and other
vineyard properties, the Company has classified certain as-
sets as held for sale as of February 28, 2005. The Company
expects to sell these assets in Fiscal 2006 for net proceeds
of approximately $150 million to $175 million. As of April 30,
2005, the Company has received net proceeds of $127.9 mil-
lion. No gain or loss has been or is expected to be recognized
upon the sale of these assets.

Acquisition of Hardy

On March 27, 2003, the Company acquired control of BRL
Hardy Limited, now known as Hardy Wine Company Lim-
ited (“Hardy”), and on April 9, 2003, the Company completed
its acquisition of all of Hardy’s outstanding capital stock. As
a result of the acquisition of Hardy, the Company also ac-
quired the remaining 50% ownership of Pacific Wine Part-
ners LLC (“PWP”), the joint venture the Company established
with Hardy in July 2001. The acquisition of Hardy along with
the remaining interest in PWP is referred to together as the
“Hardy Acquisition.” Through this acquisition, the Company
acquired one of Australia’s largest wine producers with in-
terests in wineries and vineyards in most of Australia’s major
wine regions as well as New Zealand and the United States.
Hardy has a comprehensive portfolio of wine products across
all price points with a strong focus on premium wine pro-
duction. Hardy’s wines are distributed worldwide through a
network of marketing and sales operations, with the majority
of sales generated in Australia, the United Kingdom and the
United States.
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Total consideration paid in cash and Class A Common
Stock to the Hardy shareholders was $1,137.4 million. Ad-
ditionally, the Company recorded direct acquisition costs of
$17.4 million. The acquisition date for accounting purposes
is March 27, 2003. The Company has recorded a $1.6 million
reduction in the purchase price to reflect imputed interest
between the accounting acquisition date and the final pay-
ment of consideration. This charge is included as interest
expense in the Consolidated Statement of Income for Fis-
cal 2004. The cash portion of the purchase price paid to
the Hardy shareholders and optionholders ($1,060.2 million)
was financed with $660.2 million of borrowings under the
Company’s then existing credit agreement and $400.0 mil-
lion of borrowings under the Company’s then existing bridge
loan agreement. Additionally, the Company issued 6,577,826
shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock, which
were valued at $77.2 million based on the simple average
of the closing market price of the Company’s Class A Com-
mon Stock beginning two days before and ending two days
after April 4, 2003, the day the Hardy shareholders elected
the form of consideration they wished to receive. The pur-
chase price was based primarily on a discounted cash flow
analysis that contemplated, among other things, the value
of a broader geographic distribution in strategic international
markets and a presence in the important Australian wine-
making regions. The Company and Hardy have complemen-
tary businesses that share a common growth orientation and
operating philosophy. The Hardy Acquisition supports the
Company’s strategy of growth and breadth across categories
and geographies, and strengthens its competitive position in
its core markets. The purchase price and resulting goodwill
were primarily based on the growth opportunities of the brand
portfolio of Hardy. In particular, the Company believes there
are growth opportunities for Australian wines in the United
Kingdom, United States and other wine markets. This ac-
quisition supports the Company’s strategy of driving long-
term growth and positions the Company to capitalize on the
growth opportunities in “new world” wine markets.

The results of operations of Hardy and PWP have been re-
ported in the Company’s Constellation Wines segment since
March 27, 2003. Accordingly, the Company’s results of op-
erations for Fiscal 2005 include the results of operations of
Hardy and PWP for the entire period, whereas the results of
operations for Fiscal 2004 only include the results of opera-
tions of Hardy and PWP from March 27, 2003, to the end of
Fiscal 2004.

Investment in Ruffino

On December 3, 2004, the Company purchased a 40% in-
terest in Ruffino S.r.l. (“Ruffino”), the well-known ltalian fine
wine company, for a preliminary purchase price of $86.1 mil-
lion. The purchase price is subject to final closing adjust-
ments which the Company does not expect to be material.
As of February 1, 2005, the Constellation Wines segment
began distributing Ruffino’s products in the United States.
The Company accounts for the investment under the equity
method; accordingly, the results of operations of Ruffino from
December 3, 2004, are included in the equity in earnings of
equity method investees line in the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Income.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

Results of Operations
Fiscal 2005 Compared to Fiscal 2004

Net Sales

The following table sets forth the net sales (in thousands of
dollars) by operating segment of the Company for Fiscal 2005
and Fiscal 2004.

% Increase/

Net sales 2005 2004  (Decrease)
Constellation Wines:

Branded wine $1,830,808  $1,549,750 18.1%

Wholesale and other 1,020,600 846,306 20.6%
Constellation Wines net

sales $2,851,408  $2,396,056 19.0%
Constellation Beers and

Spirits:

Imported beers $ 922947 § 862,637 7.0%

Spirits 313,283 284,551 10.1%
Constellation Beers and

Spirits net sales $1,236,230  $1,147,188 7.8%
Corporate operations and

other $ — 3 — N/A
Unusual gain $ — $ 9185 (100.0)%
Consolidated net sales $4,087,638  $3,552,429 15.1%

Net sales for Fiscal 2005 increased to $4,087.6 million from
$3,552.4 million for Fiscal 2004, an increase of $535.2 million,
or 15.1%. This increase resulted primarily from an increase in
branded wine net sales of $217.8 million (on a constant cur-
rency basis), including $84.2 million of net sales of branded
wines acquired in the Robert Mondavi acquisition and $45.7
million of net sales of branded wines acquired in the Hardy
Acquisition; an increase in U.K. wholesale net sales of $84.1
million (on a constant currency basis); and an increase in im-
ported beer net sales of $60.3 million. In addition, net sales
benefited from a favorable foreign currency impact of $155.5
million.

Constellation Wines

Net sales for Constellation Wines increased to $2,851.4 mil-
lion for Fiscal 2005 from $2,396.1 million in Fiscal 2004, an in-
crease of $455.4 million, or 19.0%. Branded wine net sales in-
creased $281.1 million. This increase resulted from increased
branded wine net sales in the U.S., Europe and Australasia
of $217.8 million (on a constant currency basis), including
$84.2 million of net sales of branded wines acquired in the
Robert Mondavi acquisition and an additional one month of
net sales of $45.7 million of branded wines acquired in the
Hardy Acquisition, completed in March 2003, and a favor-
able foreign currency impact of $63.3 million. The increases
in branded wine net sales in the U.S., Europe and Australasia
are primarily due to volume growth as the Company contin-
ues to benefit from increased distribution and greater con-
sumer demand for premium wines. Wholesale and other net
sales increased $174.3 million primarily due to growth in the
U.K. wholesale business of $84.1 million (on a constant cur-
rency basis) and a favorable foreign currency impact of $92.2
million. The net sales increase in the U.K. wholesale business
on a local currency basis is primarily due to the addition of
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new national accounts in the first quarter of fiscal 2005 and
increased sales in existing accounts during Fiscal 2005.

Constellation Beers and Spirits

Net sales for Constellation Beers and Spirits increased to
$1,236.2 million for Fiscal 2005 from $1,147.2 million for Fis-
cal 2004, an increase of $89.0 million, or 7.8%. This increase
resulted from a $60.3 million increase in imported beer net
sales and an increase in spirits net sales of $28.7 million. The
growth in imported beer sales is primarily due to a price in-
crease on the Company’s Mexican beer portfolio, which was
introduced in January 2004. The growth in spirits net sales
is attributable to increases in both the Company’s contract
production net sales as well as volume growth in branded
net sales.

Gross Profit

The Company’s gross profit increased to $1,140.6 million for
Fiscal 2005 from $975.8 million for Fiscal 2004, an increase
of $164.8 million, or 16.9%. The Constellation Wines seg-
ment’s gross profit increased $122.6 million primarily due to
the additional two months of sales of products acquired in
the Robert Mondavi acquisition, volume growth in the U.S.
branded wine net sales and a favorable foreign currency im-
pact. The Constellation Beers and Spirits segment’s gross
profit increased $30.6 million primarily due to the increase in
imported beer net sales and volume growth in the segment’s
spirits portfolio. In addition, net unusual costs, which consist
of certain costs that are excluded by management in their
evaluation of the results of each operating segment, were
lower by $11.6 million in Fiscal 2005 versus Fiscal 2004. This
decrease resulted from a $16.8 million writedown of com-
modity concentrate inventory in Fiscal 2004 in connection
with the Company’s decision to exit the commodity concen-
trate product line in the U.S. (see additional discussion under
“Restructuring and Related Charges” below) and reduced
flow through of inventory step-up associated with the Hardy
and Robert Mondavi acquisitions of $16.0 million, partially
offset by the relief from certain excise tax, duty and other
costs incurred in prior years of $11.5 million, which was rec-
ognized in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, and the flow
through of adverse grape cost associated with the Robert
Mondavi acquisition of $9.8 million in Fiscal 2005. Gross
profit as a percent of net sales increased to 27.9% for Fiscal
2005 from 27.5% for Fiscal 2004 primarily due to the lower
net unusual costs.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased to
$555.7 million for Fiscal 2005 from $457.3 million for Fiscal
2004, an increase of $98.4 million, or 21.5%. The Constel-
lation Wines segment’s selling, general and administrative
expenses increased $64.7 million primarily due to increased
selling and advertising expenses as the Company contin-
ues to invest behind specific wine brands to drive broader
distribution and additional selling, general and administra-
tive expenses from the addition of the Robert Mondavi busi-
ness. The Constellation Beers and Spirits segment’s selling,
general and administrative expenses increased $7.1 million
primarily due to increased imported beer and spirits sell-
ing expenses to support the growth across this segment’s
businesses. The Corporate Operations and Other segment’s
selling, general and administrative expenses increased $13.7
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million primarily due to increased general and administrative
expenses to support the Company’s growth and costs asso-
ciated with higher professional services fees, including costs
incurred in connection with compliance activities associated
with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Lastly, there was an
increase of $12.9 million of net unusual costs which consist
of certain items that are excluded by management in their
evaluation of the results of each operating segment. This in-
crease includes $31.7 million of financing costs recorded in
Fiscal 2005 related to (i) the Company’s redemption of its
Senior Subordinated Notes (as defined below) and (ii) the
Company’s new senior credit facility entered into in con-
nection with the Robert Mondavi acquisition as compared
to $11.6 million of financing costs recorded in Fiscal 2004
in connection with the Hardy Acquisition. Partially offsetting
the $20.1 million increase in financing costs were net gains
recorded in Fiscal 2005 on the sales of non-strategic assets
and the receipt of a payment associated with the termination
of a previously announced potential fine wine joint venture.
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent of
net sales increased to 13.6% for Fiscal 2005 as compared
to 12.9% for Fiscal 2004 primarily due to the growth in the
Corporate Operations and Other segment’s general and ad-
ministrative expenses and the increased net unusual costs
described above.

Restructuring and Related Charges

The Company recorded $7.6 million of restructuring and re-
lated charges for Fiscal 2005 associated with the restructur-
ing plans of the Constellation Wines segment. Restructuring
and related charges resulted from (i) the further realignment of
business operations as previously announced in Fiscal 2004,
(ii) the Company’s decision in Fiscal 2004 to exit the com-
modity concentrate product line in the U.S. (collectively, the
“Fiscal 2004 Plan”), and (jii) the Company’s decision to re-
structure and integrate the operations of Robert Mondavi (the
“Robert Mondavi Plan”). The Company is in the process of
refining the Robert Mondavi Plan which will be finalized dur-
ing Fiscal 2006. Restructuring and related charges included
$3.8 million of employee termination benefit costs (net of re-
versal of prior accruals of $0.2 million), $1.5 million of contract
termination costs, $1.0 million of facility consolidation and
relocation costs, and other related charges of $1.3 million.
The Company recorded $31.2 million of restructuring and re-
lated charges for Fiscal 2004 associated with the Fiscal 2004
Plan. In total, the Company recorded $48.0 million of costs
for Fiscal 2004 allocated between cost of product sold and
restructuring and related charges associated with the Fiscal
2004 Plan.

For Fiscal 2006, the Company expects to incur total re-
structuring and related charges of $4.9 million associated
with the restructuring plans of the Constellation Wines seg-
ment. These charges are expected to consist of $1.7 million
related to the further realignment of business operations in
the Constellation Wines segment and $3.2 million related to
the Robert Mondavi Plan.

Acquisition-Related Integration Costs

The Company recorded $9.4 million of acquisition-related in-
tegration costs for Fiscal 2005 associated with the Robert
Mondavi Plan. Acquisition-related integration costs included
$4.9 million of employee related costs and $4.5 million of fa-
cilities and other one-time costs. The Company expects to
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incur $14 million of acquisition-related integration costs for
Fiscal 2006. These charges are expected to consist of $5
million of employee related costs and $9 million of facilities
and other one-time costs.

Operating Income

The following table sets forth the operating income (loss)
(in thousands of dollars) by operating segment of the Com-
pany for Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004.

% Increase/

Operating income (loss) 2005 2004  (Decrease)
Constellation Wines $406,562  $348,132 16.8%
Constellation Beers and Spirits 276,109 252,533 9.3%
Corporate operations and other (55,980)  (41,717) 34.2%
Total reportable segments 626,691 558,948 12.1%
Acquisition-related integration

costs, restructuring and

related charges and net

unusual costs (58,795)  (71,591) (17.9)%
Consolidated operating income ~ $567,896  $487,357 16.5%

As aresult of the factors discussed above, consolidated op-
erating income increased to $567.9 million for Fiscal 2005
from $487.4 million for Fiscal 2004, an increase of $80.5 mil-
lion, or 16.5%. Acquisition-related integration costs, restruc-
turing and related charges and net unusual costs of $58.8 mil-
lion for Fiscal 2005 consist of certain costs that are excluded
by management in their evaluation of the results of each op-
erating segment. These costs represent financing costs as-
sociated with the redemption of the Company’s Senior Sub-
ordinated Notes and the Company’s new senior credit facility
entered into in connection with the Robert Mondavi acqui-
sition of $31.7 million, adverse grape cost and acquisition-
related integration costs associated with the Company’s ac-
quisition of Robert Mondavi of $9.8 million and $9.4 million,
respectively, restructuring and related charges of $7.6 million
in the wine segment associated with the Company’s realign-
ment of its business operations and the Robert Mondavi
acquisition, and the flow through of inventory step-up as-
sociated with the Hardy and Robert Mondavi acquisitions
of $6.4 million, partially offset by a net gain on the sale of
non-strategic assets of $3.1 million and a gain related to
the receipt of a payment associated with the termination of
a previously announced potential fine wine joint venture of
$3.0 million. Acquisition-related integration costs, restructur-
ing and related charges and net unusual costs of $71.6 million
for Fiscal 2004 represent the flow through of inventory step-
up and the amortization of deferred financing costs associ-
ated with the Hardy Acquisition of $22.5 million and $11.6
million, respectively, and costs associated with exiting the
commodity concentrate product line and the Company’s re-
alignment of its business operations in the wine segment,
including the write-down of commodity concentrate inven-
tory of $16.8 million and restructuring and related charges
of $31.1 million, partially offset by the relief from certain ex-
cise taxes, duty and other costs incurred in prior years of
$10.4 million.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net of interest income of $2.3 million and
$3.6 million for Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004, respectively,
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decreased to $137.7 million for Fiscal 2005 from $144.7 mil-
lion for Fiscal 2004, a decrease of $7.0 miillion, or (4.8%). The
decrease resulted from lower average borrowing rates in Fis-
cal 2005 as well as lower average borrowings. The reduction
in average borrowing rates was attributed in part to the re-
placement of $200.0 million of higher fixed rate subordinated
note debt with lower variable rate revolver debt. The reduc-
tion in average borrowings resuited from the use of proceeds
from the Company’s equity offerings in July 2003 to pay down
debt incurred to partially finance the Hardy Acquisition com-
bined with on-going principal payments on long-term debt,
partially offset by additional borrowings in the fourth quarter
of fiscal 2005 to finance the Robert Mondavi acquisition.

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate remained the same at
36.0% for Fiscal 2005 and Fiscal 2004.

Net Income

As a result of the above factors, net income increased to
$276.5 million for Fiscal 2005 from $220.4 million for Fiscal
2004, an increase of $56.1 million, or 25.4%.

Fiscal 2004 Compared to Fiscal 2003

Net Sales
The following table sets forth the net sales (in thousands of

dollars) by operating segment of the Company for Fiscal 2004
and Fiscal 2003.

Net sales 2004 2003 % Increase
Constellation Wines:
Branded wines $1,549,750 $ 983,505 57.6%

846,306 689,794 22.7%
$2,396,056  $1,673,299 43.2%

Wholesale and other
Constellation Wines net sales
Constellation Beers and

Spirits:

Imported beers $ 862,637 $ 776,006 11.2%

Spirits 284,551 282,307 0.8%
Constellation Beers and

Spirits net sales $1,147,188  $1,058,313 8.4%
Corporate operations and

other $ — 3 — N/A
Unusual gain $ 918 $ — N/A

Consolidated net sales $3,552,429 $2,731,612 30.0%

Net sales for Fiscal 2004 increased to $3,552.4 million from
$2,731.6 million for Fiscal 2003, an increase of $820.8 million,
or 30.0%. This increase resulted primarily from the inclusion
of $571.4 million of net sales of products acquired in the
Hardy Acquisition as well as increases in imported beer sales
of $86.6 million and U.K. wholesale sales of $61.1 million (on
a constant currency basis). In addition, net sales benefited
from a favorable foreign currency impact of $74.6 million.

Constellation Wines

Net sales for the Constellation Wines segment for Fiscal 2004
increased to $2,396.1 miilion from $1,673.3 million for Fis-
cal 2003, an increase of $722.8 miillion, or 43.2%. Branded
wine net sales increased $566.2 million, primarily due to the
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addition of $548.4 million of net sales of branded wine ac-
quired in the Hardy Acquisition. Wholesale and other net
sales increased $156.5 million primarily due to a favorable
foreign currency impact of $63.1 million, growth in the U.K.
wholesale business of $61.1 million (on a constant currency
basis), and the addition of $23.0 million of net sales of bulk
wine acquired in the Hardy Acquisition. The net salesincrease
in the U.K. wholesale business on a local currency basis is
primarily due to the addition of new accounts and increased
average delivery sizes as the Company’s national accounts
business continues to grow.

Constellation Beers and Spirits

Net sales for the Constellation Beers and Spirits segment
for Fiscal 2004 increased to $1,147.2 million from $1,058.3
million for Fiscal 2003, an increase of $88.9 million, or 8.4%.
This increase resulted primarily from volume gains on the
Company’s imported beer portfolio, which increased $86.6
million. Spirits net sales remained relatively flat as increased
branded spirits sales were offset by lower bulk whisky and
contract production sales.

Gross Profit

The Company’s gross profit increased to $975.8 million for
Fiscal 2004 from $760.7 million for Fiscal 2003, an increase of
$215.1 million, or 28.3%. The Constellation Wines segment’s
gross profit increased $200.4 million primarily due to gross
profit on the sales of branded wine acquired in the Hardy
Acquisition. The Constellation Beers and Spirits segment’s
gross profit increased $42.5 million primarily due to the vol-
ume growth in the segment’s imported beer portfolio. These
increases were partially offset by $27.8 million of net unusual
costs which consist of certain items that are excluded by
management in their evaluation of the results of each oper-
ating segment. These net costs represent the flow through
of inventory step-up associated with the Hardy Acquisition
of $22.5 million and the write-down of concentrate inven-
tory recorded in connection with the Company’s decision to
exit the commodity concentrate product line of $16.8 million
(see additional discussion under “Restructuring and Related
Charges” below), partially offset by the relief from certain ex-
cise tax, duty and other costs incurred in prior years of $11.5
million, which was recognized in the fourth quarter of fis-
cal 2004. Gross profit as a percent of net sales decreased
slightly to 27.5% for Fiscal 2004 from 27.8% for Fiscal 2003
as an increase in gross profit margin from sales of higher mar-
gin wine brands acquired in the Hardy Acquisition was more
than offset by the net unusual costs discussed above and a
decrease in gross profit margin on the Constellation Wines’
U.K. wholesale business.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased to
$457.3 miillion for Fiscal 2004 from $351.0 million for Fiscal
2003, an increase of $106.3 million, or 30.3%. The Constel-
lation Wines segment’s selling, general and administrative
expenses increased $76.8 million primarily due to $67.7 mil-
lion of selling, general and administrative expenses from the
addition of the Hardy and PWP businesses. The Constella-
tion Beers and Spirits segment’s selling, general and admin-
istrative expenses increased $7.9 million due to increased
imported beer and spirits advertising and selling expenses
to support the growth across this segment’s businesses,
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partially offset by foreign currency gains. The Corporate
Operations and Other segment’s general and administrative
expenses increased $8.9 million primarily due to additional
deferred financing costs associated with the Company’s new
bank credit facility and increased general and administra-
tive expenses to support the Company’s growth. In addi-
tion, there was a $12.7 million increase in selling, general and
administrative expenses related to net unusual costs which
consist of certain items that are excluded by management
in their evaluation of the results of each operating segment.
These costs consist primarily of the additional amortized de-
ferred financing costs associated with the bridge financing
in connection with the Hardy Acquisition of $11.6 million.
Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percent
of net sales increased slightly to 12.9% for Fiscal 2004 as
compared to 12.8% for Fiscal 2003 due primarily to the net
unusual costs and the increased general and administrative
expenses within the Corporate Operations and Other seg-
ment as discussed above.

Restructuring and Related Charges

The Company recorded $31.2 million of restructuring and re-
lated charges for Fiscal 2004 associated with the restructur-
ing plan of the Constellation Wines segment. Restructuring
and related charges resulted from (i) $10.0 million related to
the realignment of business operations and (ii) $21.2 million
related to exiting the commodity concentrate product line in
the U.S. and selling its winery located in Escalon, California.
In total, the Company recorded $38.0 million of costs asso-
ciated with exiting the commodity concentrate product line
and selling its Escalon facility allocated between cost of prod-
uct sold ($16.8 million) and restructuring and related charges
($21.2 million).

The Company recorded $4.8 million of restructuring and re-
lated charges for Fiscal 2003 associated with an asset impair-
ment charge in connection with two of Constellation Wines
segment’s production facilities.

Operating Income

The following table sets forth the operating income (loss) (in
thousands of dollars) by operating segment of the Company
for Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal 2003.

Operating income (loss) 2004 2003 % Increase
Constellation Wines $348,132  $224,556 55.0%
Constellation Beers and Spirits 252,533 217,963 15.9%
Corporate operations and other (41,717)  (32,797) 27.2%
Total reportable segments 558,948 409,722 36.4%

Acquisition-related integration
costs, restructuring and related
charges and net unusual costs

Consolidated operating income

(71591)  (4764)  1402.7%
$487,357  $404,958 20.3%

As a result of the factors discussed above, consolidated op-
erating income increased to $487.4 million for Fiscal 2004
from $405.0 million for Fiscal 2003, an increase of $82.4 mil-
lion, or 20.3%. Acquisition-related integration costs, restruc-
turing and related charges and net unusual costs of $71.6
million and $4.8 million for Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal 2003, re-
spectively, consist of certain costs that are excluded by man-
agement in their evaluation of the results of each operating
segment. Fiscal 2004 costs represent the flow through of
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inventory step-up and the amortization of deferred financing
costs associated with the Hardy Acquisition of $22.5 million
and $11.6 million, respectively, and costs associated with ex-
iting the commodity concentrate product line and the Com-
pany’s realignment of its business operations in the wine seg-
ment, including the write-down of concentrate inventory of
$16.8 million and restructuring and related charges of $31.2
million, partially offset by the relief from certain excise taxes,
duty and other costs incurred in prior years of $10.4 million.
Fiscal 2003 costs represent restructuring and related charges
associated with the Company’s realignment of its business
operations in the wine segment.

Gain on Change in Fair Value of Derivative Instruments

The Company entered into a foreign currency collar contract
in February 2003 in connection with the Hardy Acquisition to
lock in a range for the cost of the acquisition in U.S. dollars.
As of February 28, 2003, this derivative instrument had a fair
value of $23.1 million. Under SFAS No. 133, a transaction
that involves a business combination is not eligible for hedge
accounting treatment. As such, the derivative was recorded
on the balance sheet at its fair value with the change in the fair
value recognized separately on the Company’s Consolidated
Statements of Income. During the first quarter of fiscal 2004,
the gain on change in fair value of the derivative instrument
of $1.2 million was recognized separately on the Company’s
Consolidated Statement of Income.

Equity in Earnings of Equity Method Investees

The Company’s equity in earnings of equity method investees
decreased to $0.5 million in Fiscal 2004 from $12.2 million
in Fiscal 2003 due to the acquisition of the remaining 50%
ownership of PWP in March 2003 resulting in consolidation
of PWP’s results of operations since the date of acquisition.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net of interest income of $3.6 million and
$0.8 million for Fiscal 2004 and Fiscal 2003, respectively,
increased to $144.7 million for Fiscal 2004 from $105.4 million
for Fiscal 2003, an increase of $39.3 million, or 37.3%. The
increase resulted from higher average borrowings due to the
financing of the Hardy Acquisition, partially offset by a lower
average borrowing rate, and $1.7 million of imputed interest
expense related to the Hardy Acquisition.

Provision for Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rate for Fiscal 2004 declined to
36.0% from 39.3% for Fiscal 2003 as a result of the Hardy
Acquisition, which significantly increased the allocation of
income to jurisdictions with lower income tax rates.

Net Income

As a result of the above factors, net income increased to
$220.4 million for Fiscal 2004 from $203.3 million for Fiscal
2003, an increase of $17.1 million, or 8.4%.

Financial Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

The Company’s principal use of cash in its operating activities
is for purchasing and carrying inventories and carrying sea-
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sonal accounts receivable. The Company’s primary source
of liquidity has historically been cash flow from operations,
except during annual grape harvests when the Company has
relied on short-term borrowings. In the United States, the an-
nual grape crush normally begins in August and runs through
October. In Australia, the annual grape crush normally begins
in February and runs through May. The Company generally
begins taking delivery of grapes at the beginning of the crush
season with payments for such grapes beginning to come
due one month later. The Company’s short-term borrowings
to support such purchases generally reach their highest lev-
els one to two months after the crush season has ended.
Historically, the Company has used cash flow from operating
activities to repay its short-term borrowings and fund capital
expenditures. The Company will continue to use its short-
term borrowings to support its working capital requirements.
The Company believes that cash provided by operating activ-
ities and its financing activities, primarily short-term borrow-
ings, will provide adequate resources to satisfy its working
capital, scheduled principal and interest payments on debt,
preferred stock dividend payment requirements, and antic-
ipated capital expenditure requirements for both its short-
term and long-term capital needs. The Company also has in
place an effective shelf registration statement covering the
potential sale of up to $750.0 million of debt securities, pre-
ferred stock, Class A Common Stock or any combination
thereof. As of May 16, 2005, the entire $750.0 million of ca-
pacity was available under the shelf registration statement.

Fiscal 2005 Cash Flows

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for Fiscal 2005 was
$320.7 million, which resulted from $276.5 million of net in-
come, plus $176.0 million of net non-cash items charged to
the Consolidated Statement of Income, less $131.7 million
representing the net change in the Company’s operating as-
sets and liabilities. The net non-cash items consisted primar-
ily of depreciation of property, plant and equipment, deferred
tax provision and the non-cash portion of loss on extinguish-
ment of debt. The net change in operating assets and liabili-
ties resulted primarily from increases in accounts receivable
and inventories. The increases in accounts receivable and
inventories are primarily as a result of the Company’s growth
in Fiscal 2005.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for Fiscal 2005 was
$1,222.9 million, which resulted primarily from net cash paid
of $1,052.5 million for purchases of businesses and $119.7
million of capital expenditures.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for Fiscal 2005
was $884.2 million resulting primarily from proceeds from is-
suance of long-term debt of $2,400.0 miilion, partially offset
by principal payments of long-term debt of $1,488.7 million.

Fiscal 2004 Cash Flows

Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities for Fiscal 2004
was $340.3 million, which resulted from $220.4 million of net
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income, plus $137.9 million of net non-cash items charged
to the Consolidated Statement of Income, less $18.0 mil-
lion representing the net change in the Company’s operating
assets and liabilities. The net non-cash items consisted pri-
marily of depreciation of property, plant and equipment, de-
ferred tax provision and amortization of intangible and other
assets. The net change in operating assets and liabilities re-
sulted primarily from an increase in accounts receivable and a
decrease in accounts payable, partially offset by a decrease
in inventories and an increase in accrued advertising and
promotion.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for Fiscal 2004 was
$1,158.5 million, which resulted primarily from net cash paid
of $1,069.5 million for the purchases of businesses and
$105.1 million of capital expenditures.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for Fiscal 2004 was
$745.2 million resulting primarily from proceeds of $1,600.0
million from issuance of long-term debt, including $1,060.2
million of long-term debt incurred to acquire Hardy, plus net
proceeds from the 2003 Equity Offerings (as defined below)
of $426.1 million. This amount was partially offset by principal
payments of long-term debt of $1,282.3 million.

During June 1998, the Company’s Board of Directors au-
thorized the repurchase of up to $100.0 million of its Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. The repurchase
of shares of common stock will be accomplished, from time
to time, in management’s discretion and depending upon
market conditions, through open market or privately nego-
tiated transactions. The Company may finance such repur-
chases through cash generated from operations or through
the senior credit facility. The repurchased shares will become
treasury shares. As of May 16, 2005, the Company had pur-
chased a total of 8,150,688 shares of Class A Common Stock
at an aggregate cost of $44.9 million, or at an average cost
of $5.51 per share. Of this total amount, no shares were re-
purchased during Fiscal 2005, Fiscal 2004 or Fiscal 2003.

Debt

Total debt outstanding as of February 28, 2005, amounted
to $3,289.3 million, an increase of $1,241.4 million from
February 29, 2004. The ratio of total debt to total capital-
ization increased to 54.2% as of February 28, 2005, from
46.3% as of February 29, 2004, primarily as a result of the
additional borrowings in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005 to
finance the acquisition of Robert Mondavi.

Senior Credit Facility

2004 Credit Agreement

In connection with the acquisition of Robert Mondavi, on
December 22, 2004, the Company and its U.S. subsidiaries
(excluding certain inactive subsidiaries), together with cer-
tain of its subsidiaries organized in foreign jurisdictions,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as a lender and administrative
agent, and certain other agents, lenders, and financial insti-
tutions entered into a new credit agreement (the “2004 Credit
Agreement”). The 2004 Credit Agreement provides for aggre-
gate credit facilities of $2.9 billion, consisting of a $600.0 mil-
lion tranche A term loan facility due in November 2010, a $1.8
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billion tranche B term loan facility due in November 2011,
and a $500.0 million revolving credit facility (including a sub-
facility for letters of credit of up to $60.0 million) which termi-
nates in December 2010. Proceeds of the 2004 Credit Agree-
ment were used to pay off the Company’s obligations under
its prior senior credit facility, to fund the cash consideration
payable in connection with its acquisition of Robert Mondavi,
and to pay certain obligations of Robert Mondavi, including
indebtedness outstanding under its bank facility and unse-
cured notes of $355.4 million. The Company uses the remain-
ing availability under the 2004 Credit Agreement to fund its
working capital needs on an as needed basis. In connection
with entering into the 2004 Credit Agreement, the Company
recorded a charge of $21.4 million in selling, general and ad-
ministrative expenses for the write-off of bank fees related to
the repayment of the Company’s prior senior credit facility in
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005.

The tranche A term loan facility and the tranche B term
loan facility were fully drawn on December 22, 2004. As
of February 28, 2005, the required principal repayments of
the tranche A term loan and the tranche B term loan are as
follows.

Tranche A Tranche B

(In thousands) Term Loan Term Loan Total
2006 $ 60000 $ — § 60,000
2007 67,500 17,168 84,668
2008 97,500 17,168 114,668
2009 120,000 17,168 137,168
2010 127,500 17,168 144,668
Thereafter 112,500 1,626,828 1,739,328

$585,000  $1,695,500  $2,280,500

The rate of interest payable, at the Company’s option, is a
function of LIBOR plus a margin, the federal funds rate plus
a margin, or the prime rate plus a margin. The margin is ad-
justable based upon the Company’s debt ratio (as defined in
the 2004 Credit Agreement) and, with respect to LIBOR bor-
rowings, ranges between 1.00% and 1.75%. As of February
28, 2005, the LIBOR margin for the revolving credit facility
and the tranche A term loan facility is 1.50%, while the LIBOR
margin on the tranche B term loan facility is 1.75%.

The Company’s obligations are guaranteed by its U.S. sub-
sidiaries (excluding certain inactive subsidiaries) and by cer-
tain of its foreign subsidiaries. These obligations are also
secured by a pledge of (i) 100% of the ownership interests
in most of the Company’s U.S. subsidiaries and (jii) 65% of
the voting capital stock of certain of the Company’s foreign
subsidiaries.

The Company and its subsidiaries’ are also subject to cus-
tomary lending covenants including those restricting addi-
tional liens, the incurrence of additional indebtedness (in-
cluding guarantees of indebtedness), the sale of assets, the
payment of dividends, transactions with affiliates, the dispo-
sition and acquisition of property and the making of certain
investments, in each case subject to numerous baskets, ex-
ceptions and thresholds. The financial covenants are limited
to maximum total debt and senior debt coverage ratios and
minimum fixed charges and interest coverage ratios. As of
February 28, 2005, the Company is in compliance with all of
its covenants under its 2004 Credit Agreement.

As of February 28, 2005, under the 2004 Credit Agree-
ment, the Company had outstanding tranche A term loans



Section 1: General 15

of $585.0 million bearing a weighted average interest rate
of 4.3%, tranche B term loans of $1,695.5 billion bearing
a weighted average interest rate of 4.4%; revolving loans
of $14.0 million bearing a weighted average interest rate of
3.8%, undrawn revolving letters of credit of $36.7 million, and
$449.3 million in revolving loans available to be drawn.

As of February 28, 2005, the Company had outstanding
five year interest rate swap agreements to minimize inter-
est rate volatility. The swap agreements fix LIBOR interest
rates on $1,200.0 million of the Company’s floating LIBOR
rate debt at an average rate of 4.1% over the five-year term.
Subsequent to February 28, 2005, the Company monetized
the value of the interest rate swaps by replacing them with
new swaps which extended the hedged period through fiscal
2010. The Company received $30.3 million in proceeds from
the unwinding of the original swaps. This amount will be re-
classified from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
ratably into earnings in the same period in which the original
hedged item is recorded in the Consolidated Statement of
Income. The effective interest rate remains the same under
the new swap structure at 4.1%.

Foreign Subsidiary Facilities

The Company has additional credit arrangements available
totaling $176.0 million as of February 28, 2005. These ar-
rangements support the financing needs of certain of the
Company’s foreign subsidiary operations. Interest rates and
other terms of these borrowings vary from country to coun-
try, depending on local market conditions. As of February
28, 2005, amounts outstanding under the subsidiary credit
arrangements were $34.0 million.

Senior Notes

As of February 28, 2005, the Company had outstanding
$200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8% % Senior
Notes due August 2006 (the “Senior Notes”). The Senior
Notes are currently redeemable, in whole or in part, at the
option of the Company.

As of February 28, 2005, the Company had outstanding
£1.0 million ($1.9 million) aggregate principal amount of 81, %
Series B Senior Notes due November 2009 (the “Sterling Se-
ries B Senior Notes”). In addition, as of February 28, 2005,

the Company had outstanding £154.0 million ($295.4 million,
net of $0.5 million unamortized discount) aggregate principal
amount of 8,% Series C Senior Notes due November 2009
(the “Sterling Series C Senior Notes”). The Sterling Series B
Senior Notes and Sterling Series C Senior Notes are currently
redeemable, in whole or in part, at the option of the Company.
Also, as of February 28, 2005, the Company had outstand-
ing $200.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8% Senior
Notes due February 2008 (the “February 2001 Senior Notes”).
The February 2001 Senior Notes are currently redeemable,
in whole or in part, at the option of the Company.

Senior Subordinated Notes

On March 4, 1999, the Company issued $200.0 million ag-
gregate principal amount of 8%, % Senior Subordinated Notes
due March 2009 (“Senior Subordinated Notes”). The Senior
Subordinated Notes were redeemable at the option of the
Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or after March
1, 2004. On February 10, 2004, the Company issued a No-
tice of Redemption for its Senior Subordinated Notes. On
March 11, 2004, the Senior Subordinated Notes were re-
deemed with proceeds from the revolving credit facility under
the Company’s then existing senior credit facility at 104.25%
of par plus accrued interest. During Fiscal 2005, in connec-
tion with this redemption, the Company recorded a charge of
$10.3 million in selling, general and administrative expenses
for the call premium and the remaining unamortized financ-
ing fees associated with the original issuance of the Senior
Subordinated Notes.

As of February 28, 2005, the Company had outstanding
$250.0 million aggregate principal amount of 81,% Senior
Subordinated Notes due January 2012 (the “January 2002
Senior Subordinated Notes”). The January 2002 Senior Sub-
ordinated Notes are redeemable at the option of the Com-
pany, in whole or in part, at any time on or after January 15,
2007.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table sets forth information about the Com-
pany’s long-term contractual obligations outstanding at
February 28, 2005. It brings together data for easy refer-
ence from the consolidated balance sheet and from individual
notes to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Payments Due by Period Less Than After
(In thousands) Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
Contractual obligations

Notes payable to banks $ 16475 $ 16,475 — — —
Long-term debt (excluding unamortized discount) 3,273,258 68,094 619,746 594,249 1,991,169
Operating leases 408,221 52,852 91,094 63,060 201,115
Other long term liabilities 358,316 88,410 111,926 59,367 98.613
Unconditional purchase obligations(" 2,755,008 470,788 731,604 501,588 1,051,118
Total contractual obligations $6,811,368 $696,719  $1,554,370  $1,218,264  $3,342,015

() Total unconditional purchase obligations consist of $27.2 million for contracts to purchase various spirits over the next eight fiscal years.
$2,499.7 million for contracts to purchase grapes over the next ten fiscal years, $132.1 million for contracts to purchase bulk wine over
the next seven fiscal years, $80.0 million for processing contracts over the next ten fiscal years, and $16.0 million for sweetener purchase

contracts over the next two fiscal years.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques
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Equity Offerings

During July 2003, the Company completed a public offering
of 19,600,000 shares of its Class A Common Stock resulting
in net proceeds to the Company, after deducting underwrit-
ing discounts and expenses, of $261.2 million. In addition,
the Company also completed a public offering of 170,500
shares of its 5.75% Series A Mandatory Convertible Pre-
ferred Stock (“Preferred Stock”) resulting in net proceeds to
the Company, after deducting underwriting discounts and ex-
penses, of $164.9 million. The Class A Common Stock offer-
ing and the Preferred Stock offering are referred to together
as the “2003 Equity Offerings.” The majority of the net pro-
ceeds from the 2003 Equity Offerings were used to repay the
Company’s then existing bridge loans that were incurred to
partially finance the Hardy Acquisition. The remaining pro-
ceeds were used to repay term loan borrowings under the
Company’s then existing senior credit facility.

Capital Expenditures

During Fiscal 2005, the Company incurred $119.7 million for
capital expenditures. The Company plans to spend approxi-
mately $140 million for capital expenditures in Fiscal 2006. In
addition, the Company continues to consider the purchase,
lease and development of vineyards and may incur additional
expenditures for vineyards if opportunities become available.
Management reviews the capital expenditure program peri-
odically and modifies it as required to meet current business
needs.

Effects of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Company’s results of operations and financial condition
have not been significantly affected by inflation and chang-
ing prices. The Company has been able, subject to normal
competitive conditions, to pass along rising costs through
increased selling prices. There can be no assurances, how-
ever, that the Company will continue to be able to pass along
rising costs through increased selling prices.

Critical Accounting Policies

The Company’s significant accounting policies are more fully
described in Note 1 to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements located in this Annual Report. However, certain
of the Company’s accounting policies are particularly impor-
tant to the portrayal of the Company’s financial position and
results of operations and require the application of signifi-
cant judgment by the Company’s management; as a result
they are subject to an inherent degree of uncertainty. In ap-
plying those policies, the Company’s management uses its
judgment to determine the appropriate assumptions to be
used in the determination of certain estimates. Those esti-
mates are based on the Company’s historical experience, the
Company’s observance of trends in the industry, information
provided by the Company’s customers and information avail-
able from other outside sources, as appropriate. On an ongo-
ing basis, the Company reviews its estimates to ensure that
they appropriately reflect changes in the Company’s busi-
ness. The Company’s critical accounting policies include:

Accounting for Promotional Activities

Sales reflect reductions attributable to consideration given to
customers in various customer incentive programs, including
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pricing discounts on single transactions, volume discounts,
promotional and advertising allowances, coupons, and re-
bates. Certain customer incentive programs require manage-
ment to estimate the cost of those programs. The accrued
liability for these programs is determined through analysis of
programs offered, historical trends, expectations regarding
customer and consumer participation, sales and payment
trends, and experience with payment patterns associated
with similar programs that had been previously offered. If
assumptions included in the Company’s estimates were to
change or market conditions were to change, then material
incremental reductions to revenue could be required, which
would have a material adverse impact on the Company’s fi-
nancial statements. Promotional costs were $390.9 million,
$336.4 million and $231.6 million for Fiscal 2005, Fiscal 2004
and Fiscal 2003, respectively.

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market, cost
being determined on the first-in, first-out method. The Com-
pany assesses the valuation of its inventories and reduces
the carrying value of those inventories that are obsolete or
in excess of the Company’s forecasted usage to their esti-
mated net realizable value. The Company estimates the net
realizable value of such inventories based on analyses and
assumptions including, but not limited to, historical usage,
future demand and market requirements. Reductions to the
carrying value of inventories are recorded in cost of goods
sold. If the future demand for the Company’s products is less
favorable than the Company’s forecasts, then the value of
the inventories may be required to be reduced, which could
result in material additional expense to the Company and
have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

Accounting for Business Combinations

The acquisition of businesses is an important element of the
Company’s strategy. Under the purchase method, the Com-
pany is required to record the net assets acquired at the esti-
mated fair value at the date of acquisition. The determination
of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the Company’s financial statements. For exam-
ple, the Company’s acquisitions typically result in goodwill
and other intangible assets; the value and estimated life of
those assets may affect the amount of future period amorti-
zation expense for intangible assets with finite lives as well
as possible impairment charges that may be incurred.

Impairment of Goodwill and Intangible Assets
with Indefinite Lives

Intangible assets with indefinite lives consist primarily of
trademarks as well as agency relationships. The Company
is required to analyze its goodwill and other intangible as-
sets with indefinite lives for impairment on an annual basis
as well as when events and circumstances indicate that an
impairment may have occurred. Certain factors that may oc-
cur and indicate that an impairment exists include, but are
not limited to, operating resuits that are lower than expected
and adverse industry or market economic trends. The impair-
ment testing requires management to estimate the fair value
of the assets or reporting unit and record an impairment loss
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for the excess of the carrying value over the fair value. The
estimate of fair value of the assets is generally determined on
the basis of discounted future cash flows. The estimate of fair
value of the reporting unit is generally determined on the ba-
sis of discounted future cash flows supplemented by the mar-
ket approach. In estimating the fair value, management must
make assumptions and projections regarding such items as
future cash flows, future revenues, future earnings and other
factors. The assumptions used in the estimate of fair value
are generally consistent with the past performance of each
reporting unit and other intangible assets and are also con-
sistent with the projections and assumptions that are used
in current operating plans. Such assumptions are subject to
change as a result of changing economic and competitive
conditions. If these estimates or their related assumptions
change in the future, the Company may be required to record
an impairment loss for these assets. The recording of any re-
sulting impairment loss could have a material adverse impact
on the Company’s financial statements.

Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In November 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 151 (“SFAS No. 151”), “Inventory
Costs—an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4.” SFAS
No. 1561 amends the guidance in Accounting Research Bul-
letin No. 43 (“ARB No. 43”), “Restatement and Revision of
Accounting Research Bulletins,” Chapter 4, “Inventory Pric-
ing,” to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle
facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted mate-
rial (spoilage). SFAS No. 151 requires that those items be
recognized as current period charges. In addition, SFAS
No. 151 requires that allocation of fixed production over-
heads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal ca-
pacity of the production facilities. The Company is required to
adopt SFAS No. 151 for fiscal years beginning March 1, 2006.
The Company is currently assessing the financial impact of
SFAS No. 151 on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Finan-
cial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004) (“SFAS
No. 123(R)”), “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123(R) re-
places Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(“SFAS No. 123”), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion,” and supersedes Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 25 (“APB Opinion No. 25”), “Acounting for Stock Issued
to Employees.” SFAS No. 123(R) requires the cost resulting
from all share-based payment transactions be recognized in
the financial statements. In addition, SFAS No. 123(R) estab-
lishes fair value as the measurement objective in account-
ing for share-based payment arrangements and requires all
entities to apply a grant date fair-value-based measurement
method in accounting for share-based payment transactions.
SFAS No. 123(R) also amends Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standards No. 95 (“SFAS No. 95”). “Statement of
Cash Flows,” to require that excess tax benefits be reported
as a financing cash inflow rather than as a reduction of taxes
paid. SFAS No. 123(R) applies to all awards granted, mod-
ified, repurchased, or cancelled after the required effective
date (see below). In addition SFAS No. 123(R) requires entities
that used the fair-value-based method for either recognition
or disclosure under SFAS No. 123 to apply SFAS No. 123(R)
using a modified version of prospective application. This ap-
plication requires compensation cost to be recognized on or
after the required effective date for the portion of outstand-
ing awards for which the requisite service has not yet been
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rendered based on the grant date fair value of those awards
as calculated under SFAS No. 123 for either recognition or
pro forma disclosures. For periods before the required ef-
fective date, those entities may elect to apply a modified
version of retrospective application under which financial
statements for prior periods are adjusted on a basis con-
sistent with the pro forma disclosures required for those pe-
riods by SFAS No. 123. In March 2005, the SEC staff issued
Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB No. 107”), “Share
Based Payment,” to express the views of the staff regarding
the interaction between SFAS No. 123(R) and certain SEC
rules and regulations and to provide the staff’s views regard-
ing the valuation of share-based payment arrangements for
public companies. The Company is required to adopt SFAS
No. 123(R) for interim periods beginning March 1, 2006. The
Company is currently assessing the financial impact of SFAS
No. 123(R) on its consolidated financial statements and will
take into consideration the additional guidance provided by
SAB No. 107 in connection with the Company’s adoption of
SFAS No. 123(R).

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Finan-
cial Accounting Standards No. 153 (“SFAS No. 153”), “Ex-
changes of Nonmonetary Assets—an amendment of APB
Opinion No. 29.” SFAS No. 153 amends Accounting Princi-
ples Board Opinion No. 29 (“APB No. 29”), “Accounting for
Nonmonetary Transactions,” to eliminate the exception from
fair value measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of simi-
lar productive assets and replace it with a general exception
from fair value measurement for exchanges that do not have
commercial substance. SFAS No. 153 specifies that a non-
monetary exchange has commercial substance if the future
cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly
as aresult of the exchange. The Company is required to adopt
SFAS No. 153 for fiscal years beginning March 1, 2006. The
Company is currently assessing the financial impact of SFAS
No. 153 on its consolidated financial statements.

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act
(“AJCA”) was signed into law. The AJCA includes a spe-
cial one-time 85% dividends received deduction for cer-
tain foreign earnings that are repatriated. In December 2004,
the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. FAS 109-2 (“FSP
FAS 109-2"), “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the
Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American
Jobs Creation Act of 2004.” FSP FAS 109-2 provides ac-
counting and disclosure guidance for this repatriation provi-
sion. Although FSP FAS 109-2 is effective immediately, the
Company is currently assessing the impact of guidance is-
sued by the Treasury Department and the Internal Revenue
Service on May 10, 2005, as well as the relevance of ad-
ditional guidance expected to be issued. The Company ex-
pects to complete its evaluation of the effects of the repatri-
ation provision within a reasonable period of time following
the publication of the additional guidance.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 47
(“FIN No. 477), “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement
Obligations—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143.”
FIN No. 47 clarifies the term conditional asset retirement obli-
gation as used in FASB Statement No. 143, “Accounting for
Asset Retirement Obligations.” A conditional asset retirement
obligation is an unconditional legal obligation to perform an
asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method
of settlement are conditional on a future event that may or
may not be within the control of the entity. Therefore, an en-
tity is required to recognize a liability for the fair value of a
conditional asset retirement obligation if the fair value of the
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liability can be reasonably estimated. FIN No. 47 is effective
for the Company no later than the end of the year ending
February 28, 2006. The Company is currently assessing the
financial impact of FIN No. 47 on its consolidated financial
statements.

Cautionary Information Regarding
Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report contains “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934. These forward-looking statements are subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are be-
yond the Company’s control, that could cause actual re-
sults to differ materially from those set forth in, or implied
by, such forward-looking statements. All statements other
than statements of historical facts included in this Annual
Report, including the statements under “Management’s Dis-
cussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” regarding the Company’s business strategy, fu-
ture financial position, prospects, plans and objectives of
management, as well as information concerning expected
actions of third parties are forward-looking statements. When
used in this Annual Report, the words “anticipate,” “intend,”
“expect,” and similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking
statements contain such identifying words. All forward-
looking statements speak only as of the date of this Annual
Report. The Company undertakes no obligation to update
or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a re-
sult of new information, future events or otherwise. Although
the Company believes that the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statements are reasonable, it can give no
assurance that such expectations will prove to be correct.
In addition to the risks and uncertainties of ordinary busi-
ness operations, important factors that could cause actual
results to differ materially from those set forth in, or implied,
by the Company’s forward-looking statements contained in
this Annual Report are as follows:

e The Company’s indebtedness could have a material ad-
verse effect on its financial health.

e The Company’s acquisition and joint venture strategies
may not be successful.

e Competition could have a material adverse effect on the
Company'’s business.

¢ An increase in excise taxes or government regulations
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
business.

e The Company relies on the performance of wholesale
distributors, major retailers and chains for the success
of its business.

e The Company’s business could be adversely affected
by a decline in the consumption of products the Com-
pany sells.

¢ The Company generally purchases raw materials un-
der short-term supply contracts, and the Company is
subject to substantial price fluctuations for grapes and
grape-related materials, and the Company has a limited
group of suppliers of glass bottles.

e The Company’s operations subject it to risks relating
to currency rate fluctuations, interest rate fluctuations
and geopolitical uncertainty which could have a mate-
rial adverse effect on the Company’s business.
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e The Company has a material amount of goodwill, and
if the Company is required to write-down goodwill, it
would reduce the Company’s net income, which in turn
could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
results of operations.

¢ The termination or non-renewal of the Company’s im-
ported beer distribution agreements could have a ma-
terial adverse effect on the Company’s business.

¢ Class action or other litigation relating to alcohol abuse
or the misuse of alcohol could adversely affect the
Company’s business.

e The Company depends upon its trademarks and pro-
prietary rights, and any failure to protect its intellectual
property rights or any claims that the Company is in-
fringing upon the rights of others may adversely affect
the Company’s competitive position.

¢ Contamination or other circumstances could harm the
integrity or customer support for the Company’s brands
and adversely affect the sales of those products.

For additional information about risks and uncertainties that
could adversely affect the Company’s forward-looking state-
ments, please refer to the Company’s filings with the Securi-
ties and Exchange Commission, including its Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 28, 2005.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The Company, as aresult of its global operating and financing
activities, is exposed to market risk associated with changes
in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. To man-
age the volatility relating to these risks, the Company period-
ically purchases and/or sells derivative instruments includ-
ing foreign currency exchange contracts and interest rate
swap agreements. The Company uses derivative instruments
solely to reduce the financial impact of these risks and does
not use derivative instruments for trading purposes.

Foreign currency forward contracts and foreign currency
options are used to hedge existing foreign currency denom-
inated assets and liabilities, forecasted foreign currency de-
nominated sales both to third parties as well as intercompany
sales, and intercompany principal and interest payments. As
of February 28, 2005, the Company had exposures to foreign
currency risk primarily related to the Australian dollar, euro,
New Zealand dollar, British pound sterling, Canadian dollar
and Mexican peso.

As of February 28, 2005, and February 29. 2004, the Com-
pany had outstanding foreign exchange derivative instru-
ments with a notional value of $601.6 million and $735.8
million, respectively. Approximately 63% of the Company’s
total exposures were hedged as of February 28, 2005. Us-
ing a sensitivity analysis based on estimated fair value of
open contracts using forward rates, if the contract base cur-
rency had been 10% weaker as of February 28, 2005, and
February 29, 2004, the fair value of open foreign exchange
contracts would have been decreased by $65.2 million and
$72.4 million, respectively. Losses or gains from the revalu-
ation or settlement of the related underlying positions would
substantially offset such gains or losses on the derivative
instruments.

The fair value of fixed rate debt is subject to interest rate
risk, credit risk and foreign currency risk. The estimated fair
value of the Company’s total fixed rate debt including current
maturities, was $1,088.1 million and $1.321.8 million as of
February 28, 2005, and February 29, 2004, respectively. A
hypothetical 1% increase from prevailing interest rates as



Section 1: General 19

of February 28, 2005, and February 29, 2004, would have
resulted in a decrease in fair value of fixed interest rate long-
term debt by $37.0 million and $52.9 million, respectively.

As of February 28, 2005, the Company had outstanding
five-year interest rate swap agreements to minimize interest
rate volatility. The swap agreements fix LIBOR interest rates
on $1,200.0 million of the Company’s floating LIBOR rate
debt at an average rate of 4.1% over the five-year term. A
hypothetical 1% increase from prevailing interest rates as
of February 28, 2005 would have increased the fair value of
the interest rate swaps by $53.1 million. As of February 29,
2004, the Company had no interest rate swap agreements
outstanding.

In addition to the $1,088.1 million and $1,321.8 million
estimated fair value of fixed rate debt outstanding as of
February 28, 2005, and February 29, 2004, respectively, the
Company also had variable rate debt outstanding (primar-
ily LIBOR based) as of February 28, 2005, and February 29,
2004, of $2,302.7 million and $861.8 million, respectively. Us-
ing a sensitivity analysis based on a hypothetical 1% increase
in prevailing interest rates over a 12-month period, the ap-
proximate increase in cash required for interest as of Febru-
ary 28, 2005 and February 29, 2004 is $23.0 million and $7.4
million, respectively.

Forward-Looking Information Excerpt
1.15
UNIVERSAL FOREST PRODUCTS, INC. (DEC)

FORWARD OUTLOOK

The following section contains forward-looking statements
within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Ex-
change Act of 1934, as amended. The forward-looking state-
ments are based on the beliefs and assumptions of man-
agement, together with information available to us when the
statements were made. Future results could differ materially
from those included in such forward-looking statements as
a result of, among other things, the factors set forth in the
“Risk Factors” section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K,
filed with the United States Securities and Exchange Com-
mission and certain economic and business factors which
may be beyond our control. Investors are cautioned that all
forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties.

“Building It Forward 2007

In 2002, we announced our goals for growth and diversifica-
tion entitled “Building it Forward 2007.” The goals call for us
to:
¢ Grow our sales by $1 billion while continuing to diversify
our markets, primarily by growing our market share of
products we manufacture for the industrial and site-
built construction markets.
¢ Improve our cash cycle by 10%.
Improve our return on invested capital from approxi-
mately 10% to over 13%.
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Based on our 2005 results, we have achieved our sales
growth and return on invested capital goals and have made
progress toward our cash cycle goal.

We anticipate continued growth in our business in 2006.

Key assumptions with respect to our 2006 outlook include:

* Modest increases in interest rates are mitigated by fa-
vorable demographic trends and economic conditions
resulting in a continued strong site-built construction
market, although not as strong as 2005.

¢ The continued need for manufactured and modular
housing as the South recovers from 2005’s hurricanes
and the growing trend among manufactured housing
producers to switch to modular housing.

* A stable DiY/retail market with opportunities for growth
with existing customers and increased opportunities for
new products, customers and market share through
our new Consumer Products Division, which was an-
nounced in October 2005.

¢ Continued opportunities for market share gains in both
site-built construction and industrial business.

e The completion of strategic business acquisitions.

¢ A stable Lumber Market.

With these factors in mind, we have targeted unit sales
growth and net earnings growth of 10% to 15% each in 2006.
Our net earnings growth target includes the impact of adopt-
ing FASB Statement No. 123(R), which we are required to do
beginning in the first quarter of 2006. We currently estimate
that this statement will result in an annual pre-tax expense
totaling approximately $875,000.

DIY/Retail Market

The Home Improvement Research Institute forecasts an
increase in home improvement product sales of 4.6% to
$305 billion in 2006. A slower pace of growth is fore-
casted due to softening of the housing market and consumer
spending.

In 2006, we currently believe our unit sales will increase
primarily due to additional business awarded from certain
“big box” home improvement retailers and our acquisitions
of Maine Ornamental and DecKorators. On along-term basis,
it is our goal to achieve sales growth by:

¢ Maintaining our market share on sales of value-added
wood products and preservative-treated products as
a result of our national presence, service capabilities
that meet stringent customer requirements, diversified
product offering, and purchasing leverage.

* Increasing our sales of wood alternative products such
as composite wood decking, which continues to take
market share from preservative-treated products. Al-
though we expect this trend to continue to some ex-
tent, we believe wood products will continue to main-
tain a dominant market share for the foreseeable future
as aresult of its cost advantages over wood alternative
products.

¢ Developing new value-added products and services for
this market through our newly formed Consumers Prod-
ucts Division.

e Adding capacity through strategic business acquisi-
tions.
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Site-Built Construction Market

The National Association of Home Builders forecasts a 6.3%
decline in housing starts resulting from an anticipated in-
crease in long-term interest rates. The effect of rising interest
rates may be mitigated somewhat by favorable demographic
trends leading to a larger number of households and con-
struction activity resulting from hurricanes Katrina and Rita.

In 2006 and on a long-term basis, we anticipate growth in

our sales to the site-built construction market primarily as a
result of market share gains achieved through:

* Acquisitions of component manufacturers and fram-
ing services providers. We believe the trend whereby
customers prefer to purchase a combination of com-
ponents and framing services will continue. Therefore,
our acquisition strategy includes targeted markets for
framing operations.

e Greater customer acceptance of engineered wood
components because of the benefits these products
provide builders over traditional carpentry methods em-
ployed on the job site.

e Industry consolidation toward large production-orien-
ted builders, which tend to prefer the use of engi-
neered products and who desire suppliers with a na-
tional presence.

We expect that business acquisitions will play a major role in
our future growth in this market.

Manufactured Housing Market

The Manufactured Housing Institute forecasts a 3% increase
in shipments of HUD code homes in 2006 as a result of con-
tinued demand from both rebuilding along the gulf coast and
pent up demand for manufactured housing due to the shift of
shipments to the gulf coast at the end of 2005. It is our goal
to maintain our current market share of trusses produced for
this market, which is currently estimated at 65%.

Sales of modular homes are expected to increase in 2006
as a result of more developers adopting the controlled build-
ing environment of modular construction as a method of
cost control. This trend is expected to be particularly preva-
lent along the gulf coast as the challenge of rebuilding over
300,000 homes destroyed by the hurricanes will shift builders
toward the speed of modular construction. In addition, these
consumers are expected to experience more favorabie lend-
ing rates compared to HUD code homes. It is our goal to
maintain our current market share of over 80% of trusses
produced for the modular market as a result of our strong
relationships with modular builders, design services and pro-
prietary products.

Industrial Market

One of our key strategic objectives is to increase our sales
of wood packaging products to industrial users. We believe
the vast amount of hardwood and softwood lumber con-
sumed for industrial applications, combined with the highly
fragmented nature of this market provides us with signifi-
cant growth opportunities as a result of our competitive cost
advantages in manufacturing, purchasing, and material uti-
lization. To take advantage of these opportunities, we plan to
continue to obtain market share through an internal growth
strategy utilizing our current manufacturing capabilities and
dedicated industrial sales force. On a long-term basis, we
also plan to evaluate strategic acquisition opportunities.
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Gross Profit

We believe the following factors may impact our gross profits
in the future:

e We have a long-term goal of continuing to increase our
ratio of value-added sales to total sales, which in turn
should increase gross margins. Our acquisition and in-
ternal sales growth strategies will help us continue to
make progress toward this objective, including our goal
of increasing our market share of products we manu-
facture for the industrial and site-built construction mar-
kets. However, achievement of this goal is dependent,
in part, upon certain factors that are beyond our control.

¢ Qur ability to increase sales and maintain gross margins
on products sold to our largest customers. We believe
our level of service, geographic diversity, and quality
of products provide an added value to our customers.
If our customers are unwilling to pay for the additional
services, our sales and gross margins may be reduced.

¢ Fluctuations in the relative level of the Lumber Market
and the trend in the market price of lumber impact our
gross margins.

¢ The relative strength of our end markets may impact
our sales prices, capacity utilization, and profitability.

e Our ability to continue to achieve cost reductions
through our company-wide innovation program.

In addition, we do not anticipate achieving the same mag-
nitude of improvements in under-performing operations in
2006 that we did in 2005.

Seliing, General, and Administrative Expenses

SG&A costs have increased at a rate greater than our unit
sales in recent years due, in part, to acquisitions of engi-
neered wood component manufacturers, which have exten-
sive engineering and design costs, our growth in sales to
the industrial market, and certain investments in technology.
SG&A costs as a percentage of sales may continue to in-
crease in the future as sales of engineered wood compo-
nents and specialty wood packaging become a greater per-
centage of our total business. However, we strive to achieve
economies of scale in other administrative departments as
sales growth objectives are met.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our cash cycle will continue to be impacted in the future by
our growth in sales to the site-built construction and indus-
trial markets. Sales to these markets require a greater invest-
ment in working capital (inventory and accounts receivable)
than our sales to the DIY/retail and manufactured housing
markets.

Management expects to spend $45 million to $50 million
on capital expenditures in 2006 and incur depreciation and
amortization of approximately $39 million. Besides “mainte-
nance” capital expenditures totaling approximately $35 mil-
lion, we plan to spend an additional $10 million to $15 million
to expand the business. On December 31, 2005, we had
outstanding purchase commitments on capital projects of
approximately $2.9 million.

We have no present intention to change our dividend pol-
icy, which is currently $0.055 per share paid semi-annually.

Our Board of Directors has approved a share repurchase
program under which we have authorization to buy back ap-
proximately 1.5 million shares as of December 31, 2005. In
the past, we have repurchased shares in order to offset the
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effect of issuances resulting from our employee benefit plans
and at times when our stock price falls to a pre-determined
level.

We are obligated to pay amounts due on long-term debt
totaling approximately $0.5 miilion in 2006.

We have a $250 million unsecured revolving credit facil-
ity used to support certain outstanding letters of credit and
fund seasonal working capital requirements and growth. We
believe our peak seasonal working capital requirements may
consume up to $125 million of this availability through June
of 2006 and then decrease for the balance of the year in line
with historical trends. We plan to finance our capital require-
ments for the year through operating cash flows, the use of
a new sale of receivables program, and use of our revolving
credit facility.

Liquidity and Capital Resources Excerpt
1.16
STEELCASE INC. (FEB)

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Liquidity

The following table summarizes our statement of cash flows:

2004 2003
2005 (As Restated) (As Restated)
Net cash flow provided by
(used in):
Operating activities $114.7 $ 879 $ 487
Investing activities (25.7) 19.3 318.3
Financing activities (60.3) (56.8) (301.7)
Effect of exchange rate
changes on cash and
cash equivalents 57 2.9 2.7
Net increase in cash and
cash equivalents 344 533 68.0
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period 182.2 128.9 60.9
Cash and cash equivalents,
end of period $216.6 $182.2 $128.9

During 2005, we increased cash and cash equivalents by
$34.4 to a balance of $216.6 as of February 25, 2005, our
highest level of cash since 1998. These funds and our short-
term investments, in addition to cash generated from future
operations and available credit facilities, are expected to be
sufficient to finance our known or foreseeable liquidity and
capital needs. The increase in cash and cash equivalents
was due to a number of factors. Operating activities gener-
ated cash from net income plus depreciation and amortiza-
tion which is added back to net income. Depreciation and
amortization continue to be much higher than current levels
of capital expenditures. Financing activities used cash to pay
down debt and to pay dividends.

Cash and cash equivalents include $24.4 invested in a
money market fund, the use of which is restricted as collateral
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primarily for our accrued liability related to our workers’ com-
pensation program. If this restricted cash is needed for liquid-
ity purposes, we can replace the collateral for our workers’
compensation program with a letter of credit and have full
access to the proceeds of the money market fund.

During 2005, we reclassified our investments in auction
rate securities from cash and cash equivalents to short-term
investments. Auction rate securities classified as short-term
investments were $131.4 and $80.0 as of February 25, 2005
and February 27, 2004, respectively. These investments are
typically held for approximately 30 days, and all investments
held at year-end were converted to cash by March 29, 2005.
Because auction rate securities are no longer classified as
cash, acquisitions of investments in these securities are a
use of cash from investing activities and liquidations of these
securities are a source of cash from investing activities. Notes
2 and 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provide
more information regarding this reclassification.

We look at various scenarios for cash planning purposes.
In one possible scenario—a substantial and rapid increase
in revenue in a short period of time —we anticipate we would
likely experience a corresponding rapid increase in accounts
receivables and inventories. This rapid increase in required
working capital would represent a significant use of cash. We
retain sufficient cash balances to respond to working capital
needs driven by a rapid increase in revenue.

Significant uses of cash in Q1 2006 include approximately
$51.0 in debt repayments and an annual payment of $36.3
related to 2005 variable compensation.

Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flow Data—Operating Activities 2005 2004 2003
Net income (loss) $ 127 $(23.8) $(266.8)
Depreciation and amortization 1276 1414 1574
Gain on sale of net assets of

discontinued operations - (319 —
Deferred income taxes (13.7)  (342) (42.5)
Cumulative effect of accounting change — 4.2 229.9
Changes in operating assets and

liabilities (25.3) (13.7) (44.1)
Other, net 13.4 45.9 14.8

Net cash provided by operating activites  $1147 $87.9 § 487

Cash flow provided by operating activities was sufficient to
fund our capital expenditure needs for 2005 and we expect
this trend to continue.

The year-to-year change in cash generated from operating
activities was primarily due to improvements in year-over-
year income from continuing operations. Additionally, Other,
net, decreased primarily due to current year restructuring
payments, lower charges related to dealer transitions and
fixed asset impairment and disposals.

Most of the change in cash generated from operating ac-
tivities from 2003 to 2004 was due to a reduction in net loss,
a gain on sale of net assets of discontinued operations in
2004, a cumulative effect of accounting change in 2003, and
changes in operating assets and liabilities. The changes in
operating assets and liabilities were primarily driven by lower
revenue, lower manufacturing volume, and implementation
of lean manufacturing principles.
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Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flow Data-Investing 2004 2003
Activities 2005 (AsRestated) (As Restated)
Capital expenditures $(49.2) $(43.0) $(76.5)
Short-term investments, net (51.4) (80.0) 8.5
Net proceeds from repayments

of lease fundings 323 232 (8.0)
Proceeds from the sales of

leased assets 47 43.8 302.0
Proceeds from the disposal of

fixed assets 19.8 28.8 55.6
Net decrease (increase) in

notes receivable 15.1 (6.2) 26.0
Praceeds on sale of net assets

of discontinued operations — 479 —
Other, net 3.0 0.2) 10.7
Net cash provided by (used in)

investing activities $(25.7) $19.3 $318.3

We used cash in investing activities in 2005 primarily for
the net acquisition of short-term investments in auction rate
securities and capital expenditures. We continue to closely
scrutinize capital spending to ensure we are making the right
investments to sustain the business and to preserve our abil-
ity to introduce innovative, new products. In 2005, capital
expenditures were less than half of depreciation, which rep-
resented a source of cash.

In 2004 and 2003, we generated cash from investing ac-
tivities primarily from the sale of leased and fixed assets and
the sale of our Attwood facility in 2004. The sale of leased
assets was primarily due to the new lease funding strategy
implemented by our Financial Services subsidiary in 2004.
In preparation for its new strategy, Financial Services sold a
large portion of its lease portfolio in 2003 and continued to
sell a portion of the remaining leased assets during 2004 and
2005. Under its new strategy, Financial Services continues
to originate leases for customers, but uses a third party to
provide lease funding. A significant amount of the cash gen-
erated from these activities was used to increase our short-
term investment portfolio.

Proceeds from the disposal of fixed assets in 2005 and
2004 were primarily from the sale of domestic and interna-
tional manufacturing facilities and related equipment.

We have significantly reduced our capital expenditures in
the past three years to limit new projects to those that meet
key economic metrics and deliver short payback cost sav-
ings or support critical strategic initiatives such as product
development. At the end of 2005, our committed capital ex-
penditures totaled $19.5 and related primarily to the purchase
of a new corporate aircraft which will replace a corporate air-
craft that we currently own in Q1 2006. In 2006, we expect to
receive proceeds of approximately $15 from the sale of the
corporate aircraft that we currently own.
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Cash Used in Financing Activities

Cash Flow Data~Financing Activities 2005 2004 2003
Dividends paid $(35.6) $(355) $ (354)
Short-term and long-term debt, net (28.8) (22.9) (270.1)
Common stock issuance 41 1.6 3.8

Net cash used in financing activities $(60.3) $(56.8) $(301.7)

We used cash in financing activities in 2005 primarily to pay
down debt and to pay common stock dividends to our share-
holders. We paid common stock dividends of $0.24 per share
in 2005, 2004 and 2003. The dividend declared by the Board
of Directors was $0.06 per share in each quarter of 2005,
2004, and 2003.

We issued common stock in 2005 for proceeds of $4.1 re-
lated to the exercise of employee stock options. See Note 11
of the consolidated financial statements for further discus-
sion regarding the Company’s stock-based incentive plans.

The Board of Directors has authorized share repurchases
of up to 11 million shares. We did not repurchase any com-
mon shares during 2005, 2004 or 2003. Approximately 3.8
million shares remain available for repurchase under the pro-
gram and we have no outstanding share repurchase commit-
ments. Since the inception of our repurchase program, 7.2
million shares have been repurchased for $112.7 million.

Capital Resources

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are contingently liable under loan guarantees for certain
Steelcase dealers and joint ventures in the event of default
or non-performance of the financial repayment of the liability.
Due to the contingent nature of guarantees, the full value of
the guarantees are not recorded on our consolidated balance
sheets; however, we have reserves recorded to cover poten-
tial losses. See Note 14 to the consolidated financial state-
ments for more information regarding financial instruments,
concentrations of credit risk, commitments, guarantees and
contingencies.

Contractual Obligations

Our contractual obligations as of February 25, 2005 are as
follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less
than 1-3 3-5 After5
Contractual Obligations Total 1Year Years Years Years

Long-term debt and

short-term borrowings  $325.7 $ 676 $2581 $§ — § —
Estimated interest on

debt obligations 347 18.4 16.3 — —
Operating leases 291.2 52.1 76.1 571 1059
Committed capital

expenditures 19.5 19.5 — — —
Purchase obligations 79 79 — — —
Other long-term

liabilities 270.1 526 433 466 1276
Total $949.1 $218.1 $393.8 $103.7 $233.5
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Total consolidated debt as of February 25, 2005 was $325.7.
The $28.3 decrease in total debt from 2004 was driven by
debt repayments. Our debt to capital ratio was 21.4% at
year-end. Of our total debt, $249.5 is in the form of term
notes due November 2006. We are currently considering var-
ious options regarding the maturity of the term notes, one of
which is to have a replacement facility in place before the se-
nior notes expire. Additionally, we have notes payable due at
various times through 2007. We expect to pay the amounts
due on the notes as they expire.

Of the $67.6 of debt payments due in 2005 (as presented
in the contractual obligations table above), $9.6 relates to
foreign currency notes payable and revolving credit facility
obligations. Of the remaining $58.0 balance related to United
States dollar notes payable obligations, we expect to repay
$51.0 as it becomes due in Q1 2006.

The Company has commitments related to certain sales
offices, showrooms, and equipment under non-cancelable
operating leases that expire at various dates through 2020.
Minimum payments for operating leases having initial or re-
maining non-cancelable terms in excess of one year are pre-
sented in the contractual obligation table above.

Committed capital expenditures represent obligations we
have related to property, plant and equipment purchases.
See more detail under the Cash provided by (used in) invest-
ing activities section.

We define purchase obligations as non-cancelable signed
contracts to purchase goods or services beyond the needs
of meeting current backlog or production.

Other long-term liabilities represent contribution and ben-
efit payments expected to be made for our defined contri-
bution, deferred compensation, pension and post-retirement
benefit plans. it should be noted our obligations related to
post-retirement benefit plans are not contractual and the
plans could be amended at the discretion of the Compen-
sation Committee of the Board of Directors. We limited our
disclosure of contributions and benefit payments to 10 years
as information beyond this time period was not available.
See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements for fur-
ther discussion regarding these plans.

The contractual obligations table above is current as of
February 25, 2005. The amounts of these obligations could
change materially over time as new contracts or obligations
are initiated and existing contracts or obligations are termi-
nated or modified.

Our total liquidity facilities as of February 25, 2005 were:

Amount
Global committed bank facility $250.0
Various uncommitted lines 130.1
Total credit lines available 380.1
Less: borrowings outstanding 78
Available capacity (subject to covenant constraints) $372.3

At February 25, 2005, we had no borrowings against our
$250.0 3-year global committed bank facility. Our obliga-
tions under this facility are unsecured and unsubordinated.
The Company may, at its option, and subject to custom-
ary conditions, request to increase the aggregate commit-
ment by up to $100.0 by obtaining at least one commitment
from one or more lenders. This facility and certain of our
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other financing and lease facilities require us to satisfy fi-
nancial covenants including a minimum net waorth covenant,
a maximum debt ratio covenant, a minimum interest cover-
age ratio covenant and an asset coverage ratio covenant.
In October 2003, Moody’s investor Services lowered its rat-
ing on the Company to Ba1, thus activating the asset ratio
covenant. Although we have $372.3 of available capacity, our
maximum debt ratio covenant would limit additional borrow-
ings to approximately $122.6 as of February 25, 2005. As of
February 25, 2005, we were in compliance with all covenants
under this facility and our other financing and lease facilities.
The amounts available to us under the various uncommitted
lines are subject to change or cancellation by the banks at
any time. Our long-term debt rating is BBB— from Standard
& Poor’s and Ba1l from Moody’s Investor Service.

On October 13, 2004, we filed a universal shelf registra-
tion statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission
that will allow the Company 1o offer various types of securities
from time to time in the future. The shelf registration state-
ment includes a primary component of up to $200.0 of debt
securities and a secondary component of up to 7.5 million
shares of Class A common stock.

New Accounting Standards Excerpt
1.17
ITT INDUSTRIES, INC. (DEC)

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004) “Share-
Based Payment” (“SFAS No. 123R”) which is a revision of
SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensa-
tion.” This statement eliminates the option of using the in-
trinsic value method of accounting for employee stock op-
tions (historically utilized by the Company), which generally
resulted in the recognition of no compensation cost. The pro-
visions of SFAS No. 123R require the recognition of employee
services received in exchange for awards of equity instru-
ments based on the grant-date fair value of the awards as
determined by option pricing models. The calculated com-
pensation cost is recognized over the period that the em-
ployee is required to provide services per the conditions of
the award. SFAS No. 123R is effective for the Company on
January 1, 2006. The Company estimates that adoption of
this statement will lead to the recognition of employee com-
pensation equivalent to $0.09 per share in 2006.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “In-
ventory Costs—an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4”
(“SFAS No. 151”). This statement clarifies the criteria of “ab-
normal amounts” of freight, handling costs, and spoilage that
are required to be expensed as current period charges rather
than deferred in inventory. In addition, this statement requires
that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of
conversion be based on the normal capacity of the produc-
tion facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for the Company as
of January 1, 2006. Adoption of SFAS No. 151 will not have
a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.
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In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, “Accounting
Changes and Error Corrections” (“SFAS No. 154”), which re-
places Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 20
“Accounting Changes,” and SFAS No. 3 “Reporting Account-
ing Changes in Interim Financial Statements.” SFAS No. 154
changes the requirements for the accounting and reporting
of a change in accounting principle, and applies to all vol-
untary changes in accounting principles, as well as changes
required by an accounting pronouncement in the unusual in-
stance that it does not include specific transition provisions.
Specifically, SFAS No. 154 requires retrospective application
to prior periods’ financial statements, unless it is impractica-
ble to determine the period specific effects or the cumulative
effect of the change. SFAS No. 154 does not change the
transition provisions of any existing pronouncement. SFAS
No. 154 is effective for the Company for all accounting
changes and corrections of errors made beginning January 1,
2006.

In January 2004, FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. 106-1,
“Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Moderniza-
tion Act of 2003” (“FSP No. 106-1”) was issued. Subse-
quently, FSP No. 106-2 was issued, which amends FSP
No. 106-1 and discusses the recognition of the effects for
the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modern-
ization Act of 2003 (the “Medicare Modernization Act”) in the
accounting for postretirement health care plans under SFAS
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Other Than Pensions,” and in providing disclosures related
to the plan required by SFAS No. 132. The Company adopted
this pronouncement effective July 1, 2004, but was unable
to conclude whether benefits of its plans were actuarially
equivalent based on the proposed regulations released in
August 2004. The Company has now determined that a ma-
jority of its healthcare plans pass the test of actuarial equiv-
alence and during the fourth quarter of 2005 made applica-
tion to Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (“CMS”) for
the subsidy provided under the Medicare Modernization Act.
Other than the effect of the subsidy, there was no expecta-
tion that retiree participation would be affected in the short-
term given the nature of the Company’s healthcare plans. See
Note 19, “Employee Benefit Plans,” in the Notes to Consoli-
dated Financial Statements for discussion of postretirement
benefits.

In March 2005, the FASB issued Financial Interpretation
No. 47 (FIN 47), “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retire-
ment Obligations”. FIN 47 requires that the entity recog-
nize a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset retire-
ment obligation at the point in time when that liability can
be reasonably estimated. The majority of conditional asset
retirement obligations incurred by the Company relates to
asbestos-containing materials that exist in certain owned fa-
cilities. The adoption of FIN 47 resulted in the recording of a
cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle of $6.5
million, net of tax and a conditional asset-retirement obliga-
tion liability of $11.2 million. Utilizing current period assump-
tions, the Company would have had liabilities for conditional
asset-retirement obligations of $9.3 million and $10.6 million
at January 1, 2004 and December 31, 2004, respectively.
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Market Risk Information Excerpt
1.18
CLEVELAND-CLIFFS INC (DEC)

MARKET RISK

We are subject to a variety of market risks, including those
caused by changes in market value of equity investments,
commodity prices, foreign currency exchange rates and in-
terest rates. We have established policies and procedures to
manage risks; however, certain risks are beyond our control.

Our investment policy relating to cash and cash equiva-
lents is to preserve principal and liquidity while maximizing
the return through investment of available funds. The carry-
ing value of these investments approximates fair value on the
reporting dates.

We hold investments in highly liquid auction rate securities
(“ARS”) in order to generate higher than typical money mar-
ket investments. ARS typically are high credit quality, gener-
ally achieved with municipal bond insurance. Credit risks are
eased by the historical track record of bond insurers, which
back a majority of this market. Although rare, sell orders for
any security traded through a Dutch auction process could
exceed bids. Such instances are usually the result of a drastic
deterioration of issuer credit quality. Should there be a failed
auction, we may be unable to liquidate our position in the
securities in the near term.

The rising cost of energy is an important issue for us as it
comprises approximately 27 percent of our North American
production costs. Our North American mining ventures con-
sumed approximately 13.6 million mmbtu’s (million btu’s) of
natural gas and 26.5 million gallons of diesel fuel (Company
share 9.6 million mmbtu’s and 16.6 million gallons of diesel
fuel) in 2005. In 2005, the average price paid by the North
American mining ventures was $8.00 per mmbtu for natural
gas and $1.95 per gallon for diesel fuel. Recent trends in-
dicate that electric power, natural gas and oil costs can be
expected to increase over time, although the direction and
magnitude of short-term changes are difficult to predict. Our
strategy to address increasing energy rates includes improv-
ing efficiency in energy usage and utilizing the lowest cost al~
ternative fuel. We also use forward purchases of natural gas
and diesel fuel to stabilize fluctuations in near-term prices.
For 2006, we purchased or have forward purchase contracts
for 7.8 million mmbtu’s of natural gas at an average price
of $9.86 per mmbtu and 3.2 million gallons of diesel fuel at
$2.05 per gallon for our North American mining ventures.

Our mining ventures enter into forward contracts for cer-
tain commodities, primarily natural gas and diesel fuel, as a
hedge against price volatility. Such contracts, which are in
quantities expected to be delivered and used in the produc-
tion process, are a means to limit exposure to price fluc-
tuations. At December 31, 2005, the notional amounts of
the outstanding forward contracts were $28.6 million (our
share—$24.7 million), with an unrecognized fair value loss
of $5.2 million (our share—$4.4 million) based on December
31, 2005 forward rates. The contracts mature at various times
through December 2006. If the forward rates were to change
10 percent from the year-end rate, the value and potential
cash flow effect on the contracts would be approximately
$2.0 million (our share—$1.7 million).
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Our share of Wabush Mines operation in Canada rep-
resented approximately six percent of our North American
pellet production. This operation is subject to currency ex-
change fluctuations between the U.S. and Canadian dollars;
however, we do nhot hedge our exposure to this currency ex-
change fluctuation. Between 2003 and 2005, the value of the
Canadian dollar rose against the U.S. dollar from $.64 U.S.
dollar per Canadian dollar at the beginning of 2003 to $.86
U.S. dollar per Canadian dollars at December 31, 2005, an
increase of 34 percent. The average exchange rate increased
to $.83 U.S. dollar per Canadian dollar in 2005 from an av-
erage of $.77 U.S. dollar per Canadian dollar for 2004, an
increase of eight percent. We do not believe that the recent
increase in the U.S./Canadian exchange rate is a trend that
will continue in the long-term; however, short-term fluctua-
tions cannot reasonably be predicted.

We are subject to changes in foreign currency exchange
rates in Australia as a result of our operations at Portman,
which could impact our financial condition. Foreign exchange
risk arises from our exposure to fluctuations in foreign cur-
rency exchange rates because our reporting currency is the
United States dollar. We do not hedge our exposure to this
currency exchange fluctuation. A 10 percent movement in
quoted foreign currency exchange rates could result in a
fair value change of approximately $44 million in our net
investment.

Portman hedges a portion of its United States currency-
denominated sales in accordance with a formal policy. The
primary objective for using derivative financial instruments
is to reduce the earnings volatility attributable to changes
in Australian and United States currency fluctuations. The
instruments are subject to formal documentation, intended
to achieve qualifying hedge treatment, and are tested at in-
ception and at each reporting period as to effectiveness.
Changes in fair value for highly effective hedges are recorded
as a component of other comprehensive income. Ineffec-
tive portions are charged to operations. At December 31,
2005, Portman had outstanding A$370.1 million in the form
of call options, collars, convertible collars and forward ex-
change contracts with varying maturity dates ranging from
January 2006 to October 2008, and a fair value loss based
on the December 31, 2005 exchange rate of A$.9 million.
A one percent increase in rates from the month-end rate
would increase the fair value and cash flow by approximately
A$2.0 million and a one percent decrease would decrease the
fair value and cash flow by approximately A$3.6 million.

Critical Accounting Policies Excerpt
1.19
THOMAS & BETTS CORPORATION (DEC)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements contained in this re-
port requires the use of estimates and assumptions to de-
termine certain amounts reported as net sales, costs, ex-
penses, assets or liabilities and certain amounts disclosed as
contingent assets or liabilities. Actual results may differ from
those estimates or assumptions. Our significant accounting
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policies are described in Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements. We believe our critical accounting poli-
cies include the following:

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when finished products are shipped to
unaffiliated customers and both title and risks of ownership
are transferred. Sales discounts, quantity and price rebates,
and allowances are estimated based on contractual com-
mitments and experience and recorded in the period as a re-
duction of revenue in which the sale is recognized. Quantity
rebates are in the form of volume incentive discount plans,
which include specific sales volume targets or year-over-year
sales volume growth targets for specific customers. Certain
distributors can take advantage of price rebates by subse-
quently reselling the Corporation’s products into targeted
construction projects or markets. Following a distributor’s
sale of an eligible product, the distributor submits a claim fora
price rebate. The Corporation provides additional allowances
for bad debts when circumstances dictate. A number of dis-
tributors, primarily in the Electrical segment, have the right to
return goods under certain circumstances and those returns,
which are reasonably estimable, are accrued as a reduction of
revenue at the time of shipment. Management analyzes his-
torical returns and allowances, current economic trends and
specific customer circumstances when evaluating the ade-
quacy of accounts receivable related reserves and accruals.

Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost
is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. To
ensure inventories are carried at the lower of cost or market,
the Corporation periodically evaluates the carrying value of
its inventories. The Corporation also periodically performs an
evaluation of inventory for excess and obsolete items. Such
evaluations are based on management’s judgment and use
of estimates. Such estimates incorporate inventory quantities
on-hand, aging of the inventory, sales forecasts for particular
product groupings, planned dispositions of product lines and
overall industry trends.

Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets

We follow the provisions of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 142 requires a transitional
and annual test of goodwill and indefinite lived assets asso-
ciated with reporting units for indications of impairment. The
Corporation performs its annual impairment assessment in
the fourth quarter of each year, unless circumstances dictate
more frequent assessments. Under the provisions of SFAS
No. 142, each test of goodwill requires the Corporation to de-
termine the fair value of each reporting unit, and compare the
fair value to the reporting unit’s carrying amount. To the ex-
tent a reporting unit’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value,
an indication exists that the reporting unit’s goodwill may be
impaired and the Corporation must perform a second more
detailed impairment assessment. The second impairment as-
sessment involves allocating the reporting unit’s fair value to
all of its recognized and unrecognized assets and liabilities in
order to determine the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill as of the assessment date. The implied fair value of
the reporting unit’s goodwill is then compared to the carrying
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amount of goodwill to quantify an impairment charge as of
the assessment date.

Long-Lived Assets

We follow the provisions of SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.” SFAS No.
144 establishes accounting standards for the impairment of
long-lived assets such as property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets subject to amortization. For purposes of
recognizing and measuring impairment of long-lived assets,
the Corporation evaluates assets at the lowest level of iden-
tifiable cash flows for associated product groups. The Cor-
poration reviews long-lived assets to be held-and-used for
impairment annually or whenever events or changes in cir-
cumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets
may not be recoverable. If the sum of the undiscounted ex-
pected future cash flows over the remaining useful life of the
primary asset in the associated product groups is less than
the carrying amount of the assets, the assets are consid-
ered to be impaired. Impairment losses are measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds
the fair value of the assets. When fair values are not available,
the Corporation estimates fair value using the expected fu-
ture cash flows discounted at a rate commensurate with the
risks associated with the recovery of the assets. Assets to be
disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or
fair value less costs to sell.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plan
Actuarial Assumptions

We follow the provisions of SFAS No. 87, “Employer’s Ac-
counting for Pensions” and SFAS No. 106, “Employer’s Ac-
counting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions.”
For purposes of calculating pension and postretirement med-
ical benefit obligations and related costs, the Corporation
uses certain actuarial assumptions. Two critical assumptions,
the discount rate and the expected return on plan assets, are
important elements of expense and/or liability measurement.
We evaluate these assumptions annually. Other assumptions
include employee demographic factors (retirement patterns,
mortality and turnover), rate of compensation increase and
the healthcare cost trend rate. See additional information
contained in Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Fi-
nancial Condition and Results of Operations—Qualified Pen-
sion Plans.

Income Taxes

We use the asset and liability method of accounting for in-
come taxes. This method recognizes the expected future
tax consequences of temporary differences between book
and tax bases of assets and liabilities and provides a valua-
tion allowance based on a more-likely-than-not criteria. The
Corporation has valuation allowances for deferred tax as-
sets primarily associated with operating loss carryforwards,
tax credit carryforwards and deferred state income tax as-
sets. Realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the Corporation’s ability to generate sufficient future
taxable income and, if necessary, execution of its tax plan-
ning strategies. Management believes that it is more-likely-
than-not that future taxable income, based on enacted tax
law in effect as of December 31, 2005, will be sufficient to re-
alize the recorded deferred tax assets net of existing valuation
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allowances. Management considers the scheduled reversal
of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and
tax planning strategies, which involve estimates and uncer-
tainties, in making this assessment. Tax planning strategies
include primarily sales of non-core assets. Projected future
taxable income is based on management’s forecast of the
operating results of the Corporation. Management periodi-
cally reviews such forecasts in comparison with actual results
and expected trends. In the event management determines
that sufficient future taxable income, in light of tax planning
strategies, may not be generated to fully realize net deferred
tax assets, the Corporation will increase valuation allowances
by a charge to income tax expense in the period of such de-
termination. Likewise, if management determines that future
taxable income will be sufficient to utilize state and foreign
net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred tax as-
sets, the Corporation will decrease the existing valuation al-
lowance by recording a reduction to income tax expense in
the period of such determination.

Environmental Costs

Environmental expenditures that relate to current operations
are expensed or capitalized, as appropriate. Remediation
costs that relate to an existing condition caused by past op-
erations are accrued when it is probable that those costs
will be incurred and can be reasonably estimated based on
evaluations of current available facts related to each site.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

1.20 Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 131, Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and
Related Information, supersedes SFAS No. 14, Financial Re-
porting for Segments of a Business Enterprise, in reporting
information about a public business enterprise’s operating
segments. Operating segments are components of an enter-
prise about which separate financial information is available
that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision
maker in deciding how to allocate resources and in assess-
ing performance.

1.21 SFAS No. 131 requires that a public business enter-
prise report a measure of segment profit or loss, certain
specific revenue and expense items, and segment assets. It
requires reconciliations of total segment revenues, total seg-
ment profit or loss, total segment assets, and other amounts
disclosed for segments to corresponding amounts in the en-
terprise’s general-purpose financial statements. It requires
that all public business enterprises report information about
the revenues derived from the enterprise’s products or ser-
vices (or groups of similar products and services), about the
countries in which the enterprise earns revenues and holds
assets, and about major customers regardless of whether
that information is used in making operating decisions. How-
ever, this Statement does not require an enterprise to report
information that is not prepared for internal use if reporting it
would be impracticable. In addition to SFAS No. 131, SFAS
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, requires that
entities which report segment information shall provide infor-
mation about the changes in the carrying amount of goodwiill
during the period for each reportable segment.
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1.22 Table 1-3 shows the type of segment information most
frequently presented as an integral part of the financial state-
ments of the survey companies. Examples of segment infor-
mation disclosures follow.

1.23
TABLE 1-3: SEGMENT INFORMATION

Number of Companies
2005 2004 2003 2002

Industry segments
ReVENUE.......corvreerirenrcrirerranenne 420 406 420 404
Operating income or loss............ 328 304 318 310
Identifiable assets............... 381 366 378 389
Depreciation expense..... 392 374 395 406
Capital expenditures....... 352 337 354 367
GOOAWIll......evnrrereree e 200 174 127 N/C*
Geographic area
ReVENUE......ceeerereresereeene 306 321 323 296
Operating income or loss............ 41 65 68 48
Identifiable assets..........ccoevune.. 73 96 89 82
Depreciation expense................. 37 49 40 37
Capital expenditures....... 32 48 35 34
Goodwill.........reeoreee. . 11 18 9 N/C*
Export sales.........cccceeune. 28 33 37 33
Sales to major customers.............. 137 136 178 137

* N/C = Not compiled. Line item was not included in the table for
the year shown.

1.24
BALL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Business Segment Information

The company has determined that it has five reportable
segments organized along a combination of product lines
and geographical areas—North American metal beverage
packaging, North American metal food packaging, North
American plastic packaging, international packaging and
aerospace and technologies. Prior periods have been con-
formed to the current presentation. We also have investments
in the packaging segments that are accounted for under the
equity method of accounting, and, accordingly, those results
are not included in segment sales or earnings. The account-
ing policies of the segments are the same as those described
in the summary of critical and significant accounting policies
(Note 1). See also Notes 3 and 4 for information regarding
transactions affecting segment results.

North American Metal Beverage Packaging

The North American metal beverage packaging segment
consists of operations in the U.S., Canada and Puerto Rico,
which manufacture metal containers primarily for use in bev-
erage packaging.
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North American Metal Food Packaging

The North American metal food packaging segment consists
of operations in the U.S. and Canada, which manufacture
metal containers primarily for use in food packaging.

North American Plastic Packaging

The North American plastic packaging segment consists
of operations in the U.S. which manufacture polyethylene
terephthalate (PET) plastic containers primarily for use in bev-
erage packaging.

International Packaging

International packaging, with operations in several countries
in Europe and the PRC, includes the manufacture and sale
of metal beverage container products in Europe and Asia, as
well as plastic containers in Asia.

Aerospace and Technologies

Aerospace and technologies includes the manufacture and
sale of aerospace and other related products and services
used primarily in the defense, civil space and commercial
space industries.

Major Customers

Following is a summary of Ball’s major customers and their
respective percentages of consolidated sales for the years
ended December 31:

2005 2004 2003

SABMiller plc 1% 1% 12%
PepsiCo, Inc. and affiliates 10% 9% 10%
All bottlers of Pepsi-Cola or Coca-Cola

branded beverages 27% 28% 29%
U.S. government agencies and their

prime contractors 11% 10% 10%

SUMMARY OF NET SALES BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

($ in millions) us. Other@  Consolidated
2005 $4,133.3 $1,617.9 $5,751.2
2004 3,898.9 1,541.3 5,440.2
2003 3,567.8 1,409.2 4977.0

SUMMARY OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA®)

($ in millions) US.  Germany Other®  Consolidated
2005 $1,856.1 $1,099.7 $161.8 $3,117.6
2004 2,077.0 1,286.7 (131.6) 3,232.1
2003 2,002.3 1,207.6 (63.8) 3.146.1

@ Includes the company’s net sales in the PRC, Canada and certain
European countries (none of which was significant), intercompany
eliminations and other.

®) |ong-lived assets primarily consist of property, plant and equip-
ment, goodwill and other intangible assets.

© Includes the company’s long-lived assets in the PRC, Canada
and certain European countries, not including Germany (none of
which was significant), intercompany eliminations and other.

ATT-SEC 1.24
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Summary of Business by Segment ($ in millions) 2005 2004
N Total assets
(§ in millions) 2005 2004 2003 North American metal beverage
Net sales packaging $1,6644  $1,861.1
North American metal North American metal food packaging 4451 429.8
beverage packaging $23904 $2,360.6  $2,292.2 North American plastic packaging 320.9 306.9
North American metal food International packaging 21226 2,255.8
packaging 824.0 7715 646.2 Aerospace and technologies 253.1 210.3
North American plastic Segment eliminations (537.5) (767.3)
packaging , 481.5 401.0 376.0 Segment assets 426886  4,296.6
International packaging 1,3545 1,248 1,127.7 Corporate assets, net of eliminations 74.8 181.1
Aerospace and technologies 694.8 653.0 534.9 Total assets $4.3434 $4.477.7
Net sales $5,751.2  $5440.2  $4,977.0
Gopsoldated caminge (8 in milions) 2005 2004 2003
beverage packaging® $ 2298 § 2791 § 2508 Investments in affiliates
North American metal food North American metal beverage
packaging® 11.6 443 19.8 packaging $ 95 § 77 § 50
North American plastic North American metal food packaging — - 0.8
packaging® 17.4 11.6 12.3 International packaging 48.4 50.0 64.2
International packaging® 181.8 198.0 158.6 Aerospace and technologies 75 254 228
Aerospace and technologies® 54.7 48.7 49.5 Investments in affiliates $654 $831 §$928
Segment eamings before Property, plant and equipment additions
interest and taxes 495.3 581.7 491.0 North American metal beverage
Corporate undistributed packaging $1099 $570 $ 385
expenses (32.8) (428) (30.2) North American metal food packaging 168 143 28.6
Earnings before interest and North American plastic packaging 276 19.2 236
taxes 462.5 538.9 460.8 International packaging 97.9 739 221
Interest expense® (1164)  (103.7) (141.1) Aerospace and technologies 33.1 24.0 19.2
Tax provision (99.3)  (1392)  (100.1) Segment property, plant and equipment
Minority interests 08) (1.0 (1.0) additions 2853 1884 1320
Equity in results of affiliates 15.5 0.6 1.3 Corporate 6.4 76 5.2
Net eamings $ 2615 $ 2956 $ 2299 Property, plant and equipment additions ~ $291.7 $196.0 $137.2
Depreciation and amortization
North American metal 4. Business Consolidation Activities
beverage packaging $ 690 $ 684 § 722 o ' o
North American metal food Following is a summary of business consolidation (costs) and
packaging 16.3 15.6 14.2 gains included in the consolidated statements of earnings for
North American plastic the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003:
packaging 36.8 40.0 411
International packaging 734 74.2 62.5 ($ in millions) 2005 2004 2003
Aerospace and technologies 149 146 129 North American metal beverage
Segment depreciation and packaging $(193) $ — $16
amortization 2104 212.8 202.9 North American metal food packaging (11.2) 04 (1.4)
Corporate 3.1 23 2.6 North American plastic packaging — 0.7 —
— — International packaging 9.3 13.7 33
Depreciation and amortization $ 2135 $ 2151 $ 2055 Aerospace and technologies - 0.4 02
@ Includes the following business consolidation gains (costs) dis- $(21.2) $152  $37

cussed in Note 4:

($ in millions) 2005 2004 2003
North American metal beverage
packaging $(193) $ — $186
North American metal food
packaging (11.2) 0.4 (1.4)
North American plastic packaging ~ 0.7 -
International packaging 9.3 13.7 3.3
Aerospace and technologies - 0.4 0.2
$(21.2) $152 $3.7

®

in 2005 and 2003, respectively.
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Includes $19.3 million and $15.2 million of debt refinancing costs
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2005

North American Metal Beverage Packaging

The company announced in July 2005 the commencement
of a project to upgrade and streamline its North American
beverage can end manufacturing capabilities. The project is
expected to be completed in 2007 and will result in produc-
tivity gains and cost reductions. A pretax charge of $19.3 mil-
lion ($11.7 million after tax) was recorded in the third quarter
of 2005 in connection with this project. The pretax charge
includes $11.7 million for employee severance, pension and
other employee benefit costs, $1.6 million for decommission-
ing costs and $6 million for the write off of obsolete equip-
ment spare parts and tooling. Payments made in 2005 were
insignificant.

North American Metal Food Packaging

The fourth quarter of 2005 included a pretax charge of $4.6
million ($3.1 million after tax) for pension, severance and

other employee benefit costs related to a reduction in force in
our Burlington, Ontario, plant. Payments made in 2005 were
insignificant.

A pretax charge of $8.8 million ($5.9 million after tax) was
recorded in the second quarter of 2005 in connection with
the closure of a three-piece food can manufacturing plant in
Quebec, Canada. The Quebec plant was closed and ceased
operations in the third quarter of 2005 and an agreement has
been reached to sell the land and building which resulted in
the second quarter charge being offset by a $2.2 million gain
($1.5 million after tax) in the fourth quarter to adjust the Que-
bec plant to net realizable value. At December 31, 2005, the
resulting reserve had been reduced by $1.9 million of cash
payments made. The pretax charge, net of the offsetting gain,
included $3.2 million for employee severance, pension and
other employee benefit costs and $3.4 million for decom-
missioning cost and the write-down to net realizable value of
fixed assets and other costs. When all assets are disposed
of, management expects the plant closure to result in a net
cash inflow. A total of 77 employees were terminated in con-
nection with the closure.

The following table summarizes the activity in the 2005
North American business consolidation activities:

Fixed Assets/ Pension Employee

($ in millions) Spare Parts Costs Costs Other Total
Charge (earnings) to North American segments:

Second quarter 2005 $48 $0.5 $26 $09 $88

Third quarter 2005 6.0 47 7.0 1.6 19.3

Fourth quarter 2005 (2.2) 27 1.9 — 24
Payments - - (1.7) (0.5) (2.2)
Disposal of spare parts (1.4) — — — (1.4)
Transfers to assets and liabilities to reflect estimated

realizable values and foreign exchange effects (1.6) (7.9) 0.2 — {9.3)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $5.6 $ — $10.0 $2.0 $17.6

The remaining carrying value of fixed assets remaining for
sale in connection with the 2005 North American business
consolidation activities was $5.3 million at December 31,
2005.

International Packaging

The company recorded $9.3 million of earnings in 2005, pri-
marily related to the final settlement of tax obligations, and an
adjustment to reclassify an asset to be put in service previ-
ously held for sale, related to a $237.7 million business con-
solidation charge taken in the second quarter of 2001. Tax
clearances from the applicable authorities were required dur-
ing the formal liquidation process. These matters have been
concluded.

2004

North American Metal Food Packaging

In the fourth quarter of 2004, a gain of $0.4 million was
recorded, as costs were less than estimated for the 2003
closure of a metal food container plant.

North American Plastic Packaging

In the third quarter, earnings of $0.7 million were recorded
as costs related to the shut down and relocation of the At-
lanta plastics offices and research and development (R&D)

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

facility were less than expected. The office relocation was
completed during 2003 and the R&D facility relocation was
completed in 2004.

International Packaging

The company recorded $13.7 million of earnings in 2004,
primarily related to the realization of assets in the PRC in
excess of amounts previously estimated, and costs of con-
solidation and liquidation less than anticipated, related to a
$237.7 million business consolidation charge taken in the
second quarter of 2001.

Aerospace and Technologies

Earnings of $0.4 million were recorded in the fourth quarter
of 2004 for exit costs that were no longer required due to the
sale of a product line whose operations ceased in 2001.

2003

North American Metal Beverage

A gain of $1.6 million was recorded in the fourth quarter in
connection with the sale, and the completion of the consoli-
dation activities, related to a metal beverage container plant
closed in December 2001.

ATT-SEC 1.24
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North American Metal Food

In the first quarter Ball announced plans to close a metal
food container plant to address decreased demand for three-
piece welded cans. In connection with the closure, a charge
of $1.9 million was recorded, partially offset by a $0.5 mil-
lion gain on the sale of a Canadian plant that was included
in a business consolidation charge taken in 2000. The $1.9
million charge included $0.8 million for employee severance
and benefit costs and $1.1 million for decommissioning costs
and an impairment charge on fixed assets.

International Packaging

Ball Packaging Europe closed its plant in Runcorn, England,
at the end of December 2003. The cost of the plant closure,
along with costs associated with a line conversion and a line

8 (In Part): Goodwill

shut down at other plants, estimated to be €11.9 million in
total, was accounted for in the opening acquisition balance
sheet. These costs included €8.7 million for employee termi-
nation costs and €3.2 million for decommissioning costs, of
which €10.5 million was paid and €0.6 million was reversed
to goodwill as costs were less than initially estimated. The
remaining balance of €0.8 million is for early retirement ben-
efits to be paid under local law in future periods. There are
no remaining assets held for sale at December 31, 2005.

The company recorded $3.3 million of earnings in 2003,
primarily related to the realization of assets in the PRC in
excess of amounts previously estimated, and costs of con-
solidation and liguidation less than anticipated, related to a
$237.7 million business consolidation charge taken in the
second quarter of 2001.

Aerospace and Technologies

Earnings of $0.2 million in the third quarter of 2003 for exit
costs that were no longer required due to the sale of a product
line whose operations ceased in 2001.

North American North American

Metal Beverage Metal Food North American International
($ in millions) Packaging Packaging Plastic Packaging Packaging Total
Balance at December 31, 2004 $298.2 $28.2 $31.8 $1,051.8 $1,410.0
Purchase accounting and other adjustments (9.5) - 1.4 (4.0) (12.1)
Effects of foreign currency exchange rates {9.3) - - (130.0) (139.3)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $279.4 $28.2 $33.2 $ 9178 $1,258.6

1.25
EATON CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)

Goodwill & Other Intangible Assets (In Part)
A summary of goodwill follows:

2005 2004

Electrical $1,016 $ 944
Fluid Power 1,811 1,235
Truck 145 133
Automotive 167 121
$3,139 $2,433

Business Segment & Geographic Region Information

Eaton is a diversified industrial manufacturer having 2005
sales of $11.1 billion. The Company is a global leader in
the design, manufacture, marketing and servicing of elec-
trical systems and components for power quality, distribu-
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tion and control; fluid power systems and services for indus-
trial, mobile and aircraft equipment; intelligent truck drive-
train systems for safety and fuel economy; and automotive
engine air management systems, powertrain solutions and
specialty controls for performance, fuel economy and safety.
The Company had 59,000 employees at the end of 2005 and
sells products to customers in more than 125 countries. Ma-
jor products included in each business segment and other
information follows.

Electrical

Low and medium voltage power distribution and control
products that meet ANSI/NEMA and IEC standards; a wide
range of circuit breakers, and a variety of assemblies and
components used in managing distribution of electricity to
industrial, utility, light commercial, residential and OEM mar-
kets; drives, contactors, starters, power factor and harmonic
correction; a wide range of sensors used for position sensing;
a full range of operator interface hardware and software for
interfacing with machines, and other motor control products
used in the control and protection of electrical power dis-
tribution systems; a full range of AC and DC Uninterruptible
Power Systems (UPS); power management software, remote
monitoring, turnkey integration services and site support en-
gineering services for electrical power and control systems.
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Fluid Power

All pressure ranges of hose, fittings, adapters, couplings
and other fluid power connectors; hydraulic pumps, motors,
valves, cylinders, power steering units, tube connectors, fit-
tings, transaxles and transmissions; electronic and hydraulic
controls; electric motors and drives; filtration products and
fluid-evaluation products and services; aerospace products
and systems —hydraulic and electrohydraulic pumps, and in-
tegrated system packages, hydraulic and electromechanical
actuators, flap and slat systems, nose wheel steering sys-
tems, cockpit controls, power and load management sys-
tems, sensors, fluid debris monitoring products, illuminated
displays, integrated displays and panels, relays, valves, seal-
ing and pneumatic systems for large commercial aircraft
and regional jets, products for aircraft engines, fue! sys-
tems, cabin air and de-icing systems, hydraulic systems, low-
pressure airframe fuel systems, electromechanical actuation,
air ducting, hydraulic and power generation, and fluid distri-
bution systems for fuel, hydraulics and air; filtration systems,
industrial equipment, clutches and brakes for industrial ma-
chines; golf grips and precision molded and extruded plastic
products

Truck

Heavy-, medium- and light-duty and agricultural mechanical
transmissions; heavy- and medium-duty automated trans-
missions; heavy-and medium-duty clutches; and a variety of
other products including gears and shafts, transfer boxes,
gearshift mechanisms, rotors, electronic diagnostic equip-
ment for commercial vehicles, and collision warning systems.

Automotive

Engine valves, valve actuation components, engine displace-
ment control components, advanced valvetrain systems to
enhance fuel economy and emissions, cylinder heads, su-
perchargers, superturbo compounding, limited slip and lock-
ing differentials, electronically controlled traction modifica-
tion devices, precision gear forgings, compressor control
clutches for mobile refrigeration, mirror actuators, transmis-
sion controls, on-board vapor recovery systems, fuel level
senders, exhaust gas recirculation valves for heavy-duty en-
gines, flow and pressure controls for direct injection diesel
engines, turbocharger waste gate controls, and intake man-
ifold control valves.

Other Information

The principal markets for the Electrical segment are indus-
trial, construction, commercial, automotive and government
customers. These customers are generally concentrated in
North America, Europe and Asia/Pacific; however, sales are
made globally. Sales are made directly by Eaton and indirectly
through distributors and manufacturers’ representatives to
such customers.

The principal markets for the Fluid Power, Truck and
Automotive segments are original equipment manufactur-
ers and after-market customers of off-highway agricultural
and construction vehicles, industrial equipment, heavy-,
medium- and light-duty trucks, passenger cars, and cus-
tomers involved with aerospace products and systems.
These manufacturers are located globally and most sales of
these products are made directly to such manufacturers.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

No single customer represented more than 10% of net
sales in 2005, 2004 or 2003. Sales from United States and
Canadian operations to customers in foreign countries were
$568 in 2005, $504 in 2004 and $437 in 2003 (5% of sales in
2005, 2004, and 2003).

The accounting policies of the business segments are gen-
erally the same as the policies described under “Accounting
Policies” above, except that inventories and related cost of
products sold of the segments are accounted for using the
FIFO method and operating profit only reflects the service
cost component related to pensions and other postretirement
benefits. Intersegment sales and transfers are accounted for
at the same prices as if the sales and transfers were made to
third parties.

In accordance with SFAS No. 131, for purposes of business
segment performance measurement, the Company does not
allocate to the business segments items that are of a non-
operating nature or corporate organizational and functional
expenses of a governance nature. Corporate expenses con-
sist of corporate office expenses including compensation,
benefits, occupancy, depreciation, and other administrative
costs. Identifiable assets of the business segments exclude
goodwill, other intangible assets, and general corporate as-
sets, which principally consist of cash, short-term invest-
ments, deferred income taxes, certain accounts receivable,
certain property, plant and equipment, and certain other
assets.

Geographic Region Information

Segment
Operating Long-Lived
Net Sales Profit Assets
2005
United States $ 7,699 $1,021 $1,191
Canada 315 48 16
Europe 2,147 114 533
Latin America 1,036 136 298
Asia/Pacific 797 80 137
Eliminations (879)
$11,115 $2,175
2004
United States $ 6,843 $ 780 $1,215
Canada 261 37 16
Europe 1,990 150 547
Latin America 774 107 244
Asia/Pacific 679 79 125
Eliminations (730)
$ 9,817 $2,147
2003
United States $ 5,758 $ 546 $1,264
Canada 209 28 16
Europe 1,581 94 491
Latin America 516 65 205
Asia/Pacific 504 64 100
Eliminations (507)
$ 8,061 $2,076
ATT-SEC 1.25
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Net sales and segment operating profit are attributed 2005 2004 2003
to geographical regions based upon the location of the Identifiable assets
selling unit. Long-lived assets consist of property, plant and Electrical $ 1454  $1469  $1,072
equipment-net. _ Fluid power 1787 1527 1422
Segment operating profit was reduced by restructuring Truck 1,064 940 690
charges as follows: Automotive 960 974 872
5,265 4,910 4,056
. 2005 2004 2003 Goodwil 3139 2433 2095
United States $17 $22 $22 Other intangible assets 626 644 541
EU{_OP: i Z 18 11 Corporate 1,188 1,088 1,531
atin America
Asia/Pacific 8 1 3 Total assets $10,218  $9,075  $8,223
$36 $41 $36 Expenditures for property, plant &
equipment
. . Electrical $ 59 § 5 § 37
Business Segment Information Fluid power 76 83 60
Truck 99 90 71
— 2005 2004 2003 ayomotive 108 91 86
et sales
Electrical $ 3758 $3072  $2,313 Corporate ng 31? 2?;
Fluid power 3,240 3,008 2,786
Truck 2288 1800 1272 $ 363 $ 330 § 213
Automotive 1,829 1,847 1,690 Depreciation of property, plant &
$11,115  $9,817  $8,061 equipment
Electrical $ 375 $ 243 § 158 Fluid power 94 91 92
Fluid power 339 338 247 Truck 70 61 o4
Truck 453 329 168 Automotive 89 84 7
Automotive 232 243 224 337 319 303
Corporate Corporate 19 23 19
Amortization of intangible assets (30) (25) (21)
Interest expense—net (90) (78) (87) $ 3% $342 §52
Minority interest (5) 4] (12)
Pension & other postretirement
benefit expense (120) (75) (52)
Provision to exit a business (15)
Other corporate expense—net (158) (172) (117) 1.26
Income before income taxes 996 781 508 KIMBERLY-CLARK CORPORATION (DEC)
Income taxes 191 133 122
Net income $ 805 §648 8 386 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Income before income taxes was
redfuTIed by restructuring charges Note 4 (In Part): Acquisitions and Intangible Assets
as follows: ,
Electrical $ 21§ 33 § 2 Goodwill
Fluid power 7 8 14 The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by business
Truck 4 segment are as follows:
Automotive 4
Corporate 1 Personal  Consumer Business-
$ 3% $ 41 § 37 (Millions of dollars) Care Tissue to-Business Total
Balance at
January 1, 2004 $514.8 $594.1 $1,5402  $2,649.1
Currency and other 28.3 16.4 9.1 53.8
Balance at
December 31,2004  543.1 610.5 1,5649.3  2,702.9
Acquisitions — — 39 39
Currency and other (13.3) (5.0) (2.9) (21.2)
Balance at

December 31,2005 $529.8 $605.5 $1,550.3  $2,685.6
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Note 17. Business Segment and Geographic
Data Information

The Corporation is organized into operating segments based
on product groupings. These operating segments have
been aggregated into three reportable global business seg-
ments: Personal Care; Consumer Tissue; and Business-to-
Business. The reportable segments were determined in ac-
cordance with how the Corporation’s executive managers
develop and execute the Corporation’s global strategies to
drive growth and profitability of the Corporation’s worldwide
Personal Care, Consumer Tissue and Business-to-Business
operations. These strategies include global pians for brand-
ing and product positioning, technology, research and de-
velopment programs, cost reductions including supply chain
management, and capacity and capital investments for each
of these businesses. Segment management is evaluated on
several factors, including operating profit. Segment operat-
ing profit excludes other income and (expense), net; income
and expense not associated with the business segments; and
the costs of corporate decisions related to the strategic cost
reductions included in the Competitive Improvement Initia-
tives. Corporate & Other includes the costs of the strategic
cost reductions described in Note 3. Corporate & Other as-
sets include the Corporation’s investments in equity affiliates,
finance operations and real estate entities, and deferred tax
assets. The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as those described in Note 1.

The principal sources of revenue in each global business
segment are described below.

33

® The Personal Care segment manufactures and mar-

kets disposable diapers, training and youth pants, and
swimpants; baby wipes; feminine and incontinence
care products; and related products. Products in this
segment are primarily for household use and are sold
under a variety of brand names, including Huggies, Puli-
Ups, Little Swimmers, GoodNites, Kotex, Lightdays,
Depend, Poise and other brand names.
* The Consumer Tissue segment manufactures and mar-
kets facial and bathroom tissue, paper towels, napkins
and related products for household use. Products in
this segment are sold under the Kieenex, Scott, Cot-
tonelle, Viva, Andrex, Scottex, Hakle, Page and other
brand names.
The Business-to-Business segment manufactures and
markets disposable, single-use, health and hygiene
products to the away-from-home marketplace. These
products include facial and bathroom tissue, paper
towels, napkins, wipers, surgical gowns, drapes, infect-
ion control products, sterilization wrap, disposable face
masks and exam gloves, respiratory products, other
disposable medical products and other products. Prod-
ucts in this segment are sold under the Kimberly-Clark,
Kleenex, Scott, Kimwipes, WypAll, Surpass, Safeskin,
Tecnol, Ballard and other brand names.
Approximately 13 percent of net sales were to Wal-Mart
Stores, Inc. in 2005, 2004 and 2003, primarily in the Personal
Care and Consumer Tissue businesses.
Information concerning consolidated operations by busi-
ness segment and geographic area, as well as data for equity
companies, is presented in the following tables:

CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

Personal Consumer Business-to- Intersegment Corporate &  Consolidated

(Millions of dollars) Care Tissue Business Sales Other Total
Net sales

2005 $6,287.4 $5,781.3 $3,821.8 $ (19.3) $ 314 $15,902.6

2004 5,975.1 5,343.0 3,957.9 (217.1) 243 15,083.2

2003 5,652.9 5,046.7 34777 (154.7) 3.7 14,026.3
Operating profit®

2005 1,242.2 805.8 673.2 — (410.6) 2,310.6

2004 1,253.2 803.1 656.6 — (206.5) 2,506.4

2003 1,221.0 728.2 602.8 — (220.4) 2,3316
Depreciation and amortization

2005 267.4 301.0 188.1 — 88.0 8445

2004 286.9 310.7 194.0 - 8.7 800.3

2003 264.4 300.2 178.2 — 25 7453
Assets®

2005 4,650.7 56729 4578.9 — 1,400.7 16,303.2

2004 4,813.3 58815 47452 — 1,578.0 17,018.0

2003 47819 5,796.5 4,850.1 — 1,351.4 16,779.9
Capital spending

2005 2979 296.6 115.0 - A 709.6

2004 2425 2023 89.4 — 8 535.0

2003 3444 366.6 141.0 — 20.9 872.9

@ Corporate & Other includes costs aggregating $228.6 million in 2005 for the Competitive Improvement Initiatives. On a business segment
basis, actual costs recorded in 2005 for these initiatives relate to activities in Personal Care ($146.0 million), Consumer Tissue ($31.3 million)
and Business-to-Business ($51.3 miilion). Additional information concerning these costs is contained in Note 3. In addition, Corporate &
Other includes expenses not associated with the business segments.

Segment operating profit also excludes other income (expense), net and income and expenses not associated with the business segments.
®) Data for 2003 does not reflect the Spin-off. Segment assets exclude assets not allocated to business segments.
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SALES OF PRINCIPAL PRODUCTS

(Billions of dollars) 2005 2004 2003
Consumer tissue products $57 $53 $48
Diapers 33 32 3.0
Away-from-home professional products 24 23 21
All other 4.5 4.3 41
Consolidated $159  $15.1 $14.0

CONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS BY GEOGRAPHIC AREA

Inter- Total Asia, Latin Inter-
United geographic North America&  geographic Corporate & Consolidated

(Millions of dollars) States Canada ltems®  America Europe Other ltems Other Total
Net sales

2005 $9,093.1 $516.4 $(254.7)  $9,354.8 $3,072.8 $4,019.2 $(544.2) $ — $15,902.6

2004 8,683.5 911.0 (554.4) 9,040.1 3,098.3 3,488.8 (544.0) — 15,083.2

2003 8,335.8 801.8 (515.8) 8,622.0 2,892.5 3,061.6 (549.8) — 14,026.3
Operating profit®

2005 1,973.5 107.7 - 2,081.2 165.9 4741 — (410.6) 2,310.6

2004 1,963.1 122.0 — 2,075.1 221.0 416.8 — (206.5) 2,506.4

2003 1,862.7 131.7 — 1,994.4 202.9 354.7 — (220.4) 2,331.6
Net property®

2005 4,082.0 82.1 — 4,164.1 1,5295 1,801.1 — — 7,494.7

2004 41778 103.5 — 42813 1,875.2 1,834.0 — — 7,990.5

2003 4,379.9 348.2 — 47281 1,809.3 1,726.0 - — 8,263.4

@ |ntergeographic net sales include $59.4 million, $368.0 million and $345.4 million by operations in Canada to the U.S. in 2005, 2004 and

2003, respectively.

®) Corporate & Other includes the costs of the 2005 Competitive Improvement Initiatives aggregating $228.6 million in 2005. On a geographical
basis, actual costs recorded in 2005 for these initiatives relate to activities in North America ($84.9 million), Europe ($113.5 million) and Asia,

Latin America and Other ($30.2 miilion).

Geographic operating profit also excludes other income (expense), net and income and expenses not associated with geographic areas.

{© Data for 2003 does not reflect the Spin-off.

EQUITY COMPANIES’ DATA

Corporation’s
(Millions of Net  Gross  Operating Net  Share of Net
dollars) Sales Profit Profit  Income Income
2005 $2,1150  $730.0 $4412  $286.1 $136.6
2004 1,823.0 635.1 4333 2611 124.8
2003@ 1,750.1 630.3 3883 2244 107.0

@ As of August 2003, the Corporation consolidated Klabin-Kimbe
rly S.A,, its Brazilian affiliate.

Non- Non-
(Millions of Current Current  Current ~ Current Stock-holders’
dollars) Assets  Assets Liabilities Liabilities Equity
2005 $869.7  $992.1 $564.6 $513.4 $783.9
2004 8217 9311 525.5 475.5 751.9
2003 7167  925.7 386.7 531.6 724.2

ATT-SEC 1.26

Equity companies, primarily in Latin America, are principally
engaged in operations in the Personal Care and Consumer
Tissue businesses.

At December 31, 2005, the Corporation’s equity compa-
nies and ownership interest were as follows: Kimberly-Clark
Lever, Ltd. (India) (50%), Kimberly-Clark de Mexico, S.A. de
C.V. and subsidiaries (47.9%), Olayan Kimberly-Clark Ara-
bia (49%), Olayan Kimberiy-Clark (Bahrain) WLL (49%) and
Tecnosur S.A. (Colombia) (34.3%).

Kimberly-Clark de Mexico, S.A. de C.V. is partially owned
by the public and its stock is publicly traded in Mexico. At
December 31, 2005, the Corporation’s investment in this eq-
uity company was $396.3 million, and the estimated fair value
of the investment was $2.0 billion based on the market price
of publicly traded shares.
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NEWMONT MINING CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)

Note 8 (In Part): Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill by reporting unit as of
December 31, 2005 and 2004 and changes in the carrying
amount of goodwill are summarized in the following table:

35

Australia/New Merchant

Nevada Zealand Exploration Banking Consolidated

Balance at January 1, 2004 $M $247 $1,129 $1,593 $3,010
Change in estimate of pre-acquisition tax contingencies — 4) — 40 36
Pajingo impairment charge — (52) — — (52)
Balance at December 31, 2004 41 191 1,129 1,633 2,994
Change in estimate of pre-acquisition tax contingencies — — 3) (1) (74)
Nevada impairment charge (1) — - — (41)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $— $191 $1,126 $1,562 $2,879

During 2005, annual testing for impairment pursuant to SFAS
No. 142 (comparison of implied goodwill value to carrying
value) resulted in an impairment charge against goodwill for
the Nevada Segment of $41. The impairment resulted from
a reevaluation of future production and operating costs that
indicated higher future operating and capital costs. The Com-
pany also adjusted the tax basis of certain assets originally
recorded as part of the purchase price allocation for the ac-
quisition of Normandy. The adjustment to goodwill in the Mer-
chant Banking Segment reflects the resolution of certain tax
contingencies established as part of the purchase price allo-
cation relating to the acquisition of Franco-Nevada.

During 2004, annual testing for impairment pursuant to
SFAS No. 142 (comparison of implied goodwill value to car-
rying value) resulted in an impairment charge against good-
will for the Pajingo operation (Australia/New Zealand Seg-
ment) of $52. The impairment resulted from a reevaluation of
future production and operating costs that indicated lower
grade material and higher future operating costs. The Com-
pany also adjusted valuation allowances, originally recorded
as part of the purchase price allocation for the acquisitions
of Normandy and Franco-Nevada, for deferred tax assets
related to capital loss carry-forwards in the Australia/New
Zealand Segment for the Tanami operation and in the Mer-
chant Banking Segment.

Note 28. Segment and Related Information

Newmont predominantly operates in a single industry,
namely exploration for and production of gold. Newmont’s
major operations include Nevada, Yanacocha, Batu Hijau and
Australia/New Zealand. Newmont also has an Exploration
Segment and a Merchant Banking Segment.

The Exploration Segment is responsible for all activities,
regardless of location, associated with the Company’s efforts
to discover new mineralized material that will advance into
proven and probable reserves.

Merchant Banking activities include the development of
value optimization strategies for operating and non-operating
assets, managing the equity investment portfolio, business
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development activities related to potential merger and ac-
quisition analysis and negotiations, managing and building
the royalty business, managing the investments in the down-
stream gold refining and distribution business, mobilizing
and monetizing inactive exploration properties, capitalizing
on Newmont’s proprietary technology know-how and act-
ing as an internal resource for other corporate divisions to
improve and maximize business outcomes. For segment re-
porting purposes, the Merchant Banking Segment is con-
sidered to be a separate operating segment because it en-
gages in activities from which it earns revenues and incurs
expenses and its operating results are regularly and sepa-
rately reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker.
The Company identifies its reportable segments as those
consolidated mining operations or functional groups that rep-
resent more than 10% of the combined revenue, profit or loss
or total assets of all reported operating segments. Consol-
idated mining operations or functional groups not meeting
this threshold are aggregated at the applicable geographic
or corporate level for segment reporting purposes. Earnings
from operations do not reflect general corporate expenses,
interest (except project-specific interest) or income taxes (ex-
cept for equity investments). intercompany revenue and ex-
pense amounts have been eliminated within each segment in
order to report on the basis that management uses internally
for evaluating segment performance.
During 2005, Newmont made certain reclassifications in its
segment reporting presentation for 2004 and 2003 to con-
form to changes in presentation reflected in management re-
porting. Newmont’s segments have been presented for 2005,
2004 and 20083 as follows:
¢ The Other Operations reportable segment includes the
Golden Giant, Zarafshan, La Herradura, Kori Kollo,
Minahasa, Ovacik and Mesquite gold operations.

¢ The Golden Grove copper operation and the Holloway
gold operation have been reclassified to discontinued
operations for all periods presented.

ATT-SEC 1.27
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2005
Australia/ Other Total
Nevada  Yanacocha New Zealand Batu Hijau Operations Operations
Sales, net:
Gold $1,053 $1,490 $ 718 $ 318 $208 $3,787
Copper $ — $ — $ — $ 672 $ — $ 672
Cost applicable to sales:
Gold $ 807 $ 487 $ 508 $ 109 $106 $2,017
Copper $ — $ — $ — $ 303 $ — $ 303
Depreciation, depletion and amortization:
Gold $ 124 $ 205 $ 118 $ 34 $ 29 $ 510
Copper $ — $ — $ — $ &7 $ — $ 87
Other $ — $ — $ 3 $ — $ 3 $ 6
Exploration $ 17 $ 6 $ 19 $ — $ 14 $ 56
Advanced projects, research and development $ — $ 8 $ — $ 2 $ 27 $ 37
Write-down of goodwill $ 4 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 4
Write-down of fong-lived assets $ — $ — $ 2 $ — $ 38 $ 40
Other income $ 8 $ 9 $ 7 $ 7 $ 6 $ 37
Interest expense, net $ — $ 1 $ — $ 43 $ 1 $ 45
Pre-tax income (loss) before minority interest and equity
income of affiliates $ 44 $ 793 $ 62 $ 419 $(12) $1,306
Equity income of affiliates $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Amortization of deferred (advanced) stripping, net $ @7 $ — $ M $ 1 $ (3) $ (56)
Capital expenditures $ 479 $ 225 $ 98 $ 65 $306 $1,173
Deferred stripping $ 149 $ — $ 19 $ (107) $10 $ 7
Goodwill $ — $ — $ 191 $ — $ — $ 191
Total assets $2,073 $1,575 $1,060 $2,251 $893 $7,852
Total Merchant Corporate
Operations  Exploration Banking and Other  Consolidated
Sales, net:
Gold $3,787 $ — $§ — $ (53) $ 3,734
Copper $ 672 $ — $ — $ — $ 672
Cost applicable to sales:
Gold $2,017 $ — $ — $ — $ 2,017
Copper $ 303 $ — $ — $ — $ 303
Depreciation, depletion and amortization:
Gold $ 510 $ — $ — $ — $ 510
Copper $ & $ — $§ — $ — $ 87
Other $ 6 $ — $ 2 $ 20 $ 47
Exploration $ 56 $ o1 $ — $ — $ 147
Advanced projects, research and development $ 37 $ — $ 16 $ 20 $ 73
Write-down of goodwill $ 4 $ — $§ — $§ — $ M
Write-down of long-lived assets $ 40 $ — $ — $ 3 $ 43
Other income $ 37 $ — $ 174 $ 58 $ 269
Interest expense, net $ 45 $ — $ — $ 53 $ 98
Pre-tax income (loss) before minority interest and equity income
of affiliates $1,306 $ (@91 $ 136 $ (287) $ 1,064
Equity income of affiliates — $ — $ 4 $ — $ 4
Amortization of deferred (advanced) stripping, net $ (56) $ — $ — $ — $ (56)
Capital expenditures $1,173 $ — $ 4 $ 49 $ 1,226
Deferred stripping $ M $§ — $§ — $ — $ 7N
Goodwill $ 191 $1,126 $1,562 $ — $ 2,879
Total assets from continuing operations $7,852 $1,131 $2,675 $2,260 $13,918
Assets held for sale $ 74
Total assets $13,992
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2004
Australia/ Other Total
Nevada  Yanacocha New Zealand Batu Hijau Operations Operations
Sales, net:
Gold $1,037 $1,250 $ 779 $ 288 $264 $3,618
Copper $ — $§ — $ — $ 786 $ — $ 786
Cost applicable to sales:
Gold $ 716 $ 432 $ 528 $ o1 $143 $1,910
Copper $ — $ — $ — $ 305 $ — $ 305
Depreciation, depletion and amortization:
Gold $ 127 $ 198 $ 126 $ 28 $ 47 $ 526
Copper $ — $ — $ — $ 90 $ — $ 90
Other $ — $ — $ 4 $ — $ 4 $ 8
Exploration $ 14 $ 4 $ 15 $ — $ 1 $ 34
Advanced projects, research and development $ 6 $ 16 $ — $ — $ 29 $ 51
Write-down of goodwill $ — $ — $ 52 $ — $ — $ 52
Write-down of long-lived assets $ — $ 4 $ 14 $ — $ 18 $ 36
Other income $ 7 $ 4 $ 18 $ 3 $ — $ 32
Interest expense, net $ — $ 1 $ — $ 43 $ 1 $ 45
Pre-tax income (loss) before minority interest and equity
income of affiliates $ 185 $ 597 $ 49 $ 524 $ @ $1,353
Equity income of affiliates $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle,
net of tax $ — $ — $ — $ (84) $ — $ (84)
Amortization of deferred (advanced) stripping, net $ (39 $ — $ 8 $ 38 $ (3 $§ 4
Capital expenditures $ 169 $ 232 $ 89 $ 35 $120 $ 645
Deferred stripping $ 101 $ — $ 12 $ (105) $ 11 $ 19
Goodwill $ M $ — $ 191 $§ — $ — $ 232
Total assets from continuing operations $1,614 $1,201 $1,066 $2,13 $700 $6,715
Total Merchant Corporate
Operations  Exploration Banking and Other Consolidated
Sales, net:
Gold $3,618 $ — $ — $ 7 $ 3,625
Copper $ 786 $ — 5 — $ — $ 786
Cost applicable to sales:
Gold $1,910 $ — $ — $ — $ 1,910
Copper $ 305 $ — $ — $ — $ 305
Depreciation, depletion and amortization:
Gold $ 526 $ — $ — $ — $ 526
Copper $ 90 $ — $ — $ — $ 90
Other $ 8 $ — $ 24 $ 14 $ 46
Exploration $ 4 $ 73 $ — $ — $ 107
Advanced projects, research and development $ 51 $ — $ 7 $ 22 $ 80
Write-down of goodwill $ 52 $ — $ — $ — $ 52
Write-down of long-lived assets $ 36 $ — $ 1 $ 2 $ 39
Other income $ 32 $§ — $ # $ 29 $ 102
Interest expense, net $ 45 $ - $ — $ 53 $ 98
Pre-tax income (loss) before minority interest and equity income
of affiliates $1,353 $ 74 $ 6 $ (174) $ 1,111
Equity income of affiliates $ — $ - $ 2 $ — $ 2
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax $ (84) $ — $ — $ 37 $ @)
Amortization of deferred (advanced) stripping, net $ 4 $ — $ — $ — $ 4
Capital expenditures $ 645 $§ — $ 5 $ 33 $ 683
Deferred stripping $ 19 $ — $ — $ — $ 19
Goodwill $ 232 $1,129 $1,63 $ — $ 2,994
Total assets from continuing operations $6,715 $1,147 $2,514 $2,116 $12,492
Assets held for sale $ 284
Total assets $12,776
AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques ATT-SEC 1.27
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2003
Australia/ Other Total
Nevada  Yanacocha New Zealand Batu Hijau Operations Operations
Sales, net:
Gold $ 901 $1,037 $ 732 $— $365 $3,035
Copper $ — $ — $ — $— $ — $ —
Cost applicable to sales:
Gold $ 598 $ 362 $ 484 $— $190 $1,634
Copper $ — $ — $ — $— $ — $ —
Depreciation, depletion and amortization:
Gold $ 138 $ 160 $ 122 $— $6 $ 488
Copper $ — $ — $ — $— $ — $ —
Other $ — $ — $ 5 $— $ 3 $ 8
Exploration $ 17 $ 13 $ 13 $— $ 1 $ 44
Advanced projects, research and development $ — $ — $ — $— $ 16 $ 16
Wirite-down of long-lived assets $ — $ — $ 2 $— $ 28 $ 30
Other income $ 2 $ — $ 16 $— $ — $ 18
Interest expense, net $ — $ 3 $ — $— $ 1 $ 4
Pre-tax income (loss) before minority interest and equity
income of affiliates $ 150 $ 476 $ 60 $— $ 47 $ 733
Equity income (loss) of affiliates $ — $ — $ 1 $— $ — $ 1
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle,
net of tax $ (14) $ (33) $ $— $ ) $ (59)
Amortization of deferred (advanced) stripping, net $ (29 $ — $ (1) $— $ (N $ (37)
Capital expenditures $ 112 $ 206 $ 101 $— $ 39 $ 458
Deferred stripping $ 62 $ — $ 19 — $ 9 $ 90
Goodwill $ 41 $ — $ 247 $— $ — $ 288
Total assets from continuing operations $1,491 $1,204 $1,327 $— $606 $4,628
Total Merchant Corporate
Operations  Exploration Banking and Other Consolidated
Sales, net:
Gold $3,035 $ — $ — $ 24 $ 3,059
Copper $ — $ — $ — $ — $ -
Cost applicable to sales:
Gold $1,634 $ — $ — $ — $ 1,634
Copper $ — 5§ — $ — $ — $ -
Depreciation, depletion and amortization:
Gold $ 488 $ — $ — $ — $ 488
Copper $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Other $ 8 $ — $ 26 $ 8 $ 42
Exploration $ 44 $ 32 $ — $ — $ 76
Advanced project, research and development $ 16 $ — $ 7 $ 12 $ 35
Write-down of long-lived assets $ 30 $ — $ 2 $ 3 $ 35
Other income $ 18 $ — $ 29 $ 137 $ 451
Interest expense, net $ 4 $ — $ 1 $ 84 $ 89
Pre-tax income (loss) before minority interest and equity income
of affiliates $ 733 $ (36) $ 301 $ (67) $ 931
Equity income (loss) of affiliates $ 1 $ — $ — $ (36) $ (35
Cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle, net of tax $ (59 $ — $§ — $ 24 $ (35
Amortization of deferred (advanced) stripping, net $ (37 $ — $ — $ — $ (37
Capital expenditures $ 458 $ 1 $ 2 $ 23 $ 484
Deferred stripping $ 90 $ — $ — $ — $ 90
Goodwill $ 288 $1,129 $1,593 $ — $ 3,010
Total assets from continuing operations $4,628 $1,183 $2,091 $2,495 $10,397
Assets held for sale $ 301
Total assets $10,698
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Revenues from export and domestic sales were as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Europe $3,486 $3,684 $2,911
India 217 22 —
Japan 267 312 —
Korea 172 168 —
United States — 97 5
Other 204 128 143

$4,406 $4,411 $3,059

Long-lived assets, excluding deferred tax assets, in the
United States and other countries are as follows:

2005 2004 2003
United States(" $ 5,605 $5,023 $4.275
Australia 700 925 1,256
Canada 316 157 159
Indonesia 1,808 1,858 799
Peru 1,110 1,008 920
Other 900 618 - 528

$10,439 $9,589 $7,937

1.30 For 2005, 171 survey companies were on a 52-53
week fiscal year. During 2005, one survey company changed
the date of their fiscal year end. Examples of fiscal year end
changes and of fiscal year definitions follow.

1.31
TABLE 1-4: MONTH OF FISCAL YEAR END

2005 2004 2003 2002
30 30 30 31

8 8 9 9
17 17 16 16
8 9 8 7

18 18 18 21

() Goodwill allocated to Exploration and Merchant Banking (see
Note 8) is global in nature and has been allocated to the United
States, the Company’s headquarters.

The Company is not economically dependent on a limited
number of customers for the sale of its product because gold
can be sold through numerous gold market traders world-
wide. In 2005, sales to one customer, Bank of Nova Scotia,
totaled approximately $1,214 or 28% of total sales. In 2004,
sales to two customers, Bank of Nova Scotia and Barclays,
totaled approximately $1,056 and $1,137, respectively, or
25% of total sales, each. In 2003, sales to one customer.
Bank of Nova Scotia, totaled approximately $1,455 or 48%
of total sales.

NATURAL BUSINESS YEAR

1.28 A natural business year is the period of 12 consecu-
tive months which ends when the business activities of an
entity have reached the lowest point in their annual cycle.
In many instances, the natural business year of a company
ends December 31.

1.29 Table 1-4 summarizes, by the month in which a fiscal
year ends, the fiscal year endings of the survey companies.
Fortabulation purposes, if a fiscal year ended in the first week
of a month, the fiscal year was considered to have ended in
the preceding month.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques
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Change in Date of Fiscal Year End
1.32
THE WALT DISNEY COMPANY

Consolidated Statements of Income

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Reporting Period

Effective with the beginning of fiscal 2005 and in connec-
tion with the completion of the Company’s implementation of
new company-wide accounting systems in late fiscal 2004,
the Company changed its reporting period from a calendar
period end to a period end that coincides with the cut-off
of the Company’s accounting systems. The accounting sys-
tems cut off on the Saturday closest to the calendar quarter
end. Accordingly, fiscal 2005 began on October 1, 2004 and
ended on October 1, 2005. This resulted in the same number
of reporting days in each year, since fiscal 2004 included the
additional day associated with the leap year. The change did
not have a material impact on year-over-year earnings com-
parisons. Fiscal 2009 will be the first fifty-three week fiscal
year following this change.

Definition of Fiscal Year
1.33
JACK IN THE BOX INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies (In Part)

Basis of Presentation and Fiscal Year

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and the ac-
counts of any variable interest entities where we are deemed
the primary beneficiary. All significant intercompany transac-
tions are eliminated. Certain prior year amounts in the con-
solidated financial statements have been reclassified to con-
form to the fiscal 2005 presentation. Our fiscal year is 52 or

ATT-SEC 1.32

2005 2004 2003

October 1, 2005 September 30, 2004

2005 2004 2003

53 weeks ending the Sunday closest to September 30. Fiscal
years 2005 and 2003 include 52 weeks, and fiscal year 2004
includes 53 weeks.

1.34
J.C. PENNEY COMPANY, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1) (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal Year

Effective January 29, 2005, the Company changed its fiscal
year end to the Saturday closest to January 31, to be in align-
ment with the fiscal calendar prevalently used in the retail in-
dustry. Historically, the Company’s fiscal year has ended on
the last Saturday in January. This change had no impact on
fiscal 2004 or 2005 reported results. Fiscal 2006 will contain
53 weeks. Under the Company’s historical reporting calen-
dar, this would not have occurred until fiscal 2008. Unless
otherwise stated, references to years in this report relate to
fiscal years rather than to calendar years.

Fiscal Year Ended Weeks
2005 January 28, 2006 52
2004 January 29, 2005 52
2003 January 31, 2004 53

The accounts of Lojas Renner S.A. (Renner), which are now
included in Income/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations for
all periods presented, were on a calendar-year basis.
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1.35
THE NEW YORK TIMES COMPANY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year end is the last Sunday in Decem-
ber. Each of the fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 comprises
52 weeks. Unless specifically stated otherwise, all references
to 2005, 2004 and 2003 refer to our fiscal years ended, or the
dates as of, December 25, 2005, December 26, 2004 and De-
cember 28, 2003.

COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.36 Rule 14a-3 requires that annual reports to stockhold-
ers should include comparative balance sheets, and state-
ments of income and of cash flows for each of the 3 most
recent fiscal years. All of the survey companies are registered
with the SEC and conformed to the aforementioned require-
ments of Rule 14a-3.

1.37 In their annual reports, the survey companies usually
present an income statement as the first financial statement.
For 2005, 321 survey companies presented an income state-
ment first followed by a balance sheet; 226 survey companies
presented a balance sheet first followed by an income state-
ment; 14 survey companies presented an income statement
first followed by a statement of cash flows; and 21 survey
companies presented an income statement first combined
with a statement of comprehensive income or followed by a
separate statement of comprehensive income.

1.38 The financial statements, with rare exception, were
presented on consecutive pages. Certain survey companies
did not present their financial statements on consecutive
pages but interspersed the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
among the financial statements by having comments dis-
cussing the content of a financial statement follow the pre-
sentation of a financial statement. Such interspersed material
was not covered by an auditor’s report and was not pre-
sented in lieu of notes. For 2005, two survey companies did
not present their financial statements on consecutive pages.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

1.39 Table 1-5 shows that most of the survey companies
state financial statement amounts in either thousands or mil-
lions of dollars.
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1.40

TABLE 1-5: ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS
2005 2004 2003 2002

To nearest dollar 12 12 21 21
To nearest thousand dollars:
Omitting 000.........ccovnrreeecersnereeerrnnees 327 322 322 336
Presenting 000................ 2 3 5 4

To nearest million dollars 259 263 252 239

Total Companies..........cccovurenerrnnnce 600 600 600 600

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.41 SEC Regulations S-X, Accounting Rules—Form and
Content of Financial Statements, and S-K, and Statement on
Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 32, Adequacy of Disclosure in
Financial Statements, state the need for adequate disclosure
in financial statements. Normally the financial statements
alone cannot present all information necessary for adequate
disclosure without considering appended notes which dis-
close information of the sort listed below:

Changes in accounting principles.

Retroactive adjustments.

Long-term lease agreements.

Assets subject to lien.

Preferred stock data.

Pension and retirement plans.

Restrictions on the availability of retained earnings for cash

dividend purposes.

Contingencies and commitments.

Depreciation and depletion policies.

Stock option or stock purchase plans.

Consolidation policies.

Computation of earnings per share.

Subsequent events.

Quarterly data.

Segment information.

Financial instruments.

1.42 Table 1-6 summarizes the manner in which financial
statements refer to notes. Notes on specific topics are illus-
trated in this publication in the sections dealing with such
topics.
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TABLE 1-6: NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2005 2004 2003 2002

General reference only...........ccccvvvenne. 511 514 509 514
General and direct references... 89 86 91 85
Direct reference only.........ccocccnernnen. - — — 1
Total Companies.............ccoocorvrerenncn. 600 600 600 600

ATT-SEC 143



42 Accounting Trends & Techniques

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

1.44 Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 22,
Disclosure of Accounting Policies, requires that the signifi-
cant accounting policies of an entity be presented as an in-
tegral part of the financial statements of the entity. APB Opin-
ion No. 22 sets forth guidelines as to the content and format
of disclosures of accounting policies. APB Opinion No. 22
states that the preferable format is to present a Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies preceding notes to financial
statements or as the initial note. During 2005, 467 survey
companies presented the Summary of Significant Account-
ing Policies as either the first footnote or as a separate pre-
sentation following the last financial statement and preced-
ing the footnotes. Of the remainder, most survey companies
presented the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
as the second footnote following a footnote which described
the nature of operations.

1.45 Table 1-7 shows the nature of information frequently
disclosed in summaries of accounting policies and the num-
ber of survey companies disclosing such information. Exam-
ples of summaries of accounting policies follows.

1.46
TABLE 1-7: DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Number of Companies

2005 2004 2003 2002
Revenue recognition...........c.cc.cveeeee. 586 586 587 584
Consolidation policy...... . 578 572 572 576
Use of estimates....... 575 570 571 576
Property.....ccoeeeeeerenermneensecens . 574 565 562 556
Stock-based compensation................. 549 554 567 483
Cash equivalents............ccoeeervrrereernnens 543 553 551 537

538 547 552 567
Impairment..........oooceneeverecens 533 526 503 540
Amortization of intangibles.... .. 528 515 512 509
Inventory pricing..........coe...... 509 514 518 522
Interperiod tax allocation....... 487 477 464 444
Financial instruments................ 479 496 505 487
Translation of foreign currency. 440 436 441 420

Depreciation methods...

Earnings per share calculation............. 376 370 402 386
Nature of operations 323 295 325 361
Advertising CostS..........coovveneiiceinniin 283 2713 211 250
Research and development costs........ 207 217 213 206
Credit risk concentrations .................... 188 184 189 178
Fiscal years.......ccccouueennc.. . 168 166 176 181
Employee benefits 168 149 172 167
Environmental COStS.........ccvvereeeeneeenne 137 134 138 133
Capitalization of interest....................... 85 85 92 89
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1.47
INTERFACE, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

The Company is a recognized leader in the worldwide com-
mercial interiors market, offering modular and broadioom
floorcoverings, interior fabrics and specialty products. The
Company manufactures modular and broadioom carpet fo-
cusing on the high quality, designer-oriented sector of the
market, and provides specialized carpet replacement, instal-
lation and maintenance services. The Company also pro-
duces interior fabrics and upholstery products. Addition-
ally, the Company offers Intersept, a proprietary antimicrobial
used in a number of interior finishes, and sponsors the En-
virosense Consortium in its mission to address workplace
environmental issues.

In 2004, the Company committed to a plan to exit its owned
Re:Source dealer businesses (as well as the results of op-
erations of a small Australian dealer business and a small
residential fabrics business), and in the third quarter 2004
the Company began to dispose of several of the dealer sub-
sidiaries. The Company has now sold or terminated ongoing
operations at each of its owned dealer businesses. In addi-
tion, in September 2003, the Company sold its U.S. raised/
access flooring business. The results of operations and re-
lated disposal costs, gains and losses for these businesses
were classified as discontinued operations for all periods
presented.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of the Company and its subsidiaries. All material intercom-
pany accounts and transactions are eliminated. investments
in which the Company does not have the ability to exercise
significant influence are carried at the lower of cost or esti-
mated realizable value. The Company monitors investments
for other than temporary declines in value and makes reduc-
tions in carrying values when appropriate.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ac-
counting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that af-
fect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the dis-
closure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting periods. Examples include
provisions for returns, bad debts, product claims reserves,
rebates, estimates of costs to complete performance con-
tracts, inventory obsolescence and the length of product life
cycles, accruals associated with restructuring activities, in-
come tax exposures and valuation allowances, environmen-
tal liabilities, carrying value of goodwill and property and
equipment. Actual results could vary from these estimates.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when the following criteria are met:
persuasive evidence of an agreement exists, delivery has oc-
curred or services have been rendered, price to the buyer is
fixed and determinable, and collectibility is reasonably as-
sured. Delivery is not considered to have occurred until the
customer takes title and assumes the risks and rewards of
ownership, which is generally on the date of shipment. Pro-
visions for discounts, sales returns and allowances are esti-
mated using historical experience, current economic trends,
and the Company’s quality performance. The related provi-
sion is recorded as a reduction of sales and cost of goods
sold in the same period that the revenue is recognized. Ma-
terial differences may result in the amount and timing of net
sales for any period if management makes different judg-
ments or uses different estimates.

Revenues and estimated profits on performance contracts,
which are cost-type or fixed-fee contracts to sell and in-
stall the Company’s flooring products, are recognized under
the percentage of completion method of accounting using
the cost-to-cost methodology. This method is used because
management considers costs incurred to be the best avail-
able measure of progress on these contracts. Estimates are
made of the costs to complete a contract and revenue is rec-
ognized based on the estimated progression to completion.
Profit estimates are revised periodically based upon changes
in facts. Any losses identified on contracts are recognized
immediately.

Shipping and handling fees billed to customers are classi-
fied in net sales in the consolidated statements of operations.
Shipping and handling costs incurred are classified in cost
of sales in the consolidated statements of operations.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred
and are included in the selling, general and administrative ex-
pense caption in the consolidated statements of operations.
Research and development expense was $9.6 million, $8.0
million, and $9.7 million for the years ended 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments

Highly liquid investments with insignificant interest rate risk
and with original maturities of three months or less are clas-
sified as cash and cash equivalents. Investments with matu-
rities greater than three months and less than one year are
classified as short-term investments.

Cash payments for interest amounted to approximately
$43.4 million, $42.1 million, and $43.2 million, for the years
ended 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively. Income tax pay-
ments amounted to approximately $14.3 million, $9.6 million,
and $6.8 million for the years ended 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively. During the years ended 2005, 2004, and 2003,
the Company received income tax refunds of $0.1 million,
$0.6 million, and $22.3 million, respectively.

Cash flows from discontinued operations are included in
operating cash flows for all years presented, as there were no
investing or financing activities related to these discontinued
operations.
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Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost (standards approx-
imating the first-in, first-out method) or market. Costs in-
cluded in inventories are based on invoiced costs and/or pro-
duction costs, as applicable. Included in production costs are
material, direct labor and allocated overhead. The Company
writes down inventories for the difference between the carry-
ing value of the inventories and their estimated market value.
If actual market conditions are less favorable than those
projected by management, additional write-downs may be
required.

Management estimates its reserves for inventory obsoles-
cence by continuously examining its inventories to determine
if there are indicators that carrying values exceed net real-
izable values. Experience has shown that significant indi-
cators that could require the need for additional inventory
write-downs are the age of the inventory, the length of its
product life cycles, anticipated demand for the Company’s
products, and current economic conditions. While manage-
ment believes that adequate write-downs for inventory ob-
solescence have been made in the consolidated financial
statements, consumer tastes and preferences will continue
to change and the Company could experience additional in-
ventory write-downs in the future.

Rebates

The Company has agreements to receive cash consideration
from certain of its vendors, including rebates and coopera-
tive marketing reimbursements. The amounts received from
its vendors are generally presumed to be a reduction of the
prices the Company pays for their products and, therefore,
such amounts are reflected as either a reduction of cost of
sales on the accompanying consolidated statements of op-
erations, or, if the product inventory is still on hand at the
reporting date, it is reflected as a reduction of “Inventories”
on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Vendor
rebates are typically dependent upon reaching minimum pur-
chase thresholds. The Company evaluates the likelihood of
reaching purchase thresholds using past experience and cur-
rent year forecasts. When rebates can be reasonably esti-
mated, the Company records a portion of the rebate as the
Company makes progress towards the purchase threshold.

When the Company receives direct reimbursements for
costs incurred in marketing the vendor’s product or service,
the amount received is recorded as an offset to selling, gen-
eral and administrative expenses on the accompanying con-
solidated statements of operations.

Assets and Liabilities of Businesses Held for Sale

The Company considers businesses to be held for sale when
management approves and commits to a formal plan to ac-
tively market a business for sale and the sale is considered
probable. Upon designation as held for sale, the carrying
value of the assets of the business are recorded at the lower
of their carrying value or their estimated fair value, less costs
to sell. The Company ceases to record depreciation expense
at that time.

Property and Equipment and Long-Lived Assets

Property and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives: buildings and improvements—ten to
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forty years; and furniture and equipment—three to twelve
years. Interest costs for the construction/development of cer-
tain long-term assets are capitalized and amortized over the
related assets’ estimated useful lives. The Company capital-
ized net interest costs of approximately $0.9 million, $0.6 mil-
lion, and $0.3 million for the fiscal years ended 2005, 2004,
and 2003, respectively. Depreciation expense amounted to
approximately $27.4 million, $27.7 million, and $29.1 mil-
lion for the years ended 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.
These amounts exclude depreciation expense of approxi-
mately zero, $2.1 million, and $3.1 million for 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively, related to the discontinued operations
of the Re:Source dealer businesses and U.S. raised/access
flooring business.

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carry-
ing amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of the ex-
pected future undiscounted cash flow is less than the carry-
ing amount of the asset, a loss is recognized for the difference
between the fair value and carrying value of the asset. Repair
and maintenance costs are charged to operating expense as
incurred.

Gooawill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair
value of net assets acquired in business combinations ac-
counted for as purchases. Prior to the adoption of State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” on December 31,
2001, goodwill was amortized on a straight-line basis over
the periods benefited, principally twenty-five to forty years.
Accumulated amortization amounted to approximately $77.3
million at both January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005, and cu-
mulative impairment losses recognized were $86.2 million as
of both January 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB?”) finalized SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,”
and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”
SFAS No. 141 requires the use of the purchase method of
accounting and prohibits the use of the pooling-of-interests
method of accounting for business combinations initiated af-
ter June 30, 2001. SFAS No.141 also requires that the Com-
pany recognize acquired intangible assets apart from good-
will if the acquired intangible assets meet certain criteria.
SFAS No. 141 applies to all business combinations initiated
after June 30, 2001, and to purchase business combinations
completed on or after July 1, 2001. It also requires, upon
adoption of SFAS No. 142, that the Company reclassify the
carrying amounts of intangible assets and goodwill based on
the criteria in SFAS No. 141.

The Company’s previous business combinations were ac-
counted for using the purchase method. As of January 1,
2006 and January 2, 2005 the net carrying amount of good-
will was $193.7 million and $205.9 million, respectively. Other
intangible assets were $6.7 million and $4.8 million as of Jan-
uary 1, 2006 and January 2, 2005, respectively. Amortization
expense during the years ended 2005, 2004 and 2003 was
$0.6 million, $0.2 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

During the fourth quarter of 2005 and 2004, the Company
performed the annual goodwill impairment test required by
SFAS No. 142. In effecting the impairment testing, we used
an outside consultant to help prepare valuations of reporting
units in accordance with the applicable standards, and those
valuations were compared with the respective book values
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of the reporting units to determine whether any goodwill im-
pairment existed. In preparing the valuations, past, present
and future expectations of performance were considered.
No additional impairment was indicated. However, an after-
tax impairment charge of $29.0 million was recorded in fis-
cal year 2004 related to our discontinued Re:Source dealer
businesses.

Fiscal Year

The Company'’s fiscal year is the 52 or 53 week period ending
on the Sunday nearest December 31. All references herein
to “2005” “2004,” and “2003,” mean the fiscal years ended
January 1, 2006, January 2, 2005, and December 28, 2003,
respectively. Fiscal years 2005, 2004 and 2003 comprised
52, 53, and 52 weeks, respectively.

1.48
MOHAWK INDUSTRIES, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Mohawk Industries, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the “Com-
pany” or “Mohawk”). All significant intercompany balances
and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and as-
sumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabili-
ties at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting pe-
riod. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

b) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers investments with an original ma-
turity of three months or less when purchased to be cash
equivalents.

¢) Accounts Receivable and Revenue Recognition

The Company is principally a carpet, rugs, ceramic tile and
laminate manufacturer and sells carpet, rugs, ceramic tile,
natural stone, hardwood, resilient and laminate flooring prod-
ucts in the United States. In addition, the Company manu-
factures laminate and sells carpet, rugs and laminate flooring
products in Europe principally for residential and commercial
use. The Company grants credit to customers, most of whom
are retail-flooring dealers and commercial end users, under
credit terms that the Company believes are customary in the
industry.

The Company warrants certain qualitative attributes of its
flooring products. The Company has recorded a provision
for estimated warranty and related costs, based on historical
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experience and periodically adjusts these provisions to re-
flect actual experience.

Revenues are recognized when there is persuasive evi-
dence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred, the price
has been fixed or is determinable, and collectibility can be
reasonably assured. The Company provides allowances for
expected cash discounts, returns, claims and doubtful ac-
counts based upon historical bad debt and claims experi-
ence and periodic evaluations of specific customer accounts.
Royalty revenues received from third parties for patents are
recognized based on contractual agreements. The amount of
patent revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 was
$10,461 and is recorded in net sales.

d) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market (net re-
alizable value). Cost is determined using the last-in, first-out
method (LIFO) for approximately 86% (69% of total inventory)
of the inventory within the Mohawk segment, which matches
current costs with current revenues, and the first-in, first-out
method (FIFO), which is used to value inventory within the
Dal-Tile and Unilin segments and inventory not valued un-
der the LIFO method in the Mohawk segment. Inventories on
hand are compared against anticipated future usage, which
is a function of historical usage, anticipated future selling
price, expected sales below cost, excessive quantities and
an evaluation for obsolescence. Actual results could differ
from assumptions used to value obsolete inventory, exces-
sive inventory or inventory expected to be sold below cost
and additional reserves may be required.

e) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, including
capitalized interest. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-
line basis over the estimated remaining useful lives, which
are 25-35 years for buildings and improvements, 5-15 years
for machinery and equipment, the shorter of the estimated
useful life or lease term for leasehold improvements and 3-7
years for furniture and fixtures.

f) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Finan-
cial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” the Company tests goodwill and
other intangible assets with indefinite lives for impairment on
an annual basis (or on an interim basis if an event occurs
that might reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its
carrying value). The Company conducts testing for impair-
ment during the fourth quarter of its fiscal year. Intangible
assets that do not have indefinite lives are amortized based
on average lives, which range from 7-16 years.

g) Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liabil-
ity method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of exist-
ing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and
operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered
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or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of
a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period
that includes the enactment date.

h) Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of re-
ceivables, accounts payable, accrued expenses and long-
term debt. The carrying amount of receivables, accounts
payable and accrued expenses approximates its fair value
because of the short-term maturity of such instruments. The
carrying amount of the Company’s floating rate debt approx-
imates its fair value. Interest rates that are currently available
to the Company for issuance of long-term debt with simi-
lar terms and remaining maturities are used to estimate the
fair value of the Company’s long-term debt. The estimated
fair value of the Company’s long-term debt at December 31,
2005 and 2004 was $3,282,715 and $961,120, compared to
a carrying amount of $3,308,370 and $891,341, respectively.

i) Derivative Instruments

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activi-
ties requires the Company to recognize all derivatives on the
consolidated balance sheet at fair value. Derivatives that are
not qualifying hedges must be adjusted to fair value through
earnings. If the derivative is a qualifying hedge, depending
on the nature of the hedge, changes in its fair value are either
offset against the change in fair value of assets, liabilities, or
firm commitments through earnings or recognized in other
comprehensive income until the hedged item is recognized
in earnings. The Company engages in activities that expose
it to market risks, including the effects of changes in inter-
est rates, exchange rates and natural gas commodity prices.
Financial exposures are managed as an integral part of the
Company’s risk management program, which seeks to re-
duce the potentially adverse effect that the volatility of the
interest rate, exchange rate and natural gas commodity mar-
kets may have on operating results. The Company does not
engage in speculative transactions, nor does it hold or issue
financial instruments for trading purposes.

The Company formally documents hedging instruments
and hedging items, as well as its risk management objec-
tive and strategy for undertaking hedged items. This pro-
cess includes linking all derivatives that are designated as
fair value and cash flow hedges to specific assets, liabilities
or firm commitments on the consolidated balance sheet or
to forecasted transactions. The Company also formally as-
sesses, both at inception and on an ongoing basis, whether
the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair value or cash
flows of hedged items. When it is determined that a deriva-
tive is not highly effective, the derivative expires, or is sold,
terminated, or exercised, or the derivative is discontinued
because it is unlikely that a forecasted transaction will occur,
the Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively
for that specific hedge instrument.

§) Advertising Costs and Vendor Consideration

Advertising and promotion expenses are charged to earn-
ings during the period in which they are incurred. Advertis-
ing and promotion expenses included in selling, administra-
tive, and general expenses were $41,339 in 2005, $31,474 in
2004 and $26,990 in 2003.
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Vendor consideration, generally cash, is classified as a re-
duction of net sales, unless specific criteria are met regarding
goods or services that the vendor may receive in return for
this consideration. The Company makes various payments
to customers, including slotting fees, advertising allowances,
buy-downs and co-op advertising. All of these payments re-
duce gross sales with the exception of co-op advertising.
Co-op advertising is classified as a selling, general and ad-
ministrative expense in accordance with EITF 01-09. Co-op
advertising expenses, a component of advertising and pro-
motion expenses, were $14,408 in 2005, $10,389 in 2004 and
$9,355 in 2003.

k) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and intangibles subject to amortization are
reviewed for impairment when changes in circumstances in-
dicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be re-
coverable. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the
expected undiscounted cash flows of the asset, an impair-
ment charge is recognized equal to the amount by which the
carrying amount exceeds the expected undiscounted cash
flows. Assets to be disposed of are reported at the lower
of the carrying amount or fair value less estimated costs of
disposal and are no longer depreciated.

l) Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s subsidiaries that operate outside the United
States use their local currency as the functional currency,
with the exception of operations carried out in Canada and
Mexico, in which case the functional currency is the U.S.
dollar. Other than Canada and Mexico, the functional cur-
rency is translated into U.S. dollars for balance sheet ac-
counts using the month end rates in effect as of the bal-
ance sheet date and average exchange rate for revenue and

expense accounts for each respective period. The translation
adjustments are deferred as a separate component of stock-
holders’ equity, within other comprehensive income, net of
tax where applicable. Gains or losses resulting from transac-
tions denominated in foreign currencies are included in other
income or expense, within the consolidated statements of
earnings. The assets and liabilities of the Company’s Canada
and Mexico operations are re-measured using a month end
rate, except for non-monetary assets and liabilities, which
are re-measured using the historical exchange rate. Income
and expense accounts are re-measured using an average
monthly rate for the period, except for expenses related to
those balance sheet accounts that are re-measured using
historical exchange rates. The resulting re-measurement ad-
justment is reported in the consolidated statements of oper-
ations when incurred.

m) Earnings per Share (“EPS’)

Basic net earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated using net
earnings available to common stockholders divided by the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock out-
standing during the year. Diluted EPS is similar to basic EPS
except that the weighted-average number of shares is in-
creased to include the number of additional common shares
that would have been outstanding if the potentially dilutive
common shares had been issued.

Dilutive common stock options are included in the diluted
EPS calculation using the treasury stock method. Common
stock options that were not included in the diluted EPS com-
putation because the options’ exercise price was greater than
the average market price of the common shares for the pe-
riods presented were 351, 21 and 605 for 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

Computations of basic and diluted earnings per share are
presented in the following table:

2005 2004 2003
Net earnings $358,195 $368,622 $310,149
Weighted-average common and dilutive potential common shares outstanding:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 66,932 66,682 66,251
Add weighted-average dilutive potential common shares—options to purchase common
shares, net 712 875 870
Weighted-average common and dilutive potential common shares outstanding 67,644 67,557 67,121
Basic earnings per share $ 535 $ 553 $ 468
Diluted eamnings per share $ 530 $ 546 $ 462
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n) Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company adopted the dis-
closure provisions of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation-Transition and Disclosure.” This state-
ment amends SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based
Compensation,” (“SFAS 123”) to provide alternative methods
of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based compensation and re-
quires prominent disclosure in both the annual and interim fi-
nancial statements of the method of accounting used and the
financial impact of stock-based compensation. As permit-
ted by SFAS. 123, the Company accounts for stock options
granted as prescribed under Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,”
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which recognizes compensation cost based upon the intrin-
sic value of the award.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (re-
vised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”"), which
replaces SFAS 123, and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” SFAS 123R
requires all share-based payments to employees, including
grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the fi-
nancial statements based on their fair values. Transition may
be accomplished using either the modified prospective or
modified retrospective method. The Company currently mea-
sures compensation costs related to share-based payments
under APB Opinion No. 25. In April 2005, the Securities and
Exchange Commission announced that the effective date of
SFAS 123R should be no later than the beginning of the first
fiscal year beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company will
adopt SFAS 123R in the first quarter of 2006 after completing
its evaluation.

If the Company had elected to recognize compensation
expense under SFAS 123 based upon the fair value at the
grant dates for awards under its plans, the Company’s net
earnings per share would have been reduced as follows:

2005 2004 2003
$358,195  $368,622  $310,149

Net earnings as reported

Deduct: Stock-based employee
compensation expense
determined under fair value
based method for all options,
net of related tax effects (8,628) (7,519) (6,284)

Pro forma net earnings $349,567  $361,103  $303,865
Net earnings per common share

(basic)
As reported $§ 535 § 553 § 468
Pro forma 522 5.42 4.59
Net earnings per common share

(diluted)
As reported 5.30 5.46 4.62
Pro forma 5.18 5.36 4.54

The average fair value of options granted during 2005, 2004
and 2003 was $37.29, $34.39 and $24.73, respectively. This
fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pric-
ing model based on a weighted-average market price at grant
date of $87.19 in 2005, $74.62 in 2004 and $53.93 in 2003
and the following weighted-average assumptions:

2005 2004 2003

Dividend yield — - —
Risk-free interest rate 4.0% 2.9% 2.3%
Volatility 37.7%  431%  44.9%
Expected life (years) 6 6 6

o) Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income includes foreign currency transla-
tion of assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries, effects
of exchange rate changes on intercompany balances of a
long-term nature and transactions and derivative financial
instruments designated as cash flow hedges. The Company
does not provide income taxes on currency translation ad-
justments, as earnings from foreign subsidiaries are consid-
ered to be indefinitely reinvested.
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Amounts recorded in Accumulated other comprehensive
income on the Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’
Equity for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
20083 are as follows:

Translation Hedge  Tax expense

Adjustment  Instruments (benefit) Total
2003 $ 47 $ 3,569 $(1,302) $ 2,314
2004 (1,628) (1,280) 467 (2,441)
2005 (48,702) 1,998 (729) (47,433)

p) Effect of New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
109-1, “Application of FASB Statement No. 109, “Account-
ing for Income Taxes” (“SFAS No. 109”) to the Tax Deduc-
tion on Qualified Production Activities Provided by the Amer-
ican Jobs Creation Act of 2004” (“FSP 109-1”). The American
Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “Jobs Act”), enacted October
22, 2004, provides a tax deduction for income from qualified
domestic production activities. FSP 109-1 provides the treat-
ment for the deduction as a special deduction as described
in SFAS No. 109. FSP 109-1 is effective prospectively as of
January 1, 2005. The adoption of FSP 109-1 did not have a
significant impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In December 2004, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position
109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign
Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs
Creation Act of 2004” (“FSP 109-2”), which provides guid-
ance under SFAS No. 109 with respect to recording the po-
tential impact of the repatriation provisions of the Jobs Act
on enterprises’ income tax expense and deferred tax liability.
FSP 109-2 states that an enterprise is allowed time beyond
the financial reporting period of enactment to evaluate the
effect of the Jobs Act on its plan for reinvestment or repa-
triation of foreign earnings for purposes of applying FASB
Statement No. 109. The Company did not elect to repatriate
any foreign earnings during 2005 and accordingly, the adop-
tion of FSP 109-2 did not have a significant impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inven-
tory Costs-An Amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4” (“SFAS
151”). SFAS 151 amends the guidance in ARB No. 43, Chap-
ter 4, “Inventory Pricing,” to clarify the accounting for abnor-
mal amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs
and wasted material (spoilage). Among other provisions, the
new rule requires that items such as idle facility expense,
excessive spoilage, double freight, and re-handling costs be
recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether
they meet the criterion of “so abnormal” as stated in ARB No.
43. Additionally, SFAS 151 requires that the allocation of fixed
production overhead to the costs of conversion be based on
the normal capacity of the production facilities. SFAS 151 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The
Company will adopt SFAS 151 effective January 1, 2006 and
does not expect its adoption will have a material impact on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In March 2005, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
No. 47, “Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obili-
gations, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143”
(“FIN 47), which requires an entity to recognize a liability
for the fair value of a conditional asset retirement obligation
when incurred if the liability’s fair value can be reasonably
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estimated. FIN 47 is effective no later than the end of fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2005. Effective December
31, 2005, the Company adopted FIN 47 which did not have
a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements.

In May 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No, 154, “Account-
ing Changes and Error Corrections—a replacement of APB
Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” (“SFAS 1547).
This Statement replaces APB Opinion No. 20, “Account-
ing Changes,” and FASB Statement No. 3, “Reporting Ac-
counting Changes in Interim Financial Statements.” SFAS
154 requires retrospective application to prior periods’ finan-
cial statements for changes in accounting principle, unless
it is impracticable to determine either the period-specific ef-
fects or the cumulative effect of the change. SFAS 154 also
requires that a change in depreciation, amortization, or de-
pletion method for long-lived, non-financial assets be ac-
counted for as a change in accounting estimate effected by
a change in accounting principle. SFAS 154 is effective for
accounting changes and corrections of errors made in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2005. The impact of this
standard, if any, will depend upon accounting changes or er-
rors that may occur in future periods. The Company adopted
SFAS 154 effective December 31, 2005.

q) Fiscal Year

The Company ends its fiscal year on December 31. Each of
the first three quarters in the fiscal year ends on the Saturday
nearest the calendar quarter end.

r) Reclassifications

The Company reclassified certain prior period financial state-
ment balances to conform to current presentations.

1.49
SABRE HOLDINGS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

We consolidate all of our majority-owned subsidiaries and
companies over which we exercise control through major-
ity voting rights. In accordance with Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 46R, Consol-
idation of Variable Interest Entities (Revised) (“FIN 46R”), on
November 7, 2005, pursuant to a $4 million loan, we recorded
$72 million of assets, including $55 million of goodwill, and
$71 million of liabilities based on fair value to our Consoli-
dated Balance Sheet as we became the primary beneficiary
of Zuji Holdings Limited (“Zuji”), and began to consolidate its
results which were previously accounted for using the equity
method. Zuji is a joint venture established in 2002 with 16
Asia Pacific airlines and operates in the Asia Pacific region.
The Zuiji site is hosted by Travelocity and utilizes Traveloc-
ity technology. On January 18, 2005, Travelocity entered into
a put option agreement, exercisable from January 1, 2006
through January 31,2006. This put option was exercised on
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January 24, 2006 and Travelocity gained 100% control of
Zuji. See Note 4 for additional information. Other than Zuji,
no other entities are currently consolidated due to control
through operating agreements, financing agreements, or as
the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity.

The Consolidated Financial Statements include our ac-
counts after elimination of all significant intersegment bal-
ances and transactions. We account for our interests in joint
ventures and investments in common stock of other compa-
nies that we do not control but over which we exert significant
influence using the equity method, with our share of their
results classified as revenues. Investments in the common
stock of other companies over which we do not exert sig-
nificant influence are accounted for at cost. We periodically
evaluate equity and debt investments in entities accounted
for at cost for impairment by reviewing updated financial in-
formation provided by the investee, including valuation infor-
mation from new financing transactions by the investee and
information relating to competitors of investees when avail-
able. If we determine that a cost method investment is other
than temporarily impaired, the carrying value of the invest-
ment is reduced to its estimated fair value. To date, write-
downs of investments carried at cost have been insignificant
to our results of operations. See “Recent Accounting Pro-
nouncements” below.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2004 and
2003 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform to the
2005 presentation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles requires that
certain amounts be recorded based on estimates and as-
sumptions made by management. Actual results could dif-
fer from these estimates and assumptions. Our accounting
policies which include significant estimates and assumptions
include estimation of the collectibility of accounts receiv-
able, amounts for future cancellations of bookings processed
through the Sabre system, revenue recognition for software
development, determination of the fair value of assets and
liabilities acquired in a business combination, the evaluation
of the recoverability of the carrying value of intangible as-
sets and goodwill, assumptions utilized in the determination
of pension and other post-employment benefit liabilities and
the evaluation of uncertainties surrounding the calculation of
our tax assets and liabilities. These policies are discussed in
greater detail below.

Statement of Cash Flows

Marketable securities, without regard to remaining maturity
at acquisition, are not considered cash equivalents for pur-
poses of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.
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Depreciation and Amortization

Our depreciation and amortization policies are as follows:

Property and equipment:
Buildings, including buildings
under capital lease
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements

Lesser of lease term
or 35 years

5 to 15 years

Lesser of lease term

or useful life
Computer/service contract
equipment 3 to 5 years
Computer/software 3to 7 years

Other amortizable assets:
Capitalized software development
costs 3to 7 years
Intangible assets 1to 20 years

We are currently depreciating the capital lease assets for our
corporate headquarters buildings, furniture and fixtures to
the amount of the residual value guarantee over the ten-year
term of the lease. We have the option at any time up to one
year prior to lease expiration in 2013 to cause the properties
to be sold. If such an event occurs, we will be responsible for
any decrease in the fair market value of the properties below
$179 million. Therefore, if we determine during the lease term
that the estimated fair value of the capital lease assets has
fallen below approximately $179 million, we will increase the
periodic depreciation expense over the remaining term of the
lease.

Property and equipment and other assets are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization, which
is calculated on the straight-line basis. Depreciation of prop-
erty, capital lease assels and equipment totaled approxi-
mately $76 million, $74 million and $70 million in 2005, 2004
and 20083, respectively. Amortization of other assets totaled
approximately $55 million, $53 million and $66 million in
2005, 2004 and 20083, respectively. Other assets are amor-
tized on the straight-line basis over the periods indicated. Ac-
cumulated amortization of other assets approximated $289
million and $234 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively.

Revenue Recognition

Sabre Travel Network

We provide various travel marketing and distribution services
using the Sabre system. As compensation for services pro-
vided, fees are collected from airline, car rental and hotel
vendors and other providers of travel-related products and
services (“associates”) for reservations booked through the
Sabre system. The fee per booking charged to associates
is dependent upon the level of functionality within the Sabre
system at which the associate participates. Revenue for air-
line travel reservations is recognized at the time of the book-
ing of the reservation, net of estimated future cancellations.
At both December 31, 2005 and 2004, we have recorded
transaction fee cancellation reserves of approximately $17
million. In 2005, the cancellation reserve remained the same
due to a minimal change in the book rate and flat transaction
levels for airline travel reservations. This reserve is calculated
at each period end based on historical cancellation rates. In
estimating the amount of future cancellations that will require
us to refund a transaction fee, we assume that a significant
percentage of cancellations are followed immediately with a
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new reservation, without loss of revenue. This assumption is
based on historical rates of cancellations that results in new
reservations and has a significant impact on the amount re-
served. If circumstances change (i.e., higher than expected
cancellation rates or changes in booking behavior), our esti-
mates of future cancellations could be increased by a mate-
rial amount and our revenue decreased by a corresponding
amount. Revenue for car rental, hotel bookings and other
travel providers is recognized at the time the reservation is
used by the customer.

We also enter into service contracts with subscribers (pri-
marily travel agencies) for hardware, software, hardware
maintenance and other support services. Fees billed on
service contracts are recognized as revenue in the month
earned. We receive fees from travel suppliers and corporate
customers for transactions booked through our web-based
travel booking systems and recognize the associated rev-
enues in the month of the transaction.

Travelocity

Our Travelocity segment receives commissions from travel
suppliers for air travel, hotel rooms, car rentals, vacation
packages and cruises booked through our Travelocity web-
sites and advertising revenues from the delivery of advertis-
ing impressions on our Travelocity websites. Commissions
from air travel providers are recognized at the time of booking
the reservation, except for lastminute.com entities that rec-
ognize revenue related to air travel at the time of departure.
The revenue recognition method used by lastminute.com will
be changed to conform to the remainder of our Travelocity
segment when adequate historical data on collections is de-
veloped. Commissions from car and hotel travel providers
are recognized upon the scheduled date of travel consump-
tion. We record car and hotel commission revenue net of
an estimated reserve for no-shows. If circumstances should
change such that the no-shows are significantly higher than
expected, it could have a significant impact on the amount
reserved. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, our reserve for
car and hotel commissions was approximately $8 million and
$6 million, respectively. Advertising revenues are recognized
in the period that advertising impressions are delivered.
Travelocity has negotiated with travel suppliers for the right
to access travel content at pre-determined net rates. Net rate
travel offerings can include air travel, hotel stays, car rentals
and dynamically packaged combinations of those compo-
nents. We market those travel offerings to travelers at a price
that includes an amount sufficient to pay the travel supplier its
charge for providing the travel accommodations, along with
any applicable occupancy and other local taxes we expect
will be invoiced to us by the travel supplier on that charge,
as well as additional amounts representing our service fees.
Travelocity requires pre-payment by the traveler at the time of
booking. Travelocity generally does not have purchase obli-
gations for unused offerings. Travelocity recognizes net rate
revenue for stand-alone air travel at the time the travel is
booked, except for lastminute.com entities which recognize
net rate revenues for stand-alone air travel at the date of de-
parture; this policy will also be eventually conformed to the
rest of the Travelocity segment. Vacation packages and hotel
net rate revenue is recognized at the date of consumption.
For our Travelocity net rate and TotalTrip offerings, we
record net rate revenues based on the total amount paid by
the customer for products and services, minus our payment
to the travel supplier. On the date a customer makes and
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prepays a reservation, we accrue a supplier liability based
on the amount we expect to be billed by our suppliers. In
some cases, a portion of Travelocity’s prepaid net rate and
travel package transactions goes unused by the traveler. In
those circumstances, and some others, Travelocity may not
be billed the full amount of the accrued supplier liability. Be-
fore the third quarter of 2004, we carried the entire unused
portion of those prepaid transactions as an accrued supplier
liability. In the third quarter of 2004, we implemented technol-
ogy improvements that allow us to better estimate the poten-
tial liability to suppliers for those prepaid transactions and we
adopted a process to reduce the accrued supplier liability for
amounts aged more than six months. During 2004, that pro-
cess resulted in an approximately $13 million decrease in the
accrued supplier liability and an approximately $13 million
increase to transaction revenue and operating income. Our
process includes consideration of key factors, including, but
not limited to, the age of the supplier liability, historical billing
and payment information. We applied this process consis-
tently throughout 2005 for our domestic Travelocity supplier
liabilities.

Sabre Airline Solutions

We provide software solutions and airline reservation host-
ing services. Revenue from airline reservation hosting ser-
vices is recognized in the period earned. Our software is
sometimes sold as part of agreements which also require
us to provide customization and implementation services.
Such agreements are accounted for using contract account-
ing under the provisions of Statement of Position 97-2, Soft-
ware Revenue Recognition. Revenue from license fees, when
software is sold without associated customization or imple-
mentation services, is recognized when the software is de-
livered, fees are fixed and determinable, no undelivered ele-
ments are essential to the functionality of delivered software
and collection is probable. Fees for software maintenance
are recognized ratably over the life of the contract. The fees
for software maintenance included in initial software license
agreements is based on the vendor-specific objective evi-
dence of the fair value of the services determined using ac-
tual renewal rates for software maintenance services. We also
provide our software solutions in a hosted environment. Rev-
enue is recognized in the period earned, generally through
a monthly fee. Revenue from implementation services in a
hosted environment is recognized ratably over the term of
the agreement.

Services on long-term software development and consult-
ing contracts are provided under both a time-and-materials
basis and a fixed fee basis. Revenues with respect to time-
and-materials contracts are recognized as services are per-
formed. Revenues from services provided under fixed fee
contracts are based on costs incurred to date in comparison
tototal cost projected at completion. A contract is considered
substantially complete when the product has been delivered
and performance specifications have been substantially met.
Losses, if any, on long-term contracts are recognized when
the current estimate of total contract costs indicates a loss
on a contract is probable.

As a result of contractual billing terms, at December 31,
2005 and 2004 we had recorded accounts receivable of ap-
proximately $25 million and $28 million, respectively, that had
not been billed to customers and deferred revenues of ap-
proximately $22 million and $20 million, respectively, related
to advance payments from customers. Substantially all of

ATT-SEC 1.49

these deferred revenues were classified as current liabilities
as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Derivatives

We recognize all derivatives on the Consolidated Balance
Sheets at fair value. Derivatives that are not hedges must be
adjusted to fair value through income. If the derivative is des-
ignated as a hedge, depending on the nature of the hedge,
changes in the fair value of derivatives are offset against the
change in fair value of the hedged item through earnings or
recognized in other comprehensive income until the hedged
item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of the
change in fair value of a derivative designated as a hedge
is immediately recognized in earnings. For derivative instru-
ments not designated as hedging instruments, the gain or
loss is recognized in current earnings during the period of
change.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising
costs expensed in 2005, 2004 and 2003 totaled approx-
imately $204 million, $146 million and $138 million, resp-
ectively.

Subscriber Incentives

Certain service contracts with significant travel agency sub-
scribers contain booking productivity clauses and other pro-
visions that allow subscribers to receive cash payments
and/or various amounts of additional equipment and other
services from us at no cost. We establish liabilities for these
commitments and recognize the related expense as the sub-
scribers earn incentives based on the applicable contractual
terms. Accrued incentives liabilities at December 31, 2005
and 2004 were approximately $82 million and $84 million,
respectively. Periodically, we make cash payments to sub-
scribers at inception or modification of a service contract
which are deferred and amortized over the expected life of the
service contract, which is generally three years. At Decem-
ber 31, 2005 and 2004, we had $45 miflion and $42 million,
respectively, in deferred charges related to such contracts.
The service contracts are priced so that the additional airline
and other booking fees generated over the life of the contract
will exceed the cost of the incentives provided.

Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes has been computed using the
liability method. Under the liability method, deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences
between financial reporting and income tax bases of assets
and liabilities and are measured using the tax rates and laws
in effect at the time of such determination. The measurement
of deferred tax assets is adjusted by a valuation allowance, if
necessary, to recognize the extent to which, based on avail-
able evidence, the future tax benefits more likely than not will
not be realized.

The calculation of our tax liabilities involves significant
judgment and evaluation of uncertainties in the interpreta-
tion of complex tax laws. As a result, we have established
reserves for taxes and associated interest that may become
payable in future years as a result of audits by tax authori-
ties. Tax reserves are reviewed regularly pursuant to State-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards No. 5, Accounting
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for Contingencies. Tax reserves are adjusted as events occur
that affect our potential liability for additional taxes and asso-
ciated interest, such as the expiration of statutes of limitation,
conclusion of tax audits, identification of additional exposure
based on current calculations, identification of new issues, or
the issuance of statutory or administrative guidance or ren-
dering of a court decision affecting a particular issue. The
Company does not assume that it is permanently invested
in foreign subsidiaries and accordingly provides for deferred
taxes on the unremitted foreign earrnings. Accordingly, we
may experience significant changes in our tax reserves in
the future if or when such events occur.

Computer Software Developed or Purchased for Internal Use

Costs related to applications, infrastructure and graphics de-
velopment for the Sabre system and our websites, are cap-
italizable under Statement of Position 98-1, Accounting for
Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use
(“SOP 98-1”) and are included in property and equipment in
the accompanying balance sheets. Capitalizable costs con-
sist of (a) certain external direct costs of materials and ser-
vices incurred in developing or obtaining internal-use com-
puter software and (b) payroll and payroll-related costs for
employees who are directly associated with and who de-
vote time to the project. Research and development costs
incurred during the preliminary project stage or costs incurred
for data conversion activities and training, maintenance and
general and administrative or overhead costs are expensed
as incurred. Costs that cannot be separated between main-
tenance of, and relatively minor upgrades and enhancements
to, internal-use software are also expensed as incurred.

We amortize computer software using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful life of the software, ap-
proximately three to seven years. At December 31, 2005 and
2004, unamortized computer software costs for internal use
approximated $154 million and $124 million, respectively. In
2005 our Travelocity segment wrote off $2 million to amortiza-
tion expense from the impairment of software which became
obsolete due to an upgrade to a new platform. Amortization
expense for computer software developed or purchased for
internal use was $40 million, $26 million and $19 million in
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

All costs incurred in the development of software which is
licensed to third parties that have the option to take pos-
session of the software are classified as research and de-
velopment costs and are expensed as incurred until techno-
logical feasibility has been established. Once technological
feasibility has been established, such costs are capitalized
until the product is ready for service. We define technologi-
cal feasibility in accordance with Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standards No. 86, Accounting for the Costs of Com-
puter Software to Be Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed
(“SFAS 86”). Technological feasibility is achieved upon com-
pletion of all planning, designing, coding and testing activ-
ities that are necessary to establish that a product can be
produced according to its design specifications.

We amortize capitalized software development costs us-
ing the straight-line method over the estimated economic
life of the software. At both December 31, 2005 and 2004,
unamortized software development costs approximated $17
million which represents products developed for licensing
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from our Sabre Airline Solutions segment. Amortization ex-
pense for capitalized software development costs was $7
million in 2005 and $5 million in both 2004 and 2003.

Research and Development

Research and development costs incurred for both SOP 98-1
and SFAS 86 software development approximated $26 mil-
lion, $32 million and $48 million for 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

Pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (“SFAS 142”),
we evaluate goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets
for impairment on an annual basis or if impairment indicators
exist. For indefinite-lived intangible assets, the evaluation re-
quires a comparison of the estimated fair value of the asset
to the carrying value of the asset. If the carrying value of
an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its fair value, as
generally estimated using a discounted future net cash flow
projection, the carrying value of the asset is reduced to its
fair value. For goodwill, the evaluation requires a compari-
son of the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to which
the goodwill has been assigned to the sum of the carrying
value of the assets and liabilities of that unit. If the sum of the
carrying value of the assets and liabilities of a reporting unit
exceeds the fair value of that reporting unit, the carrying value
of the reporting unit’s goodwill is reduced to its implied fair
value through an adjustment to the goodwill balance, result-
ing in an impairment charge. We evaluate five reporting units
under SFAS 142, which include Sabre Travel Network, Trav-
elocity, Sabre Airline Solutions, SynXis and Emerging Busi-
nesses. Our SynXis and Emerging Businesses reporting units
are included within Sabre Travel Network for segment report-
ing purposes.

The fair values used in our SFAS 142 evaluation are esti-
mated based upon discounted future cash flow projections.
These cash flow projections are based upon a number of
assumptions, including risk-adjusted discount rates, future
booking and transaction volume levels, future price levels,
rates of growth in our consumer and corporate direct book-
ing businesses and rates of increase in operating expenses.
We believe that the assumptions we have made in project-
ing future cash flows for the evaluations described above are
reasonable. However, if future actual results do not meet our
expectations, we may be required to record an impairment
charge, the amount of which could be material to our results
of operations.

Intangible assets subject to amortization are evaluated for
impairment pursuant to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Dis-
posal of Long-Lived Assets (“SFAS 144”), which requires
impairment testing whenever events or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying amount of an amortizable
intangible asset may not be recoverable. If impairment indi-
cators exist for an amortizable intangible asset, the undis-
counted future cash flows associated with the expected ser-
vice potential of the asset are compared to the carrying value
of the asset. If our projection of undiscounted future cash
flows is in excess of the carrying value of the intangible as-
set, no impairment charge is recorded. If our projection of
undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value of
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the intangible asset, an impairment charge is recorded to re-
duce the intangible asset to its fair value.

Amortization expense relating to intangible assets subject
to amortization totaied $48 million, $47 million and $56 million
during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Included in these amounts are an impairment
charge of $3 million recorded in 2004 for technology-related
assets within our Sabre Travel Network segment and $9 mil-
lion recorded in 2003 related to the termination of a supplier
agreement within our Travelocity segment. No other signifi-
cant impairments of our goodwill or intangible assets have
been recorded.

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, our intangible assets
were comprised of the following (in thousands):

2005 2004
Weighted-Average Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Useful Lives Amount, at Cost Amortization ~ Amount, at Cost Amortization
Not subject to amortization:
Goodwill $1,743,746 $ — $ 899,404 $ —
Tradenames, trademarks and domain names 308,621 — 30,608 —
2,052,367 — 930,012 —
Subject to amortization:
Purchased technology 4 years 245,855 (153,922) 149,826 (134,874)
Acquired customer relationships and database 7 years 157,444 (43,053) 57,145 (27,270)
Non-compete agreements 7 years 25,736 (22,005) 24,009 (19,581)
Trademarks and brandnames 14 years 43,480 (1,839) 300 (33)
Acquired contracts, supplier and distributor
agreements 4 years 59,784 (30,707) 30,667 (21,601)
532,299 (251,526) 261,947 (203,359)
Total $2,584,666 $(251,526) $1,191,959 $(203,359)
Estimated amortization expense relating to intangible assets
subject to amortization for each of the five succeeding years
and beyond is as follows (in thousands):
2006 $ 67,466
2007 63,542
2008 54,846
2009 24,031
2010-2025 70,888
Total $280,773
Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill during the twelve
months ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 are as follows
(in thousandsy):
Sabre Travel Sabre Airline
Network Travelocity Solutions Total
Balance at December 31, 2003 $221,083 $ 517,310 $40,241 $ 778,634
Goodwill acquired 31,247 71,587 10,814 113,648
Goodwill adjustments 1,414 450 — 1,864
Foreign exchange revaluation 3,563 — 1,695 5,258
Balance at December 31, 2004 257,307 589,347 52,750 899,404
Goodwill acquired 30,828 853,899 — 884,727
Goodwill adjustments (14,497) 2,867 225 (11,405)
Foreign exchange revaluation (5,538) (21,250) (2,192) (28,980)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $268,100 $1,424,863 $50,783 $1,743,746
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In addition to the goodwill amounts above, $94 miillion is in-
cluded in investments in joint ventures on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets and represents our excess basis over the
underlying equity in joint ventures.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Our customers are primarily located in the United States,
Canada, Europe, Latin America and Asia, and are concen-
trated in the travel industry. We generate a significant portion
of our revenues and corresponding accounts receivable from
services provided to the commercial air travel industry. As
of December 31, 2005, approximately 70% of our trade ac-
counts receivable was attributable to these customers. Our
other accounts receivable are generally due from other par-
ticipants in the travel and transportation industry. We gener-
ally do not require security or collateral from our customers
as a condition of sale.

We regularly monitor the financial condition of the air trans-
portation industry and have noted the financial difficulties
faced by several air carriers. We believe the credit risk re-
lated to the air carriers’ difficulties is mitigated somewhat by
the fact that we collect a significant portion of the receiv-
ables from these carriers through the Airline Clearing House
(“ACH”). We believe use of ACH mitigates our credit risk in
cases of airline bankruptcies.

We maintained an allowance for losses of approximately
$25 million and $24 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, based upon the amount of accounts receivable
expected to prove uncollectible. During 2005, approximately
$6 million in specific customer net write-offs were recorded
against allowance for losses. We evaluate the collectibility
of our accounts receivable based on a combination of fac-
tors. In circumstances where we are aware of a specific cus-
tomer’s inability to meet its financial obligations to us (e.g.,
bankruptcy filings, failure to pay amounts due to us or others),
we record a specific reserve for bad debts against amounts
due to reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount
we reasonably believe will be collected. For all other cus-
tomers, we recognize reserves for bad debts based on past
write-off history, (average percentage of receivables written
off historically) and the length of time the receivables are past
due.

If demand for commercial air travel softens, due to pre-
vailing economic conditions, terrorist acts or other incidents
involving commercial air transport, or other factors, the finan-
cial condition of our customers may be adversely impacted.
If we begin, or estimate that we will begin, to experience
higher than expected defaults on amounts due us, our esti-
mates of the amounts which we will ultimately collect could
be reduced by a material amount. We believe that we have
appropriately considered the effects of these factors in our
financial statements, as well as any other known customer
liquidity issues, on the ability of our customers to pay the
amounts owed to us.

Travel Supplier Liabilities and Related Deferred Revenue

To facilitate the provision of travel accommodations to trav-
elers, we enter into agreements with travel suppliers for the
right to market their products, services and other content
offerings. Under some agreements with travel suppliers in
Europe, including air travel, we collect the full price of the
travel from the consumer and remit the payment to the travel
supplier, after withholding our service fee. The amount due
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to the travel supplier and our fee is recorded in travel supplier
liabilities and related deferred revenue on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets until these amounts are paid to the supplier
or recognized as revenue upon consumption of the travel.

Under other agreements with travel suppliers, content is
available to us at pre-determined net rates. Net rate travel
offerings can include air travel, hotel stays, car rentals and
dynamically packaged combinations of those components.
We market those offerings to travelers at a price that includes
an amount sufficient to pay the travel supplier for its charge
for providing the travel accommodations, along with any ap-
plicable taxes we expect will be invoiced to us by the travel
supplier on that charge, as well as additional amounts rep-
resenting our service fees. For this type of business model,
we require pre-payment by the traveler at the time of book-
ing. Travel supplier liabilities also reflects amounts payable
to travel suppliers under these net rate travel offerings and
related deferred revenue, which reflects the amounts repre-
senting our service fees that are recognized as revenue when
the travel has been consumed.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share excludes any dilutive effect of op-
tions, warrants and other stock-based awards. The humber
of shares used in the diluted earnings per share calculations
includes the dilutive effect of stock options and restricted
shares.

The following table reconciles weighted-average shares
used in computing basic and diluted earnings per common
share (in thousands):

2005 2004 2003

Denominator for basic earnings per

common share—weighted-

average shares 129,587 136,326 142,321
Dilutive effect of stock awards and

options 749 1,605 1,086
Denominator for diluted earnings

per common share—adjusted

weighted-average shares 130,336 137,931 143,407

Options to purchase approximately 19,780,413, 16,110,965
and 16,003,814 weighted-average shares of Common Stock
were outstanding during 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively,
but were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings
per share because the effect would be antidilutive. The num-
ber of antidilutive options for 2005, 2004 and 2003 includes
approximately 3,400,000 options that were granted to a third
party in 1998 and expire in 2013. The increase in antidilu-
tive options in 2005 compared to prior periods was due to a
generally lower stock price for the year.

Stock Awards and Options

At December 31, 2005, we have seven stock-based com-
pensation plans, which are described more fully in Note 12.
We currently account for stock awards and options using
the intrinsic value method set forth in Accounting Principles
Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Em-
ployees (“APB 25”) and related interpretations. Generally, no
compensation expense is recognized for stock option grants
if the exercise price is at or above the fair market value of
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the underlying stock on the date of grant. Compensation
expense relating to other stock awards is recognized over
the period during which the employee renders service to us
necessary to earn the award. In December 2004, the Finan-
cial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004),
Share-Based Payment (“SFAS 123R”), which is a revision
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS 123”).
We discuss the changes that will occur to our accounting
for stock awards and options as a result of adopting SFAS
123R under the “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” cap-
tion below.

In accordance with Financial Accounting Standard Board’s
Interpretation No. 44, Accounting for Certain Transactions In-
volving Stock Compensation (“FIN 44”), an interpretation of
APB 25, we record deferred compensation for unvested em-
ployee stock options assumed in connection with our acqui-
sitions (Note 4). At December 31, 2005, unamortized deferred
stock compensation relating to acquisitions is immaterial. At
December 31, 2004, unamortized deferred stock compensa-
tion related to acquisitions totaled approximately $1 million
and is recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital.

The total charge for stock compensation expense recorded
in accordance with APB 25 and included in wages, salaries
and benefits expense was $12 million, $11 million and $12
million for 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The stock com-
pensation expense resulted from unvested stock options as-
sumed in connection with acquisitions and our grants of re-
stricted stock.

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and
earnings per share if we had applied the fair value recognition
provisions of SFAS 123, instead of APB 25’s intrinsic value
method to account for stock-based employee compensation
(in thousands, except for per share amounts):

2005 2004 2003

Net eamings as reported $172152  $190,419  $83,301
Add stock compensation

expense determined under

intrinsic value method, net of

income taxes 7,361 6,995 7,531
Less total stock-based

employee compensation

expense determined under

fair value based method for all

awards, net of income taxes (30,937) (31,094) (48,063)
Pro forma net earnings $148,576  $166,320  $ 42,769
Net earnings per common

share, as reported:
Basic $ 133 § 140 $§ 059
Diluted $ 132 § 138 § 058
Net earnings per common

share, pro forma:
Basic $ 115 $§ 122 § 030
Diluted $ 114 § 121 § 030
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The above pro forma information regarding net income
and earnings per share has been determined as if we had
accounted for employee stock options and stock-based
awards under the fair value method set forth in SFAS 123. The
fair value for the stock options granted by us to employees
was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted-average
assumptions:

2005 2004 2003
Average risk-free interest rate 4.0% 3.3% 2.8%
Expected life (in years) 45 45 45
Dividend yield 1.7% 1.3% 0.1%
Volatility 49.3% 51.6% 53.6%
Fair value $8.27 $9.81 $8.60

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the change in equity of
a business enterprise during a period from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-owner sources.
During 2005, 2004 and 2003 amounts included in compre-
hensive income other than net income were approximately
a $68 miilion loss, a $1 million loss and an $8 million gain
respectively, primarily consisting of a minimum pension li-
ability adjustment (Note 9) and unrealized gains on invest-
ments, foreign currency forward contracts and foreign cur-
rency translations.
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At December 31, 2005, the components of accumu-
lated other comprehensive income/(loss) were as follows
(in thousands):

Unrealized
Gains/(Losses) Unrealized Total
Minimum on Foreign Unrealized  Foreign Currency Accumulated Other
Pension Liability ~ Currency Forward Gains/(Losses) Translation Comprehensive
Adjustment Contracts on Investments Gains/(Losses) Loss
Balance at December 31, 2002 $(21,638) $ 4,976 $ 616 $ 22 $(16,024)
2003 other comprehensive income (loss),
net of deferred taxes (1,223) 1,437 710 6,985 7,909
Balance at December 31, 2003 (22,861) 6,413 1,326 7,007 (8,115)
2004 other comprehensive income (loss),
net of deferred taxes (8,330) 519 (1,422) 7,922 (1,311)
Balance at December 31, 2004 (31,191) 6,932 (96) 14,929 (9,426)
2005 other comprehensive income (loss),
net of deferred taxes (24,433) (11,101) 634 (33,546) (68,446)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $(55,624) $ (4,169) $ 538 $(18,617) $(77,872)

The 2005, 2004 and 2003 minimum pension liability ad-
justments are net of deferred tax effects of approximately
$15 million, $5 million and $1 million, respectively. Unreal-
ized gains and losses on foreign currency forward contracts
for 2005 are net of deferred tax effects of approximately $7
million. Unrealized foreign currency translation loss is net of
approximately $10 million in deferred taxes at December 31,
2005. The tax effects allocated to all other components of
other comprehensive income during the years ended De-
cember 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 were not significant. Un-
realized gains from foreign currency forward contracts that
were reclassified from other comprehensive income to net in-
come during the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003 were $5 million, $11 million and $12 million, respec-
tively. Reclassification from other comprehensive income to
net income for ail other components of other comprehensive
income for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003 were not significant.

Financial Instruments

The carrying value of our financial instruments including cash,
marketable securities, accounts receivable and short and
long-term debt instruments approximate their fair values at
December 31, 2005 and 2004. Our derivative instruments are
carried at their estimated fair values at December 31, 2005
and 2004.

Treasury Stock

We account for the purchase of treasury stock at cost. Upon
reissuance of shares of treasury stock, we record any differ-
ence between the weighted-average cost of such shares and
any proceeds received as an adjustment to additional paid-in
capital.

Restricted Cash

At December 31, 2005, we hold $57 million in cash that is re-
stricted. Restricted cash of $40 million primarily represents
cash that is required to be held to fulfill bonding requirements
in Europe which are in place to protect European travel con-
sumers in the event a travel supplier is unable to provide the
travel products purchased, or we default on our obligation to
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pay the travel supplier. The amounts of the required deposits
are established annually based on forecasted transaction
value sold and are influenced by the credit stability and rat-
ings of the company acting as collection agent or merchant
for the transaction (us in this instance) and do not represent
the entire cost of the travel product purchased. Therefore, we
are contingently liable for additional amounts beyond those
ondeposit as restricted cash with bonding agencies. We hold
$11 million in an escrow account to fulfill the requirements of
a bank guarantee we provided to the government of India
relating to our ongoing Indian tax dispute. In the first quar-
ter of 2006 this amount became unrestricted. We also have
$6 million of restricted cash from our consolidation of Zuji
which represents bank guarantees required by airlines and
other travel regulatory bodies as well as an office premise.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

On December 16, 2004, the FASB issued SFAS 123R, which
is a revision of SFAS 123. SFAS 123R supersedes APB 25
and amends Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 95, Statement of Cash Flows. Generally, the approach in
SFAS 123R is similar to the approach described in SFAS 123.
However, SFAS 123R requires all share-based payments to
employees, including grants of employee stock options, to
be recognized on the income statement based on their fair
values.

We are adopting SFAS 123R on January 1, 2006 using the
modified prospective method and, as a result, we will begin
expensing options in 2006 with no restatement of prior peri-
ods. All options granted prior to adoption will continue to be
expensed using the fair value previously determined using
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model and included in our
pro forma disclosures; however, options granted subsequent
to our adoption of SFAS 123R will be valued using a lattice
model, which we believe provides us with a more reliable fair
value. Stock option expenses will be recorded on a straight-
line basis over the requisite service period. SFAS 123R also
requires that the benefits of tax deductions in excess of rec-
ognized compensation cost be reported as a financing cash
flow, rather than as an operating cash flow, as required under
the current guidance. We cannot estimate what the impact
of this will be on our financing cash flows, as it will depend
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on the future exercise behavior of option holders. We expect
the adoption of SFAS 123R will reduce pre-tax income by ap-
proximately $18 million, or $.09 per share, in 2006 although
this amount may change based on the level of future grants
of options, unforeseeable changes in our assumptions used
in the lattice model, such as our stock volatility, and actual
forfeiture rates not matching our current estimates.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 154, Accounting Changes and
Error Corrections, a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20,
Accounting Changes, and Statement of Financial Account-
ing Standards No. 3, Reporting Accounting Changes in In-
terim Financial Statements. The standard requires chang-
ing the accounting and reporting requirements of voluntary
and mandatory (unless the pronouncement provides other
transition requirements) changes in accounting principle by
requiring retroactive application of the change in account-
ing principle to prior periods’ financials statements, unless
it is not practical to do so, rather than recording a cumu-
lative catch-up adjustment in net income in the year of the
change. Reporting error corrections will be handled similarly
to achange in accounting principles. The standard is effective
for accounting changes and error corrections made in fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2005. This new account-
ing standard is not anticipated to have a material impact on
our financial results.

ACCOUNTING CHANGES

1.50 APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes, defined
various types of accounting changes, including a change in
accounting principle, and provided guidance on the man-
ner of reporting each type. Effective for fiscal years begin-
ning after December 15, 2005 with early adoption permitted,
SFAS No. 154, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections,
replaces APB No. 20. SFAS No. 154 changes the require-
ments for the accounting for and reporting of a change in
accounting principle.

1.51 APB No. 20 required that most changes in account-
ing principle be recognized by including in net income of the
period of the change the cumulative effect of changing to
the new accounting principle. SFAS No. 154 requires, unless
impracticable or otherwise specified by an applicable au-
thoritative pronouncement, retrospective application to prior
periods’ financial statements of a change in accounting prin-
ciple. Retrospective application is the application of a differ-
ent accounting principle to prior accounting periods as if that
principle had always been used. More specifically, retrospec-
tive application involves the following:

e Financial statements for each individual prior period
presented shall be adjusted to reflect the period-
specific effects of applying the new accounting prin-
ciple.

¢ The cumulative effect of the change on periods prior
to those presented shall be reflected in the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities as of the beginning of
the first period presented.

e An offsetting adjustment, if any, shall be made to the
opening balance of retained earnings (or other appro-
priate component of equity) for that period.
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1.52 SFAS No. 154 also requires that a change in depre-
ciation, amortization, or depletion method be accounted for
prospectively as a change in accounting estimate effected
by a change in accounting principle. A change in accounting
estimate is accounted for either in the period of change if the
change affects that period only, or the period of change and
future periods if the change affects both. .

1.53 Table 1-8 lists the accounting principle changes dis-
ciosed by the survey companies. As indicated in Table 1-8,
most of the accounting principle changes disclosed by the
survey companies were changes made to conform to re-
quirements stated in newly adopted authoritative pronoun-
cements.

1.54 Examples of accounting principle change disclosures
follow.

1.55
TABLE 1-8: ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE CHANGES

Number of Companies
2005 2004 2003 2002
7

Asset retirement obligation........c..ccuee. 93 9 125
American Jobs Creation Act tax effect.... 62 N/C* N/C* NIC*
Stock compensation............ceuveererrnnnnns 36 16 122 16
Exchange of nonmonetary assets........... 24 N/C* NIC* N/C*
Postretirement prescription drug

DENEit.....eeeereereeeeeeee e 12 92 N/C* N/C*
INVENEOMIES. ... 7 4 3 5
Consolidation of variable interest

GBS .vovvvocveceeeeere et 5 176 N/C* N/C*
Accounting changes and corrections...... 5 N/C* NIC* N/C*

Impairment or disposal of long-lived

ASSELS ..ouvceeer e 3 4 68 156
Goodwill and other intangibles................ 2 1 57 465
Financial instruments with liability and

equity characteristics 1 24 188 N/C*
[©]111-Y 20 83 44 89

* N/C = Not compiled. Line item was not included in the table for
the year shown.
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Asset Retirement Obligation
1.56
ALCOA INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)

A (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Asset Retirement Obligations

Alcoa recognizes asset retirement obligations (AROs) re-
lated to legal obligations associated with the normal oper-
ation of Alcoa’s bauxite mining, alumina refining, and alu-
minum smelting facilities. These AROs consist primarily of
costs associated with spent pot lining disposal, closure of
bauxite residue areas, mine reclamation, and landfill closure.
Alcoa would also recognize an ARO for any significant lease
restoration obligation if required by a lease agreement. The
fair values of these AROs are recorded on a discounted basis,
at the time the obligation is incurred, and accreted over time
for the change in present value. Additionally, Alcoa capital-
izes asset retirement costs by increasing the carrying amount
of the related long-lived assets and depreciating these assets
over the remaining useful life.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

Alcoa adopted FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for
Conditional Asset Retirement Obligations” (FIN 47), effective
December 31, 2005. See Note C for additional information.

C. Asset Retirement Obligations

Alcoa adopted FIN 47, effective December 31, 2005. FIN
47 clarifies the accounting for conditional asset retirement
obligations (CAROs), as referenced in SFAS No. 143, “Ac-
counting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” A CARO is a le-
gal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which
the obligation is unconditional, but uncertainty exists about
the timing and/or method of settlement, which may or may
not be under the control of Alcoa, and which prevents the
reasonable estimation of the fair value of the CARO. Upon
adoption, Alcoa recognized a cumulative effect adjustment
of $2, consisting primarily of costs for regulated waste mate-
rials related to the demolition of certain power facilities. Pro
forma amounts related to prior periods are not presented, as
there is no impact on prior period financial statements.

Historically, Alcoa has either operated locations or sold
them and, in certain circumstances, has curtailed them for
possible future use while continuing with ongoing security,
utility and other maintenance costs as deemed necessary. In
the event of a decision to permanently shutdown and/or de-
molish a facility, Alcoa would record an ARO for the removal,
treatment, transportation, storage and/or disposal of various
regulated assets and hazardous materials such as asbestos,
underground and above-ground storage tanks, PCBs, var-
ious process residuals, solid wastes, electronic equipment
waste, and various other materials.

AROs have not been recorded in the financial statements
for any Alcoa operating location—other than those with spe-
cific legal obligations for spent pot lining disposal, closure
of bauxite residue areas, mine reclamation, landfill closure,
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and specific lease restoration requirements—because the
fair value of such potential retirement obligations cannot be
measured as the settlement dates for these operating loca-
tions cannot be estimated. Such amounts may be material
to the financial statements in the period in which they are
recorded.

Effective January 1, 2003, Alcoa adopted SFAS No. 143.
The cumulative effect adjustment recognized upon adoption
of this standard was $47, consisting primarily of costs to
establish assets and liabilities related to spent pot lining dis-
posal for pots currently in operation.

The following table details the changes in the carrying
amount of AROs.

2005 2004
Balance at beginning of year $233 $217
Accretion expense 14 15
Payments (31) (25)
Liabilities incurred 46 30
Translation and other (4) (4)
Balance at end of year $258 $233

1.57
THE BOEING COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Asset Retirement Obligations

On December 31, 2005, we adopted FASB interpretation
No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset Retirement Obli-
gations—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 143 (FIN
47). FIN 47 clarifies the term conditional asset retirement obli-
gation as used in SFAS No. 143 and requires a liability to be
recorded if the fair value of the obligation can be reasonably
estimated. Asset retirement obligations covered by this Inter-
pretation include those for which an entity has a legal obliga-
tion to perform an asset retirement activity, however the tim-
ing and (or) method of settling the obligation are conditional
on a future event that may or may not be within the control
of the entity. FIN 47 also clarifies when an entity would have
sufficient information to reasonably estimate the fair value of
an asset retirement obligation.

In accordance with FIN 47, we record all known asset re-
tirement obligations for which the liability’s fair value can be
reasonably estimated, including certain asbestos removali,
asset decommissioning and contractual lease restoration
obligations.

As a result of adopting FIN 47, we recorded a cumula-
tive effect of accounting change of $10 ($6 net of tax) during
the fourth quarter of 2005. In addition, we recorded a liabil-
ity of $11 representing asset retirement obligations and an
increase in the carrying value of the related assets of $1,
net of $5 of accumulated depreciation. Had the adoption
of FIN 47 occurred at the beginning of the earliest period
presented, our results of operations and earnings per share
would not have been significantly different from the amounts

ATT-SEC 1.57



58 Accounting Trends & Techniques

reported. Accordingly, pro forma financial information has not
been provided.

We also have known conditional asset retirement obliga-
tions, such as certain asbestos remediation and asset de-
commissioning activities to be performed in the future, that
are not reasonably estimable due to insufficient information
about the timing and method of settlement of the obligation.
Accordingly, these obligations have not been recorded in the
consolidated financial statements. A liability for these obli-
gations will be recorded in the period when sufficient infor-
mation regarding timing and method of settlement becomes
available to make a reasonable estimate of the liability’s fair
value. In addition, there may be conditional asset retirement
obligations that we have not yet discovered (e.g. asbestos
may exist in certain buildings but we have not become aware
of it through the normal course of business), and therefore,
these obligations also have not been included in the consol-
idated financial statements.

American Jobs Creation Act Tax Effect
1.58
THE DOW CHEMICAL COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Note A (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
and Accounting Changes

Accounting Changes (In Part)

Other Accounting Changes (In Part)

In December 2004, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 109-2, “Ac-
counting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earnings
Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act
of 2004,” which provides a practical exception to the SFAS
No. 109 requirement to reflect the effect of a new tax law in the
period of enactment by allowing additional time beyond the
financial reporting period to evaluate the effects on plans for
reinvestment or repatriation of unremitted foreign earnings.
The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “AJCA”) intro-
duced a special one-time dividends received deduction on
the repatriation of certain foreign earnings to a U.S. taxpayer,
provided certain criteria are met. In May 2005, tax authori-
ties released the clarifying language necessary to enable the
Company to finalize its plan for the repatriation and reinvest-
ment of foreign earnings subject to the requirements of the
AJCA, resulting in a credit of $113 million to “Provision for
income taxes” in the second quarter of 2005.

Note T (In Part): Income Taxes

The American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 (the “AJCA”), which
was signed into law in October 2004, introduced a special
one-time dividends received deduction on the repatriation of
certain foreign earnings to a U.S. taxpayer, provided certain
criteria are met. In May 2005, tax authorities released the
clarifying language necessary to enable the Company to fi-
nalize its plan for the repatriation and reinvestment of foreign
earnings subject to the requirements of the AJCA, resulting
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in a credit of $113 million to the “Provision for income taxes”
in the second quarter of 2005.

RECONCILIATION TO U.S. STATUTORY RATE

(In millions) 2005 2004 2003
Taxes at U.S. statutory rate $2,240 $1,329  $613
Equity earnings effect (287) (168) (56)
Foreign rates other than 35%" {409) (524)  (382)
U.S. tax effect of foreign eamnings and

dividends® 160 210 (187)
U.S. business and R&D credits (48) (47) (77)
Benefit of repatriation under AJCA (113) — —
Unfavorable tax ruling 137 — —
Other — net 102 77 7
Total tax provision {credit) $1,782 § 877  $(82)
Effective tax rate 218% 2314% (4.7)%

() Includes the effect of changes in valuation allowances for for-
eign entities as follows: an increase of $14 million in 2005 and
decreases of $116 million in 2004 and $268 million in 2003.

@ Includes the effect of changes in the valuation allowance for U.S.
foreign tax credits of $114 million in 2003.

1.59
THE DUN & BRADSTREET CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 (In Part): Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB issued FSP No. FAS 109-2,
“Accounting and Disclosure Guidance for the Foreign Earn-
ings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Cre-
ation Act of 2004.” FSP No. FAS 109-2 provides guidance
under SFAS No. 109 with respect to recording the poten-
tial impact of the repatriation provisions of the Act in income
tax expense and deferred tax liability. The Act provides for
a temporary 85% dividends received deduction on certain
foreign earnings repatriated from our controlled foreign cor-
porations. To qualify for the deduction, the earnings must be
reinvested in the United States pursuant to a domestic rein-
vestment plan established by our senior management and
approved by the Board of Directors. During the third quarter
of fiscal year 2005, our Chief Executive Officer and Board
of Directors approved a domestic reinvestment plan as re-
quired by the Act. During the fourth quarter of fiscal year
2005, we repatriated approximately $150.0 million in extraor-
dinary dividends, as defined in the Act, and accordingly have
recorded a tax liability of $9.3 million as of December 31,
2005.

Note 5 (In Part): Income Taxes

During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2005, we repatriated
approximately $150.0 million in extraordinary dividends, as
defined in the American Jobs Creation Act, and accordingly
have recorded a tax liability of $9.3 million as of December
31, 2005.
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Stock Compensation
1.60
THE HERSHEY COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Items Affecting Compatrability (In Part)
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year
amounts to conform to the 2005 presentation. In December
2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) is-
sued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123
(Revised 2004), Share—Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”).
SFAS No. 123R addresses the accounting for transactions
in which an enterprise exchanges its valuable equity instru-
ments for employee services. It also addresses transactions
in which an enterprise incurs liabilities that are based on
the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or that
may be settled by the issuance of those equity instruments
in exchange for employee services. For public entities, the
cost of employee services received in exchange for equity
instruments, including employee stock options, would be
measured based on the grant-date fair value of those in-
struments. That cost would be recognized as compensation
expense over the requisite service period (often the vesting
period). Generally, no compensation cost would be recog-
nized for equity instruments that do not vest. The Company
adopted SFAS No. 123R in the fourth quarter of 2005 and
applied the modified retrospective application method to all
prior years for which Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dards No. 123 was effective. Accordingly, consolidated finan-
cial statements for all prior periods were adjusted to give ef-
fect to the fair-value-based method of accounting for awards
granted, modified or settled in cash subsequent to Decem-
ber 31, 1994. The impact of SFAS No. 123R decreased net
income by $21.7 million, $13.0 million and $15.6 million, or
$.09, $.05 and $.06 per share—diluted, in 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively. The impact in 2005 included $2.4 million
after tax, or $.01 per share-diluted, in business realignment
charges.

Adjustments requiring increases (decreases) to assets, li-
abilities and stockholders’ equity resulting from the adoption
of SFAS No. 123R were as follows:

(In thousands of dollars) 2004 2003 2002
Current deferred income taxes $15253 $ 4611 $ 6405
Total assets $15253 § 4611 § 6405
Accrued liabilities $ (2911) $ (2654) §$ (1,634)
Other long-term liabilities (19,977) (10,917) (10,228)
Deferred income taxes (9,659) (27,662)  (20,473)
Total liabilities (32,547)  (41,233) (32,335)
Additional paid-in capital 142,799  $127,865 105,124
Retained earnings (94,999)  (82,021)  (66,384)
Total stockholders’ equity 47,800 45,844 38,740
Total liabilities and stockholders’

equity $15253 $§ 4611 $ 6405
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1.61

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MACHINES
CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A (In Part): Significant Accounting Policies

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2005, the company adopted the pro-
visions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment” (SFAS 123(R)).
The company previously applied Accounting Principles
Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issue
to Employees,” and related Interpretations and provided the
required pro forma disclosures of SFAS No. 123, “Account-
ing for Stock-Based Compensation” (SFAS 123). The com-
pany elected to adopt the modified retrospective application
method provided by SFAS 123(R) and accordingly, financial
statement amounts for the periods presented herein reflect
results as if the fair value method of expensing had been
applied from the original effective date of SFAS 123. Such
results are consistent with the previously reported pro forma
disclosures required under SFAS No. 123. See the company’s
restated financial statements filed on June 22, 2005 with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) for the effect of
this change on prior periods.

Stock-based compensation represents the cost related to
stock-based awards granted to employees. The company
measures stock-based compensation cost at grant date,
based on the estimated fair value of the award, and rec-
ognizes the cost as expense on a straight-line basis (net
of estimated forfeitures) over the employee requisite service
period. The company estimates the fair value of stock op-
tions using a Black-Scholes valuation model. The expense
is recorded in Cost, SG&A, and RD&E in the Consolidated
Statement of Earnings based on the employees’ respective
functions.

The company records deferred tax assets for awards that
result in deductions on the company’s income tax returns,
based on the amount of compensation cost recognized and
the company’s statutory tax rate in the jurisdiction in which it
will receive a deduction. Differences between the deferred tax
assets recognized for financial reporting purposes and the
actual tax deduction reported on the company'’s income tax
return are recorded in Additional Paid-In Capital (if the tax
deduction exceeds the deferred tax asset) or in the Con-
solidated Statement of Earnings (if the deferred tax asset
exceeds the tax deduction and no additional paid-in capital
exists from previous awards).
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B (In Part): Accounting Changes

Standards Implemented (In Part)

As discussed in note A, “Significant Accounting Policies” on
pages 58 and 59, effective January 1, 2005, the company
adopted the provisions of SFAS 123(R). The company elected
to adopt the modified retrospective application method pro-
vided by SFAS 123(R) and accordingly, financial statement
amounts for the periods presented herein reflect results as
if the fair value method of expensing had been applied from
the original effective date of SFAS 123.

U (In Part): Stock-Based Compensation

As discussed in note A, “Significant Accounting Policies” on
pages 58 and 59, effective January 1, 2005, the company
adopted the fair value recognition provisions for stock-based
awards granted to employees using the modified retrospec-
tive application method provided by SFAS 123(R). Stock-
based compensation cost is measured at grant date, based
on the fair value of the award, and is recognized as expense
over the employee requisite service period.

The following table shows total stock-based compensa-
tion expense included in the Consolidated Statement of
Earnings:

(Dollars in millions) 2005 2004 2003
Cost $ 330 $ 463 § 471
Selling, general and administrative* 606 914 865
Research, development and engineering 107 201 237
Other (income) and expense** (8) — —
Pre-tax stock-based compensation

expense 1,035 1,578 1,573
Income tax benefits (349) (498)  (472)

Total stock-based compensation expense  $ 686  $1,080  $1,101

* Includes $7 million of credits recorded during the year ended
December 31, 2005, as a result of awards forfeited in connec-
tion with the company’s second-quarter 2005 workforce resource
actions.

** Reflects the one-time effects on stock-based compensation ex-
pense as a result of the divestiture of the Personal Computing
business.

Total unrecognized compensation costs related to non-
vested awards at December 31, 2005 is $1,512 million and is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period
of approximately 3 years.

There were no significant capitalized stock-based comp-
ensation costs at December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003.

Incentive Awards (In Part)

The company estimates the fair value of stock options using
a Black-Scholes valuation model, consistent with the pro-
visions of SFAS 123(R) and SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin
No. 107 (SAB 107). Key inputs and assumptions used to es-
timate the fair value of stock options include the grant price
of the award, the expected option term, volatility of the com-
pany’s stock, the risk-free rate and the company’s dividend
yield. Estimates of fair value are not intended to predict actual
future events or the value ultimately realized by employees
who receive equity awards, and subsequent events are not
indicative of the reasonableness of the original estimates of
fair value made by the company.
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The fair value of each stock option grant was estimated
at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The following table presents the weighted-average
assumptions used for options granted:

2005 2004 2003

Option term (years)* 5 5 5
Volatility** 347% 378% 39.9%
Risk-free interest rate (zero coupon U.S.

treasury note) 40% 35% 2.9%
Dividend yield 09% 08% 07%
Weighted-average fair value per option

$ 29 $ 34 §$ 30

* The Option term is the number of years that the company esti-
mates, based upon history, that options wiil be outstanding prior
to exercise or forfeiture.

** The company’s estimates of expected volatility are principally
based on daily price changes of the company stock over the
expected option term, as well as the additional requirements in-
cluded in the provisions of SFAS 123(R) and the guidance pro-
vided by SAB 107.

granted

Exchange of Nonmonetary Assets
1.62
KERR-MCGEE CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Significant Accounting Policies
Property, Plant and Equipment (In Part)

Asset Exchanges

Effective July 1, 2005, the company adopted Statement of Fi-
nancial Accounting Standards No. 153, “Exchanges of Non-
monetary Assets, an Amendment of APB Opinion No. 29”
(FAS No. 153), for exchanges of nonmonetary assets oc-
curring after the impiementation date. Prior to implement-
ing FAS No. 153, the company generally did not recognize
gains on nonmonetary exchanges involving proved oil and
gas properties; however, for exchange transactions involv-
ing monetary consideration (if such consideration was less
than 25% of the fair value of assets exchanged), a propor-
tionate amount of the indicated gain was recognized based
on the percentage of monetary consideration received. Ex-
changes of proved oil and gas properties involving receipt
of monetary consideration of 25% or more were accounted
for at fair value with full gain recognition. According to
the provisions of FAS No. 153, all nonmonetary asset ex-
changes that have commercial substance, as defined, will
be measured at fair value with gain or loss recognized in
earnings.
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2 (In Part): Discontinued Operations and Asset Divestitures
and Exchanges

Overview

As discussed in Note 1, the company made a number of
strategic decisions in 2005 with the goal of repositioning Kerr-
McGee as a pure-play exploration and production company
and enhancing value for its stockholders. The company’s
strategic plan includes divestitures of certain lower-growth
or shorter-life and higher-decline oil and gas assets, includ-
ing the company’s North Sea oil and gas business and se-
lected oil and gas propetties in the U.S., and the separation
of the chemical business. At the same time, the company is
accelerating its U.S. onshore development activities, with a
focus on the Wattenberg and Greater Natural Buttes areas.
Management believes this strategy will result in a property
base weighted toward longer-life, less capital-intensive prop-
erties that will provide greater stability of production and pro-
duction replacement, while the company’s exploration pro-
gram in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico and other areas will
continue to provide growth opportunities.

The following summarizes divestiture transactions com-
pleted or which the company expects to complete in 2006.

Pretax Gain on Sale, Net

W Continuing Discontinued

(Millions of dollars) Gross Proceeds Operations Operations
Completed exchange transactions—
Exchange of interests in certain noncore oil and gas properties for a 37.5% interest in

the Blind Faith discovery in the deepwater Gulf of Mexico and cash $ 26 $ 21 $ —
Exchange of interests in certain noncore oil and gas properties for overriding royalty

interests in the Greater Natural Buttes area and cash 27 24 -
Completed divestiture transactions—
Nonoperated North Sea fields 551 - 306
Remaining oil and gas operations in the North Sea 2,970 — 1,934
Nonoperating interest in gas processing facility 159 120 —
Several packages of U.S. onshore oil and gas properties 435 149 —
Other noncore oil and gas properties and other assets 56 17 (1)
Total completed exchange and divestiture transactions - $4,224 $331 $2,239
Expected 2006 divestiture transactions— )
Interests in oil and gas properties on the Gulf of Mexico shelf 1,340
Noncore oil and gas assets onshore in the U.S. 15

() For completed transactions, gross proceeds reflect working capital and other adjustments to the base cash purchase price. The following
presents a reconciliation of the gross proceeds presented above to the net proceeds from asset divestitures presented in the company’s
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2005 (in millions of dollars):

Gross proceeds as reflected above $4,224
Cash on hand acquired by the purchasers at closing (171)
Transaction costs and expenses paid (49)
Proceeds (receivable)/payable, net S
Proceeds per the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows $4,009

@

Gain on sale of the company’s investment in the Javelina gas processing facility is reflected as a component of other income (expense) in
the company’s Consolidated Statement of income. The company owned an interest in the facility through its 40% ownership of Javelina
Company and Javelina Pipeline Company. This investment was accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

@ Represents expected cash proceeds as of October 1, 2005 effective date before considering working capital and other adjustments.
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1.63
PEABODY ENERGY CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1) (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

New Pronouncements (In Part)

In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary
Assets—an Amendment of APB Opinion 29,” which became
effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Ac-
counting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 29, “Account-
ing for Nonmonetary Transactions,” is based on the principle
that exchanges of nonmonetary assets should be measured
based on the fair value of the assets exchanged with certain
exceptions to that general principle. SFAS No. 153 eliminates
the exception to fair value measurement for exchanges of
similar productive assets that previously existed under APB
Opinion No. 29 and replaces it with a general exception for
exchanges that lack commercial substance. The Company
early adopted SFAS No. 153 on July 1, 2005, and applied
these provisions to subsequent coal reserve exchanges (see
Note 3).

3) Significant Property Transactions

In the first quarter of 2005, the Company purchased mining
assets from Lexington Coal Company for $61.0 million. The
purchased assets included $2.5 million of materials and sup-
plies that were recorded in “Inventories” in the consolidated
balance sheet. The remaining purchased assets consisted of
approximately 70 million tons of reserves, preparation plants,
facilities and mining equipment that were recorded in “Prop-
erty, plant, equipment and mine development” in the con-
solidated balance sheet. The Company is using the acquired
assets to open a new mine that is expected to produce 2
to 3 million tons per year, after it reaches full capacity, and
to provide other synergies to existing properties. The new
mine, which began production early in the third quarter, will
supply coal under a new agreement with terms that can be
extended through 2015 (and a minimum term through the
end of 2008). The Company also recorded $21.6 million for
the estimated asset retirement obligations associated with
the acquired assets.

In the third quarter of 2005, the Company exchanged cer-
tain idle steam coal reserves for steam and metaliurgical coal
reserves as part of a contractual dispute settlement. Under
the settlement, the Company received $10.0 million in cash,
a new coal supply agreement that partially replaced the dis-
puted coal supply agreement, and exchanged the idle steam
coal reserves. As a result of the final settlement and based
on the fair values of the items exchanged in the overall settle-
ment transaction, the Company recorded net contract losses
of $4.0 million and a gain on assets exchanged of $37.4 mil-
lion. The fair value of assets exchanged exceeded the book
value by $33.4 million, a non-cash addition which is not in-
cluded in “Additions to property, plant, equipment and mine
development” in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

ATT-SEC 1.63

in the fourth quarter of 2005, the Company acquired rail,
loadout and surface facilities as well as other mining as-
sets from another major coal producer for $84.7 million and
exchanged 60 miilion ton blocks of leased coal reserves in
the Powder River Basin. The Company will utilize these re-
serves and infrastructure to accelerate the development of
a new mine, which will inciude adjoining Company-ieased
reserves.

Postretirement Prescription Drug Benefit
1.64
STANDARD MOTOR PRODUCTS, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements (In Part)

Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and
Modernization Act of 2003

On December 8, 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Im-
provement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “Medicare Re-
form Act”) was signed into law. In connection with the Medi-
care Reform Act, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) No. FAS 106-2,
“Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the
Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Moderniza-
tion Act of 2003.” FSP No. FAS 106-2 provides guidance
on accounting for the effects of the new Medicare prescrip-
tion drug legislation for employers whose prescription drug
benefits are actuarially equivalent to the drug benefit under
Medicare Part D and are therefore entitled to receive sub-
sidies from the federal government beginning in 2006. The
FSP was adopted for periods beginning after July 1, 2004.
Under the FSP, if a company concludes that its defined ben-
efit post-retirement benefit plan is actuarially equivalent to
the Medicare Part D benefit, the employer should recognize
subsidies from the federal government in the measurement of
the accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation (“APBO”)
under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)
No. 106, “Employers’ Accounting for Post-retirement Ben-
efits Other Than Pensions.” The resulting reduction of the
APBO should be accounted for as an actuarial gain. On Jan-
uary 21, 2005, the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Ser-
vices (“CMS”) released final regulations implementing major
provisions of the Medicare Reform Act of 2003. The regu-
lations address key concepts, such as defining a plan, as
well as the actuarial equivalence test for purposes of ob-
taining a government subsidy. Pursuant to the guidance in
FSP No. FAS 106-2, we have assessed the financial impact
of the regulations and concluded that our post-retirement
benefit plan will qualify for the direct subsidies and that our
APBO decreased by $9.3 million. As a result, our 2005 post-
retirement benefit cost decreased by $1.1 million. The impact
of the Medicare Reform Act on our post-retirement plan was
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compounded by changes made during the year in the modal-
ities of the plan, namely regarding increased participant con-
tributions and reduced eligibility. Other than the aforemen-
tioned changes, the impact of the Medicare Reform Act had
been estimated to be immaterial and therefore not included
in previous actuarial evaluations.

14 (In Part): Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

We provide certain medical and dental care benefits to eligi-
ble retired employees. Our current policy is to fund the cost
of the health care plans on a pay-as-you-go basis.

In December 2003, the Medicare Reform Act was signed
into law. The Medicare Reform Act expanded Medicare to
include, for the first time, coverage for prescription drugs. In
connection with the Medicare Reform Act, the FASB issued
FSP No. FAS 106-2, which provides guidance on accounting
for the effects of the new Medicare prescription drug legisla-
tion for employers whose prescription drug benefits are ac-
tuarially equivalent to the drug benefit under Medicare Part D
and are therefore entitled to receive subsidies from the fed-
eral government beginning in 2006. On January 21, 2005,
the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”) re-
leased final regulations implementing major provisions of the
Medicare Reform Act. The regulations address key concepts,
such as defining a plan, as well as the actuarial equivalence
test for purposes of obtaining a government subsidy. Pur-
suant to the guidance in FSP No. FAS 106-2, we have as-
sessed the financial impact of the regulations and concluded
that our post-retirement benefit plan will be qualified for the
direct subsidies, and our APBO decreased by $9.3 million. As
aresult, our 2005 post-retirement benefit cost decreased by
approximately $1.1 million. The impact of the Medicare Re-
form Act on our post-retirement plan was compounded by
changes made during the year in the modalities of the plan,
namely regarding increased participant contributions and re-
duced eligibility. Other than the aforementioned changes, the
impact of the Medicare Reform Act had been estimated to
be immaterial and therefore not included in previous actuarial
evaluations.
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Inventories
1.65
HERCULES INCORPORATED (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions, except per share data)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (In Part)

Changes in Accounting Principle

The Company recognizes the effects of accounting changes,
including changes in accounting principle, in accordance
with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 154,
“Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—a replacement
of APB Opinion No. 20 and FASB Statement No. 3” (“SFAS
154”). When applicable, the Consolidated Financial State-
ments include the specific transition requirements associated
with new accounting pronouncements. As required by SFAS
154, voluntary changes in accounting principles require ret-
rospective application to the earliest fiscal period presented.
Note 21 provides a summary of the financial statement ef-
fects and required disclosures applicable to those account-
ing changes implemented during the periods presented.

Inventories

Foreign and domestic inventories are stated at the lower
of cost or market and are valued principally on the
weighted-average-cost method. Elements of costs in inven-
tories include raw materials, direct labor and manufacturing
overhead.

During 2005, the Company elected to change its method
of accounting for certain inventories located in the United
States from the LIFO method to the weighted-average
method. Financial statements of prior years have been ad-
justed to apply the weighted-average cost method retros-
pectively.

21 (In Part): Changes in Accounting Principle

Inventories

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company elected to change
its method of accounting for inventories located in the United
States and previously valued using the LIFO method to the
weighted average method to better reflect the current value of
inventory in the balance sheet and to provide a better match-
ing of revenue and expense in the statement of operations.
Comparative financial statements of prior years have been
adjusted to apply the weighted average method retrospec-
tively. As a result of the accounting change, retained earnings
as of January 1, 2003 was increased by $13.2 million from
$1,449.8 million, as originally reported, to $1,463.0 million.
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The following tables reflect the changes to those financial
statement line items of the prior year financial statements:

2004 2003
As Originally Effect of As Originally  Effect of

Reported Change As Adjusted Reported  Change As Adjusted
Statement of operations line items:
Cost of sales $1,309.6 $(2.0) $1,307.6 $1,167.6 $(0.7) $1,166.9
Profit from operations 226.9 2.0 2289 254.8 0.7 255.5
Provision for income taxes 1.7 0.7 24 211 0.2 213
Net income from continuing operations 26.8 1.3 281 74.0 0.5 74.5
Net income $ 268 $13 $ 281 $ 449 $05 $ 454
Basic earnings per share from:
Continuing operations $ 025 $0.01 $ 026 $ 069 $0.01 $ 070
Net income $ 025 $0.01 $ 026 $ 042 $0.01 $ 043
Diluted earnings per share from:
Continuing operations $ 025 $0.01 $ 026 $ 069 $ — $ 069
Net income $ 025 $0.01 $ 026 $ 042 $ — $ 042
Statement of cash flows line items:
Net income $ 268 $13 $ 2841 $ 449 $05 $ 454
Deferred income tax provision (19.4) 0.7 (18.7) 75 0.2 7.7
inventories 6.0 (2.0) 40 (6.7) 0.7 (7.4)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1205 $ — $ 1205 $ 228 $ — $ 22

As of December 31, 2004

As
Originally Effect of As
Reported Change Adjusted

Balance sheet line items:

Inventories $ 1894 $23.0 $ 2124
Deferred income taxes—current 448 (8.1) 36.7
Total assets(" $2,710.2 $10.1 $2,720.3
Retained earnings 1,521.5 15.0 1,536.5
Total liabilities and stockholders’

equity( $2,710.2 $10.1 $2,720.3

M Also includes the reclassification of $4.9 million related to VAT
receivables and payables.

Accounting Changes and Corrections
1.66
MOHAWK INDUSTRIES, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

p (In Part): Effect of New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Ac-
counting Standards No. 154, “Accounting Changes and Er-
ror Corrections —a replacement of APB Opinion No. 20 and
FASB Statement No. 3” (“SFAS 154”). This Statement re-
places APB Opinion No. 20, “Accounting Changes,” and
FASB Statement No. 3, “Reporting Accounting Changes in
Interim Financial Statements.” SFAS 154 requires retrospec-
tive application to prior periods’ financial statements for
changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to
determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative
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effect of the change. SFAS 154 also requires that a change
in depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-
lived, non-financial assets be accounted for as a change in
accounting estimate effected by a change in accounting prin-
ciple. SFAS 154 is effective for accounting changes and cor-
rections of errors made in fiscal years beginning after De-
cember 15, 2005. The impact of this standard, if any, will
depend upon accounting changes or errors that may occur
in future periods. The Company adopted SFAS 154 effective
December 31, 2005.

CONSOLIDATION POLICIES

1.67 Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51, Consoli-
dated Financial Statements, states in part:

1. The purpose of consolidated statements is to
present, primarily for the benefit of the shareholders
and creditors of the parent company, the results of op-
erations and the financial position of a parent company
and its subsidiaries essentially as if the group were a
single company with one or more branches or divi-
sions. There is a presumption that consolidated state-
ments are more meaningful than separate statements
and that they are usually necessary for a fair presenta-
tion when one of the companies in the group directly
or indirectly has a controlling financial interest in the
other companies.

5. Consolidated statements should disclose the con-
solidation policy which is being followed. In most
cases, this can be made apparent by the headings or
other information in the statements, but in other cases
a footnote is required.
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1.68 SFAS No. 94, Consolidation of All Majority-Owned
Subsidiaries, amends ARB No. 51 by requiring the consol-
idation of subsidiaries having nonhomogenous operations.
Consequently, with rare exception, the survey companies
consolidate nonhomogenous operations. Table 1-9 shows
the nature of nonhomogenous operations consolidated by
the survey companies.

1.69 SFAS No. 131 amends SFAS No. 94 to eliminate the
requirement to disclose additional information about sub-
sidiaries that were not consolidated prior to the effective date
of SFAS No. 94.

1.70 Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation
(FIN) No. 46(R), Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,
clarifies the application of ARB No. 57 to certain entities in
which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a
controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity
at risk for the entity to finance its activities without addi-
tional subordinated financial support. ARB No. 51 requires
that consolidated financial statements include subsidiaries
in which the company has a controlling financial interest, i.e.,
a majority voting interest. Application of the majority voting
interest requirement to certain types of entities may not iden-
tify the party with a controlling financial interest because that
interest may be achieved through other arrangements. Un-
der FIN No. 46(R), a company shall consolidate a variable
interest entity if that company has a variable interest that will
absorb a majority of the entity’s expected losses, receive a
majority of the entity’s expected residual returns, or both. In
determining whether it is a primary beneficiary of a variable
interest entity, a company shall treat variable interests in that
same entity held by the company’s related parties as its own
interest.

1.71 Examples of consolidation practice disclosures follow.
1.72

TABLE 1-9: NONHOMOGENEOUS OPERATIONS—
CONSOLIDATED

Number of Companies
2005 2004 2003 2002
59 67 56 54
19 16 12 12
1" 13 7 3
9 14 14 9
2 3 1 2

1.73
HERMAN MILLER, INC. (MAY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Herman Miller, Inc., and its majority-owned domestic and
foreign subsidiaries. Effective May 29, 2004, the consolidated
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financial statements also include variable interest entities
(VIEs) of which Herman Miller, Inc. is the primary beneficiary
as further described in Note 4, Variable Interest Entities. The
consolidated entities are collectively referred to as the “com-
pany.” All significant intercompany accounts and transac-
tions, including those involving VIEs, have been eliminated in
the consolidated financial statements.

4. Variable Interest Entities

Effective May 29, 2004, the company adopted FIN 46(R). This
resulted in the consolidation of two variable interest enti-
ties (VIEs) of which the company was considered the pri-
mary beneficiary. The company’s variable interests in these
VIEs are the result of providing subordinated debt to and/or
guarantees on behalf of two independent dealerships created
prior to January 31, 2003.

Due to the company’s history of providing on-going subor-
dinated financial support to these dealerships, through con-
solidation the company recognizes all net losses of the VIEs in
excess of the equity at the dealerships. The company recog-
nizes net earnings of these VIEs only to the extent of recoup-
ing the company’s associated losses previously recognized.
Earnings in excess of the company’s losses are excluded
from the company’s earnings and attributed to equity own-
ers of the dealerships by recording such earnings as minority
interest on the company’s financia statements.

Upon adoption in fiscal 2004, the consolidation of the VIEs
resulted in loss of $0.5 million or $.01 per share, net of $0.4
million tax expense, recognized as a cumulative effect of a
change in accounting principle. As permitted under FIN 46(R),
prior periods were not restated. The cumulative effect ad-
justment represents the difference between the fair value of
the VIEs assets, liabilities, and minority interests recorded
upon consolidation (determined as if those entities were pre-
viously consolidated) and the carrying value of the interests
in the VIEs previously recorded by the company. Since the
consolidation of the VIEs was performed as of May 29, 2004,
there was no other significant impact to the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and the Consolidated Statements
of Cash Flows in fiscal 2004 other than the cumulative effect
adjustment.

During the first quarter of fiscal 2005, a qualifying triggering
event occurred with one of the VIEs, which resulted in recon-
sideration under FIN 46(R). Based on this reconsideration, it
was determined that the company is no longer considered
the primary beneficiary. As such, the company recorded the
ownership transition and ceased consolidation of the inde-
pendent dealership in the first quarter of fiscal 2005. This
resuited in a pre-tax gain of $0.5 million, which is refiected in
“Other Expenses (Income)” in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations. In connection with this ownership transition,
the company incurred a $1.5 million cash outflow in the first
quarter of fiscal 2005 related to the payment of the outstand-
ing bank debt of the VIE. Excluding the gain on the ownership
transition in the first quarter, the consolidation of the remain-
ing VIE increased net sales by $13.2 million and reduced net
earnings by $0.1 million in fiscal 2005.

The effect of VIE consolidation on the company’s Consol-
idated Balance Sheet at May 28, 2005, was an increase in
both the company’s assets and liabilities of approximately
$1.3 million. At May 29, 2004, the company’s assets and lia-
bilities increased by $2.0 million and $2.6 million, respec-
tively, as a result of consolidating the VIEs. The liabilities
of the VIEs consolidated by the company do not represent

ATT-SEC 1.73



66 Accounting Trends & Techniques

additional claims on the company’s general assets; rather
they represent claims against the specific assets of the VIEs.
Likewise, the assets of the VIEs consolidated by the com-
pany do not represent additional assets available to satisfy
claims against the company’s general assets. To offset the
credit risk associated with the company’s variable interests in
the VIEs, the company holds a security interest in the assets
of the VIEs subordinate only to third-party bank interests.

1.74
MONSANTO COMPANY (AUG)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 (In Part): Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in ac-
cordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States. These statements pertain to Monsanto and
its controlled subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and trans-
actions have been eliminated in consolidation. Investments in
other companies over which Monsanto has the ability to ex-
ercise significant influence (generally through an ownership
interest greater than 20 percent) are included in the other
assets item in the Statement of Consolidated Financial Po-
sition. Monsanto’s share of these companies’ net earnings
or losses is included in other expense—net in Monsanto’s
Statement of Consolidated Operations.

Arrangements with other business enterprises are also
evaluated, and those in which Monsanto is determined
to have controlling financial interest are consolidated. In
January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities (FIN 46), and amended it by issuing
FIN 46R in December 2003. FIN 46R addresses the consoli-
dation of business enterprises to which the usual condition of
consolidation (ownership of a majority voting interest) does
not apply. This interpretation focuses on controlling financial
interests that may be achieved through arrangements that
do not involve voting interests. It concludes that, in the ab-
sence of clear control through voting interests, a company’s
exposure (variable interest) to the economic risks and po-
tential rewards from the variable interest entity’s assets and
activities are the best evidence of control. If an enterprise
holds a majority of the variable interests of an entity, it would
be considered the primary beneficiary. The primary benefi-
ciary is required to consolidate the assets, liabilities and re-
sults of operations of the variable interest entity in its financial
statements.

Monsanto has an arrangement with a special-purpose en-
tity to provide a financing program for selected Monsanto
customers. This special-purpose entity is consolidated in
accordance with FIN 46R. For other types of variable in-
terest entities, the company has evaluated its relationships
with two entities and has determined that, although the en-
tities are variable interest entities and Monsanto holds vari-
able interests in the entities, these entities are not required
to be consolidated in the company’s financial statements
pursuant to FIN 46R because Monsanto is not the primary
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beneficiary. One entity is a biotechnology company focused
on plant gene research, development and commercialization,
in which the company had a 9 percent equity investment as
of Aug. 31, 2005. Monsanto currently has an agreement in
place under which Monsanto makes payments for research
services and receives rights to intellectual property devel-
oped within funded research. The entity reported total assets
of $33 million and total liabilities of $12 million as of Aug. 31,
2005, and revenues of $26 million for the 12 months ended
Aug. 31, 2005. The second entity is a joint venture in which
the company has a 49 percent equity investment. This joint
venture packages and sells seeds, with a focus on corn and
sunflower seeds, and also sells and distributes agricultural
chemical products. The joint venture reported total assets of
$20 million and total liabilities of $11 million as of Aug. 31,
2005, and revenues of $19 million for the 12 months ended
Aug. 31, 2005. As of Aug. 31, 2005, Monsanto’s total esti-
mate of maximum exposure to loss as a result of its rela-
tionships with these entities was approximately $22 million,
which represents Monsanto’s equity investments in these
entities.

1.75
PHELPS DODGE CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts
of Phelps Dodge Corporation (the Company, which may
be referred to as Phelps Dodge, PD, we, us or our), and
its majority-owned subsidiaries. Our business consists of
two divisions, Phelps Dodge Mining Company (PDMC) and
Phelps Dodge Industries (PDI). Prior to 2005, our PDI man-
ufacturing division included our Specialty Chemicals seg-
ment, which consisted of Columbian Chemicals Company
and its subsidiaries (Columbian Chemicals or Columbian). On
November 15, 2005, the Company entered into an agreement
to sell Columbian Chemicals. As a result of this proposed
transaction, the operating results of Columbian have been
reported separately from continuing operations and shown
as discontinued operations in the Consolidated Statement
of Income for all periods presented. Also, at December 31,
2005, the related assets and liabilities of Columbian Chem-
icals have been presented separately in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as assets held for sale and liabilities related
to assets held for sale.

In accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards
Board’s (FASB) Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Vari-
able Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51,”
(FIN 46) and the revised Interpretation (FIN 46-R), begin-
ning January 1, 2004, we fully consolidated the results of
operations for our El Abra and Candelaria mines in Chile, in
which we hold 51 percent and 80 percent partnership inter-
ests, respectively, and report minority interests in our Con-
solidated Financial Statements. Historically, the Company
had accounted for its partnership interests in these mines
using the proportional consolidation method. (For further
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discussion, refer to this note under New Accounting Prono-
uncements—FASB Interpretation No. 46.)

Other investments in undivided interests and unincorpo-
rated mining joint ventures that are limited to the extraction
of minerals are accounted for using the proportional con-
solidation method, which include the Morenci mine, located
in Arizona, in which we hold an 85 percent undivided inter-
est. In addition, prior to 2004, the Chine mine, located in
New Mexico, was accounted for using the proportional con-
solidation method. We held a two-thirds partnership inter-
est in the Chino mine through December 18, 2003, and a
100 percent interest thereafter. Interests in other majority-
owned subsidiaries are reported using the full consolidation
method. We include 100 percent of the assets and liabili-
ties of these subsidiaries and report the minority interests
in our Consolidated Financial Statements. All material inter-
company balances and transactions are eliminated.

Investments in unconsolidated companies owned 20 per-
cent or more are recorded on an equity basis. Investments
in companies less than 20-percent owned, and for which we
do not exercise significant influence, are carried at cost.

1.76
ROCKWELL AUTOMATION, INC. (SEP)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Basis of Presentation and Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements in-
clude the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
and controlled majority owned subsidiaries. All significant in-
tercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated
in consolidation. Investments in affiliates over which we have
the ability to exert significant influence, but that we do not
control and are not the primary beneficiary of, including Rock-
well Scientific Company LLC (RSC), are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Accordingly, our propor-
tional share of the respective affiliate’s earnings or losses
is included in other income (expense) in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations. Investments in affiliates over which
we do not have the ability to exert significant influence are
accounted for using the cost method of accounting. These
affiliated companies are not material individually or in the ag-
gregate to our financial position, results of operations or cash
flows.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

1.77 SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations requires that
the purchase method be used for all business combinations
initiated after June 30, 2001. Paragraphs 51-58 set forth re-
quired disclosures for business combinations.

1.78 During 2005, 316 survey companies used the pur-
chase method to account for a business combination.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

1.79 The nature of information commonly disclosed for
business combinations is listed in Table 1-10. Examples of
disclosures made by survey companies for business combi-
nations accounted for by the purchase method and for the
formation of jointly owned entities follow.

1.80
TABLE 1-10: BUSINESS COMBINATION DISCLOSURES
2005 2004 2003 2002

Method of payment:

Cash ONY ...covvvrersereerseeeeereseecenene 228 194 164 196

Cash and StocK.........cov.evreeveercereencrnes 23 3 3 44

SOCK ONY..ccvoerrr s 9 13 13 22

Other—described...........ocovrerierrennenne 12 12 21 13
Intangible assets not subject to

amortization...........ccevevrerveoscrneenrirennns 223 184 156 167
Intangible assets subject to

amortization...........eeeeverrrrreoncinrninnns 173 145 105 124
Preliminary allocation of acquisition

COSL.uneereeieeeerseese s snecsassssesesersas 124 929 63 80
Supplemental pro forma information...... 86 78 43 85
Contingent payments..........o...coceeeernceeene 50 51 3 29
Purchased research and development

COSES ....ervureecremtnressreeenre e rreneesrneannnne 28 27 25 25
Purchase Method
1.81

AT&T INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions except per share amounts)

Note 2 (In Part): Acquisitions and Dispositions
Acquisitions

AT&T Corp.

In November 2005, we acquired ATTC in a transaction ac-
counted for under FAS 141. ATTC was one of the nation’s
largest business service communications providers, offering
a variety of global communications services, including large
domestic and muitinational businesses, small and medium-
sized businesses and government agencies. ATTC operated
one of the largest telecommunications networks in the U.S.
with enterprise networking services available in 127 coun-
tries at December 31, 2005. ATTC was also a provider of
domestic and international long-distance and usage-based-
communications services to consumer customers.

Under the merger agreement, each share of ATTC common
stock was exchanged for 0.77942 of a share of our common
stock. We issued approximately 632 million shares to ATTC
shareholders, giving them an approximate 16 percent stake
in the combined company, based on common shares out-
standing. In addition, immediately prior to the closing of the
transaction, ATTC paid each ATTC shareholder a special div-
idend of $1.30 per share. Based on the $24.17 per share
closing price of our common stock on the New York Stock
Exchange (NYSE) on November 17, 2005, the last trading day
before the closing of the merger, combined with the special
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dividend, consideration received by ATTC shareholders was
approximately $16,300.

Based on the average closing price of our common stock
on the NYSE for the two days prior to, including, and
two days subsequent to the public announcement of the
merger (January 31, 2005) of $23.87 and capitalized merger-
transaction costs, the transaction was valued, for accounting
purposes, at approximately $15,517. ATTC is now a wholly
owned subsidiary of AT&T and the results of ATTC's opera-
tions have been included in our consolidated financial state-
ments after the November 18, 2005 acquisition date.

We paid a premium (i.e., goodwill) over the fair value of the
net tangible and identified intangible assets acquired for a
number of reasons, including the following:

Strategic Fit

* Our company will benefit from ATTC’s assets and ca-
pabilities, including: a state-of-the-art nationwide and
global communications network; advanced technolog-
ical capabilities in data and internet protocol (IP)-based
services; sales and service expertise for complex com-
munications services; and significant product and ser-
vice development capabilities in AT&T Labs, a leading
communications research organization.

e The merger will combine our broad consumer and
small- and medium-business customer base with
ATTC’s enterprise and government customer bases.

¢ The combined company will have a strong, diversified
set of products and service offerings.

Cost Savings and Revenue Synergies

¢ Combined network operations and IT expenses will de-
crease, as facilities and operations will be consolidated.

¢ Sales and support functions of the business services
organizations will be combined.

¢ Duplicate corporate functions will be eliminated.

Technological Strength

¢ In acquiring ATTC’s assets, which include an advanced
product portfolio as well as a leading communications
research organization (AT&T Labs), we will now have
additional resources and skills to innovate and more
quickly deliver to customers the next generation of ad-
vanced, integrated |P-based wireline and wireless com-
munications services.

The application of purchase accounting under FAS 141 re-
quires that the total purchase price be allocated to the fair
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on
their fair vaiues at the acquisition date, with amounts ex-
ceeding the fair values being recorded as goodwill. The al-
location process requires an analysis of acquired fixed as-
sets, contracts, customer lists and relationships, contractual
commitments, legal contingencies and brand value to iden-
tify and record the fair value of all assets acquired and li-
abilities assumed. In valuing acquired assets and assumed
liabilities, fair values were based on, but not limited to: fu-
ture expected discounted cash flows for trade names and
customer relationships; current replacement cost for similar
capacity and obsolescence for certain fixed assets; com-
parable market rates for contractual obligations and certain
investments, real estate and liabilities, including pension and
postretirement benefits; expected settlement amounts for lit-
igation and contingencies, including the AT&T Wireless litiga-
tion, and; appropriate discount rates and growth rates.

Under the purchase method of accounting, the assets and
liabilities of ATTC were recorded at their respective fair values
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as of the date of the acquisition, November 18, 2005, and we
recorded goodwill of $12,343. We have obtained preliminary
third-party valuations of property, plant and equipment, in-
tangible assets (including the AT&T trade name), debt and
certain other assets and liabilities. Because of the proxim-
ity of this transaction to year end, the values of certain as-
sets and liabilities are based on preliminary valuations and
are subject to adjustment as additional information is ob-
tained. Such additional information includes, but is not lim-
ited to: valuations and physical counts of property, plant and
equipment, valuation of investments and the involuntary ter-
mination of employees. We will have 12 months from the
closing of the acquisition to finalize our valuations. Changes
to the valuation of property, plant and equipment may result
in adjustments to the fair value of certain identifiable intangi-
ble assets acquired. When finalized, material adjustments to
goodwill may result.

We have not identified any material unrecorded pre-
acquisition contingencies where the related asset, liability or
impairment is probable and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. Prior to the end of the one-year purchase price
allocation period, if information becomes available which
would indicate it is probable that such events had occurred
and the amounts can be reasonably estimated, such items
will be included in the final purchase price allocation and may
adjust goodwill.

The following table summarizes the preliminary estimated
fair values of the ATTC assets acquired and liabilities as-
sumed and related deferred income taxes as of acquisition
date.

ATTC

Assets acquired
Current assets $ 6,295
Property, plant and equipment 10,921
Intangible assets not subject to amortization

Trade name 4,900

Licenses 40
Intangible assets subject to amortization

Customer lists and relationships 3,050

Patents 150

Brand licensing agreements 70
Investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries 160
Other assets 4,247
Goodwill 12,343
Total assets acquired 42,176
Liabilities assumed
Current liabilities, excluding current portion of

long-term debt 6,740
Long-term debt 8,293
Deferred income taxes 531
Postemployment benefit obligation 8,807
Other noncurrent liabilities 2,288
Total liabilities assumed 26,659
Net assets acquired $15,517
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Goodwill of $12,343, resulting from the acquisition of ATTC
was assigned to the AT&T Corp. segment. However, as part
of the final valuation of the acquisition we will determine to
which entities and to what extent the benefit of the acquisi-
tion applies, and as required by GAAP record the appropriate
goodwill to each entity. Goodwill includes a portion of value
for assembled workforce which is not separately classified
from goodwill in accordance with FAS 141. The purchased
intangibles and goodwill are not deductible for tax purposes.
However, purchase accounting allows for the establishment
of deferred tax liabilities on purchased intangibles (other than
goodwill) that will be reflected as a tax benefit on our future
Consolidated Statements of Income in proportion to and over
the amortization period of the related intangible asset.

Substantially all of the licenses acquired and the trade
name of AT&T have an indefinite life, and accordingly, are
not subject to amortization. The customer relationships in-
tangible assets are being amortized over a weighted pe-
riod of 1.5 to 9 years for business customers and 1.5 to
2.5 years for consumer customers, using the sum of the
months digits method of amortization. This method best re-
flects the estimated pattern in which the economic benefits
will be consumed. Patent intangible assets include protec-
tive and commercialized patents, which are amortized using
the straight-line method over 2 to 18 years based on the re-
maining lives of the patents and have a weighted-average
amortization period of 10 years.

ATTC maintained change-in-control provisions with its em-
ployees that allowed for enhanced severance and bene-
fit payments. Included in the assets acquired and liabilities
assumed above are severance accruals of approximately
$1,543, of which $636 will be paid from ATTC’s pension plans
and $37 from ATTC’s postemployment benefit plans. These
severance payments are expected to be paid over the next
two years.

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated results of
operations assume that the acquisition of ATTC was com-
pleted as of January 1 for each of the fiscal years shown
below.

2005 2004

Revenues $66,061 $69,367

Net Income (Loss) 6,167 (74)

Earnings Per Common Share $ 159 $ (0.02
Earnings Per Common Share—Assuming

Dilution $ 159 $ (002

() ATTC’s 2004 resuits include an impairment charge on property,
plant and equipment of $11,400. Since the triggering event for
assessing impairment of long-lived assets occurred in July 2004,
it is not adjusted in the pro forma consolidated results.

Pro-forma data may not be indicative of the results that would
have been obtained had these events actually occurred at the
beginning of the periods presented, nor does it intend to be
a projection of future results.

Yantra Corporation

In January 2005, our subsidiary Sterling Commerce, Inc.
(Sterling), acquired Yantra Corporation (Yantra) for approx-
imately $169 in cash. We recorded goodwill in our wireline
segment of approximately $98 associated with this acquisi-
tion. Yantra is a provider of distributed order management
and supply chain fulfillment services.

AICPA Accounting Trends & Techniques

1.82
TUPPERWARE BRANDS CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Note 2: Business Combination

On December 5, 2005, Tupperware acquired 100 percent of
the net assets of the direct selling businesses of Sara Lee
Corporation (coflectively referred to as International Beauty).
International Beauty sells a wide variety of consumable prod-
ucts, primary color cosmetics, skin care, fragrances and toi-
letries in about 20 countries in Latin America and Asia Pacific,
Southern Africa and Europe under the brand names House of
Fuller, Nutrimetics, NaturCare, Avroy Schlain, Nuvo Cosmeti-
cos and Swissgarde through a sales force of approximately
900,000 independent consultants. This acquisition was made
to advance the strategy, begun with the acquisition of Beauti
Control in 2000, of adding consumable items to the product
category mix by of expanding into beauty and personal care
products. The results of operations for International Beauty
are included in the Company’s Consolidated Statement of
Income as of the date of acquisition.

The acquisition cost was $556 million in cash subject to fi-
nalization of certain adjustments in accordance with the Se-
curities and Asset Purchase Agreement dated August 10,
2005. The acquisition and the retirement of the Company’s
then existing $250 million in long term notes, was funded
through cash on hand and a new $775 million secured 7-year
term loan which carries an interest rate of LIBOR plus 150
basis points. The total cost of the acquisition has been al-
located to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
based on their respective fair values in accordance with SFAS
141, Business Combinations. Goodwill, none of which is de-
ductible for tax purposes, and other intangibles recorded in
connection with the acquisition totaled $253.7 and $263.0,
respectively and are reported within the International Beauty
segment. The goodwill amounts recognized in the acquisi-
tion result primarily from the acquisition of the assembled
workforce, including a management team with a proven track
record of success in direct selling as well as, field repre-
sentatives in several significant markets. Of the $263.0 of
acquired intangible assets, $197.4 million was assigned to
registered trademarks, which were determined to have in-
definite useful lives. Of the remaining balance of intangible
assets acquired, $62.0 million was assigned to sales force
relationships and $3.6 million was assigned to product for-
mulations which are being amortized over weighted average
useful lives of 9 years and 3 year, respectively. Aggregate
amortization expense associated with the above intangi-
bles recorded in 2005 subsequent to the acquisition date
was $1.8 million and the estimated annual amortization ex-
pense for each of the five succeeding years is $24.1 million,
$12.9 million, $8.8 million, $5.5 million and $4.0 million,
respectively.

The Company is finalizing certain closing date adjust-
ments with the seller as well as, the allocation of income
tax adjustments. Therefore the allocation of the purchase
price and the valuation of the assets and liabilities are sub-
ject to refinement. The Company also anticipates an ad-
justment to the goodwill balance recorded at December 31,
2005 as it executes re-engineering plans related to the elim-
ination of duplicate functions. These adjustments are not
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expected to be material. The estimated fair values of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the acquisition date are as
follows.

(In millions) At December 5, 2005
Current assets $175.5
Property; plant and equipment 55.4
Other assets 12.9
Intangible assets 263.0
Goodwill 253.7
Total assets acquired 760.5
Total liabilities assumed 209.2
Net assets acquired $551.3

The unaudited condensed pro forma consolidated state-
ments of income for 2005 and 2004, assuming the acquisition
of International Beauty as of the beginning of fiscal 2004 are
as follows:

(In millions except per share amounts) 2005 2004
Net sales $1,724.4 $1,691.1
Operating income 169.3 155.0
Net income from continuing operations 94.1 90.3
Net income from continuing operations per

common share

Basic $ 158 $ 1.55

Diluted $ 155 $ 154

These pro forma statements have been prepared for com-
parative purposes only and are not intended to be indicative
of what the Company’s results would have been had the ac-
quisition occurred at the beginning of the periods presented
or the results which may occur in the future.

Formation of Jointly Owned Companies
1.83
EARTHLINK, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 (In Part): Investments

Investment in Equity Affiliate

On March 24, 2005, the Company completed the formation
of a joint venture with SK Telecom, HELIO, to market and
sell wireless voice and data services in the U.S. Under the
terms of the joint venture agreement, EarthLink and SK Tele-
com each have a 50 percent voting and economic ownership
interest in HELIO. EarthLink and SK Telecom, as partners, in-
vested an aggregate of $166.0 million of cash and non-cash
assets upon completing the formation of HELIO, invested
an aggregate of $78.0 million of cash in August 2005 and
have committed to invest additional cash of $196.0 million in
HELIO at various dates through August 2007.
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On March 24, 2005, the Company invested $43.0 mil-
lion of cash and contributed non-cash assets valued at
$40.0 million, including 27,000 wireless customers, contrac-
tual arrangements and agreements to prospectively market
HELIO’s services. The non-cash assets contributed were
recorded by the Company as an additional investment of
$0.5 million based on the Company’s carrying value of the
assets. The Company recorded its initial investment at $43.5
million, reflecting the cash invested plus the carrying value of
assets contributed. In addition, the Company paid HELIO to
assume $0.9 million of net liabilities associated with wireless
customers and related operations. The Company recorded
no gain or loss in March 2005 associated with the contribu-
tion of non-cash assets, the transfer of net liabilities, or the
associated payment to HELIO to assume the net liabilities
upon completing the formation of HELIO. In August 2005,
the Company contributed $39.0 million of cash pursuant to
the HELIO Contribution and Formation Agreement. The Com-
pany contributed $39.5 million in February 2006 and is com-
mitted to invest an additional $58.5 million of cash in HELIO
at various dates through August 2007.

The Company accounts for its investment in HELIO un-
der the equity method of accounting because the Company
can exert significant influence over HELIO’s operating and
financial policies. As a result, the Company records its pro-
portionate share of HELIO’s net income (loss) in its statement
of operations. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the
Company recorded $20.7 million of equity method losses re-
lated to its HELIO investment.

The Company is amortizing the difference between the
book value and fair value of definite-lived non-cash assets
contributed to HELIO over the estimated useful lives of the
definite-lived non-cash assets contributed. The amortization
increases the carrying value of the Company’s investment
and decreases the net losses of equity affiliate included in
the statement of operations. During the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 2005, the Company recorded $5.1 million of amor-
tization associated with the difference between the carrying
value and fair value of assets contributed.

17 (In Part): Related Party Transactions

Helio

EarthLink and HELIO have entered into a services agreement
pursuant to which EarthLink provides HELIO facilities, ac-
counting, tax, billing, procurement, risk management, pay-
roll, human resource, employee benefit administration and
other support services in exchange for management fees.
EarthLink believes that providing these services to HELIO
enables HELIO to more quickly and cost effectively launch
its business than if it were to purchase these services from
third parties. The management fees were determined based
on EarthLink’s costs to provide the services, and manage-
ment believes such fees are reasonable. The total amount
of fees that HELIO will pay to EarthLink will depend on the
extent to which HELIO utilizes EarthLink’s services. Fees for
services provided to HELIO are reflected as reductions to the
associated expenses incurred by EarthLink to provide such
services. During the year ended December 31, 2005, fees
received for services provided to HELIO were $3.0 million.
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EarthLink markets HELIO’s products and services, and
during the year ended December 31, 2005, EarthLink gen-
erated revenues of $0.3 million associated with marketing
HELIO’s services.

EarthLink purchases wireless Internet access devices and
services from HELIO. During the year ended December 31,
2005, fees paid for products and services received from
HELIO were $0.9 million.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company had accounts re-
ceivable from HELIO of approximately $0.3 million.

CONTINGENCIES

1.84 SFAS No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies, defines a
contingency as “an existing condition, situation or set of cir-
cumstances involving uncertainty as to possible gain or loss
to an enterprise that will ultimately be resolved when one or
more future events occur or fail to occur.” Paragraphs 8-16
of SFAS No. 5 set forth standards of financial accounting and
repotting for loss contingencies. Paragraph 17 of SFAS No. 5
states the accounting and reporting standards for gain con-
tingencies. During 2005, 381 survey companies presented a
caption for contingencies in the balance sheet. Table 1-11
lists the loss and gain contingencies disclosed in the annual
reports of the survey companies.

1.85 Examples of contingency disclosures, except for tax
carryforwards, follow. Examples of operating loss carryfor-
wards are presented in section 3.

1.86
TABLE 1-11: CONTINGENCIES

Number of Companies
2005 2004 2003 2002
Loss Contingencies

Lifigation...........cooevrreerreneeresiecrcieennns 521 511 506 514
Environmental ..o 254 213 245 261
INSUFANCE.....oureeenrieireeeserannersrensessenaene 154 112 122 116
Possible tax assessments.................... 134 112 76 54
Government investigations.................. 127 99 94 96
Other—described.......ccooveveveriivenninne 80 38 49 76
Gain Contingencies
Operating loss carryforward................. 487 438 416 390
Tax credits and other tax credit

carryforwards.........cevvereervueereneenes 246 215 178 166
Capital loss carryforward..................... 76 78 66 56
Alternative minimum tax carryforward. 50 7 69 70
Plaintiff litigation............coc.rvvecerriverieanes 40 33 37 41
Investment credit carryforward............ 13 15 18 21
Charitable contribution carryforward.... 1 4 — —
Asset sale receivable.............cc.oeeunn. 8 4 10 3
Potential tax refund..............ccoovvueenee... 7 4 1 1
Other—described.........cccouovivirerennne. 7 6 9 16
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LOSS CONTINGENCIES

Litigation
1.87
THE GOODYEAR TIRE & RUBBER COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 17 (In Part): Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

General and Product Liability and Other Litigation

We had recorded liabilities totaling $467 million at December
31, 2005 and $549 million at December 31, 2004 for poten-
tial product liability and other tort claims, including related
legal fees expected to be incurred. Of these amounts, $247
million and $266 million were included in Other current lia-
bilities at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
amounts recorded were estimated based on an assessment
of potential liability using an analysis of available information
with respect to pending claims, historical experience and,
where available, recent and current trends. We had recorded
insurance receivables for potential product liability and other
tort claims of $53 million at December 31, 2005 and $117
million at December 31, 2004. Of these amounts, $9 million
and $14 million were included in Current Assets as part of
Accounts and notes receivable at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

.

Asbestos

We are a defendant in numerous lawsuits alleging various
asbestos-related personal injuries purported to result from
alleged exposure to asbestos in certain rubber encapsulated
products or aircraft braking systems manufactured by us in
the past, or to asbestos in certain of our facilities. Typically,
these lawsuits have been brought against multiple defen-
dants in state and Federal courts. To date, we have disposed
of approximately 34,700 claims by defending and obtaining
the dismissal thereof or by entering into a settlement. The
sum of our accrued asbestos-related liability and gross pay-
ments to date, including legal costs, totaled approximately
$233 million through December 31, 2005 and $226 million
through December 31, 2004. A summary of approximate as-
bestos claims activity in recent years follows. Because claims
are often filed and disposed of by dismissal or settlement in
large numbers, the amount and timing of settlements and the
number of open claims during a particular period can fluctu-
ate significantly.

{Dollars in millions) 2005 2004 2003
Pending claims, beginning of

year 127,300 118,000 99,700
New claims filed during the year 6,200 12,700 26,700
Claims settled/dismissed during

the year (8,000) (3,400) (8,400)
Pending claims, end of year 125500 127,300 118,000
Payments() $ 2 3 30 9 30

() Represents amount spent by us and our insurers on asbestos
litigation defense and claim resolution.
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We engaged an independent asbestos valuation firm to re-
view our existing reserves for pending claims, provide a rea-
sonable estimate of the liability associated with unasserted
asbestos claims, and determine our receivables from proba-
ble insurance recoveries.

We had recorded gross liabilities for both asserted and
unasserted claims, inclusive of defense costs, totaling $104
miflion and $119 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The recorded liability represents our estimated
liability over the next four years, which represents the period
over which the liability can be reasonably estimated. Due to
the difficulties in making these estimates, analysis based on
new data and/or a change in circumstances arising in the
future could result in an increase in the recorded obligation
in an amount that cannot be reasonably estimated, and that
increase could be significant. The portion of the liability asso-
ciated with unasserted asbestos claims and related defense
costs was $31 million at December 31, 2005 and $38 million
at December 31, 2004, At December 31, 2005, our liability
with respect to asserted claims and related defense costs
was $73 million, compared to $81 million at December 31,
2004.

We maintain primary insurance coverage under coverage-
in-place agreements, and also have excess liability insurance
with respect to asbestos liabilities. We have instituted cov-
erage actions against certain of these excess carriers. After
consultation with our outside legal counsel and giving con-
sideration to relevant factors including the ongoing legal pro-
ceedings with certain of our excess coverage insurance car-
riers, their financial viability, their legal obligations and other
pertinent facts, we determine an amount we expect is prob-
able of recovery from such carriers. We record a receivable
with respect to such policies when we determine that recov-
ery is probable and we can reasonably estimate the amount
of a particular recovery.

Based upon a model employed by the valuation firm, as of
December 31, 2005, (i) we had recorded a receivable related
to asbestos claims of $53 million, compared to $108 million
at December 31, 2004, and (i) we expect that approximately
50% of asbestos claim related losses would be recoverable
up to our accessible policy limits through the period cov-
ered by the estimated liability. Of this amount, $9 million was
included in Current Assets as part of Accounts and notes
receivable at December 31, 2005 and 2004. The receivable
recorded consists of an amount we expect to collect under
coverage-in-place agreements with certain primary carriers
as well as an amount we believe is probable of recovery from
certain of our excess coverage insurance carriers. During the
second quarter of 2005, as a result of a court determination,
we further refined our method of allocating losses to excess
coverage policies, resulting in a reduction in available insur-
ance coverage over the period covered by the estimated lia-
bility. The recorded receivable also declined during the sec-
ond and third quarters due to settlements with certain excess
insurance carriers, as discussed below.

We believe that, at December 31, 2005, we had approxi-
mately $179 million in aggregate limits of excess level policies
potentially applicable to indemnity payments for asbestos
products claims, in addition to limits of available primary in-
surance policies. Some of these excess policies provide for
payment of defense costs in addition to indemnity limits. A
portion of the availability of the excess level policies is in-
cluded in the $53 million insurance receivable recorded at
December 31, 2005. We also had approximately $20 million
in aggregate limits for products claims, as well as coverage

ATT-SEC 1.87

for premise claims on a per occurrence basis and defense
costs, available with our primary insurance carriers through
coverage-in-place agreements at December 31, 2005.

We reached an agreement effective April 13, 2005, to settle
our claims for insurance coverage for asbestos and pollution
related liabilities with respect to pre-1993 insurance policies
issued by certain underwriters at Lloyd’s, London, and rein-
sured by Equitas. The settlement agreement generally pro-
vides for the payment of money to us in exchange for the
release by us of past, present and future claims under those
policies and the cancellation of those policies; agreement by
us to indemnify the underwriters from claims asserted under
those policies; and includes provisions addressing the im-
pact on the settlement should federal asbestos reform legis-
lation be enacted on or before January 3, 2007.

Under the agreement, Equitas paid $22 million to us and
placed $39 million into a trust. The trust funds may be used
to reimburse us for a portion of costs we incur in the future
to resolve certain asbestos claims. Our ability to use any of
the trust funds is subject to specified confidential criteria,
as well as limits on the amount that may be drawn from the
trust in any one month. If federal asbestos reform legislation
is enacted into law on or prior to January 3, 2007, then the
trust would repay Equitas any amount it is required to pay
with respect to our asbestos liabilities as a result of such
legislation up to the amount remaining in the trust at that
time. If such legislation is not enacted by that date any funds
remaining in the trust will be disbursed to us to enable us to
meet future asbestos-related liabilities or for other purposes.

We also reached an agreement effective July 27, 2005, to
settle our claims for insurance coverage for asbestos and pol-
lution related liabilities with respect to insurance policies is-
sued by certain other non-Equitas excess insurance carriers
which participated in policies issued in the London Market.
The settlement agreement generally provided for the pay-
ment of $25 million to us in exchange for the release by us
of past, present and future claims under those policies and
the cancellation of those policies; and agreement by us to in-
demnify the underwriters from claims asserted under those
policies.

We believe that our reserve for asbestos claims, and the
receivable for recoveries from insurance carriers recorded in
respect of these claims, reflect reasonable and probable es-
timates of these amounts, subject to the exclusion of claims
for which it is not feasible to make reasonable estimates. The
estimate of the assets and liabilities related to pending and
expected future asbestos claims and insurance recoveries is
subject to numerous uncertainties, including, but not limited
to, changes in:

e the litigation environment,

e Federal and state law governing the compensation of

asbestos claimants,

¢ recoverability of receivables due to potential insolvency

of carriers,

e our approach to defending and resolving claims, and

e the level of payments made to claimants from other

sources, including other defendants.

As aresult, with respect to both asserted and unasserted
claims, it is reasonably possible that we may incur a mate-
rial amount of cost in excess of the current reserve, however,
such amount cannot be reasonably estimated. Coverage un-
der insurance policies is subject to varying characteristics of
asbestos claims including, but not limited to, the type of claim
(premise vs. product exposure), alleged date of first exposure
to our products or premises and disease alleged. Depending
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upon the nature of these characteristics, as well as the res-
olution of certain legal issues, some portion of the insurance
may not be accessible by us.

Heatway (Entran Ii)

On June 4, 2004, we entered into an amended settlement
agreement that was intended to address the claims arising
out of a number of Federal, state and Canadian actions filed
against us involving a rubber hose product, Entran Il. We sup-
plied Entran Il from 1989 to 1993 to Chiles Power Supply, inc.
(d/b/a Heatway Systems), a designer and seller of hydronic
radiant heating systems in the United States. Heating sys-
tems using Entran Il are typically attached or embedded in
either indoor flooring or outdoor pavement, and use Entran |l
hose as a conduit to circulate warm fluid as a source of heat.
We had recorded liabilities related to Entran il claims total-
ing $248 million and $307 million at December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively.

On October 19, 2004, the amended settlement received
court approval. As a result, we have made, or will make an-~
nual cash contributions to a settlement fund of $60 million,
$40 million, $15 million, $15 million and $20 million in 2004,
2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. In addition to these
annual payments, we contributed approximately $174 million
received from insurance contributions to the settlement fund
pursuant to the terms of the settlement agreement. We do not
expect to receive any additional insurance reimbursements
for Entran Il related matters.

Forty-one sites remain opted-out of the amended settle-
ment. One action involving approximately nine of these sites
is currently pending against us, and additional actions may
be filed against us in the future. Aithough any liability resulting
from the opt-outs will not be covered by the amended settle-
ment, we will be entitled to assert a proxy claim against the
settlement fund for the payment such claimant would have
been entitled to under the amended settlement.

In addition to the sites that have been opted-out of the
amended settlement, any liability related to six actions in
which we have received adverse judgments also will not be
covered by the amended settlement. With respect to three of
these matters, however, we will be entitled to assert a proxy
claim against the settlement fund for amounts (if any) paid to
plaintiffs in these actions.

The ultimate cost of disposing of Entran Il claims is depen-
dent upon a number of factors, including our ability to resolve
claims not subject to the amended settlement (including the
cases in which we have received adverse judgments), the ex-
tent to which the liability, if any, associated with such a claim
may be offset by our ability to assert a proxy claim against
the settlement fund and whether or not claimants opting-out
of the amendment settiement pursue claims against us in the
future.

Other Actions

We are currently a party to various claims and legal proceed-
ings in addition to those noted above. If management be-
lieves that a loss arising from these matters is probable and
can reasonably be estimated, we record the amount of the
loss, or the minimum estimated liability when the loss is es-
timated using a range, and no point within the range is more
probable than another. As additional information becomes
available; any potential liability related to these matters is
assessed and the estimates are revised, if necessary. Based
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on currently available information, management believes that
the ultimate outcome of these matters, individually and in
the aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial position or overall trends in results of operations.
However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and
unfavorable rulings could occur. An unfavorable ruling could
include monetary damages or an injunction prohibiting us
from selling one or more products. If an unfavorable ruling
were to occur, there exists the possibility of a material adverse
impact on the financial position and results of operations of
the period in which the ruling occurs, or future periods.

1.88
VIACOM INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Tabular dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

15 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Legal Matters

In July 2002, judgment was entered in favor of Former
Viacom, Blockbuster, Paramount Home Entertainment and
other major motion picture studios and their home video sub-
sidiaries with respect to a complaint filed in the United States
District Court for the Western District of Texas. The complaint
included federal antitrust and California state law claims. In
August 2003, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit
affirmed the federal court judgment. The U.S. Supreme Court
refused plaintiffs’ petition for writ of certiorari in March 2004.
In February 2003, a similar complaint that had been filed in
a Los Angeles County Superior Court was also dismissed
with prejudice. The plainfiffs appealed the California state
court dismissal, as well as a prior denial of class certifica-
tion. On November 22, 2005, the California Court of Appeal
affirmed the trial court’s dismissal of the antitrust and con-
spiracy claims. The court reversed the dismissal of California
Unfair Practices Act and Unfair Competition Act claims and
remanded those claims to the trial court, except with regard
to transactions between Paramount and Blockbuster as to
which the trial court dismissal was affirmed. Blockbuster re-
mains a defendant in the case with respect to our transac-
tions with studios other than Paramount. As the result of the
split-off of Blockbuster from Former Viacom in 2004, any
judgment in this matter adverse to Former Viacom, Block-
buster and/or Paramount Home Entertainment may be allo-
cated 33.33% to Blockbuster and 66.67% to Viacom. Pur-
suant to the Separation Agreement, Viacom has assumed
and will indemnify CBS Corporation for Former Viacom’s re-
sponsibility for losses in this matter.

On July 13, 2005, two identical shareholder derivative law-
suits were filed against Former Viacom. The suits, consol-
idated as In re Viacom Shareholders Derivative Litigation,
relate to the compensation of Sumner Redstone, Tom Fre-
ston and Leslie Moonves, each of whom were executive
officers of Former Viacom. Mr. Redstone is currently Via-
com’s Executive Chairman of the Board and Founder and
Mr. Freston is Viacom’s President and Chief Executive Officer.
Mr. Moonves is the President and Chief Executive Officer of
CBS Corporation. The plaintiffs claim that the compensation
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of these officers was excessive and unwarranted and not
entirely fair to Former Viacom and its shareholders. Plaintiffs
seek disgorgement of compensation paid to the named offi-
cers in 2004, unspecified damages from members of Former
Viacom’s Board of Directors for alleged breach of fiduciary
duty, and other relief. Prior to the separation, Former Via-
com moved to dismiss the case on both procedural and
substantive grounds. No decision has been rendered on the
motion. Former Viacom also was served with several share-
holder demands for business records under Delaware law in
connection with the shareholders’ purported investigations
of similar claims. Under the Separation Agreement, liabilities
in connection with executive compensation claims relating
to officers of Former Viacom are shared equally by Viacom
and CBS Corporation.

In late 2005 and early 2006, Former Viacom was named
as a defendant in three lawstits in the United States District
Court for the Northern District of Texas and one lawsuit in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of New
York, each relating to the 2004 split-off of Blockbuster from
Former Viacom. Each of the lawsuits names as defendants
NAI, Former Viacom and Blockbuster, and certain of their re-
spective present and former officers and directors, including
some individuals who are officers and directors of New Via-
com. The Texas lawsuits are purported class actions which
allege violations of the federal securities laws. The New York
case is a purported class action which alleges that the de-
fendants breached fiduciary obligations to the Blockbuster
Investment Plan in violation of the Employee Retirement In-
come Security Act by continuing to offer to plan participants
Blockbuster stock from and after November 2003 and by of-
fering to plan participants the opportunity to exchange their
shares of Former Viacom common stock for the shares of
Blockbuster common stock that were owned by Former Via-
com in connection with the 2004 split-off transaction. Plain-
tiffs in each of the lawsuits aliege that the defendants made
untrue statements of material facts and concealed and failed
to disclose material facts with respect to Blockbuster’s busi-
ness prospects. The lawsuits seek damages in unspecified
amounts and other relief. In connection with the split-off,
Blockbuster agreed to indemnify Former Viacom and our em-
ployees, officers and directors with respect to liabilities aris-
ing out of any material untrue statements and omissions in
those portions of the 2004 Prospectus—Offer to Exchange
relating to the split-off that were provided by Blockbuster.
Pursuant to the Separation Agreement, we will indemnify
CBS Corporation for any losses arising from these lawsuits.

Viacom believes that the plaintiffs’ positions in these litiga-
tions are without merit and intends to vigorously defend itself
in the litigations. Litigation is inherently uncertain and always
difficult to predict. However, based on Viacom’s understand-
ing and evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances,
it believes that the above-described legal matters and other
litigation to which it is a party are not likely, in the aggregate,
to have a material adverse effect on its results of operations,
financial position or cash flows.
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Environmental Matters
1.89
PHELPS DODGE CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Dollar amounts in tables stated in millions except
as noted)

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Environmental Expenditures

Environmental expenditures are expensed or capitalized, de-
pending upon their future economic benefits. Liabilities for
such expenditures are recorded when it is probabie that obli-
gations have been incurred and the costs can be reasonably
estimated. For closed facilities and closed portions of op-
erating facilities with environmental obligations, an environ-
mental liability is accrued when a decision to close a facility
or a portion of a facility is made by management, and when
the environmental liability is considered to be probable. Envi-
ronmental liabilities attributed to the Comprehensive Environ-
mental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA)
or analogous state programs are considered probable when
a claim is asserted, or is probable of assertion, and we have
been associated with the site. Other environmental remedia-
tion liabilities are considered probable based on the specific
facts and circumstances. Our estimates of these costs are
based upon available facts, existing technology and current
laws and regulations, and are recorded on an undiscounted
basis. Where the available information is sufficient to esti-
mate the amount of liability, that estimate has been used.
Where the information is only sufficient to establish a range
of probable liability and no point within the range is more
likely than any other, the lower end of the range has been
used. The possibility of recovery of some of these costs from
insurance companies or other parties exists; however, we do
not recognize these recoveries in our financial statements
until they become probable. Legal costs associated with en-
vironmental remediation as defined in Statement of Position
96-1, “Environmental Remediation Liabilities,” are reserved
as part of the environmental liability.

21 (In Part): Contingencies

Environmental

Phelps Dodge is subject to various stringent federal, state
and local environmental laws and regulations that govern
emissions of air pollutants; discharges of water pollutants;
and generation, handling, storage and disposal of hazardous
substances, hazardous wastes and other toxic materials. The
Company also is subject to potential liabilities arising under
CERCLA or similar state laws that impose responsibility on
persons who arranged for the disposal of hazardous sub-
stances, and on current and previous owners and operators
of a facility for the cleanup of hazardous substances released
from the facility into the environment, including injuries to nat-
ural resources. In addition, the Company is subject to poten-
tial liabilities under the Resource Conservation and Recovery
Act (RCRA) and analogous state laws that require responsi-
ble parties to remediate releases of hazardous or solid waste
constituents into the environment associated with past or
present activities.
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Phelps Dodge or its subsidiaries have been advised by
EPA, the U.S. Forest Service and several state agencies that
they may be liable under CERCLA or similar state laws and
regulations for costs of responding to environmental condi-
tions at a number of sites that have been or are being investi-
gated by EPA, the U.S. Forest Service or states to determine
whether releases of hazardous substances have occurred
and, if so, to develop and implement remedial actions to ad-
dress environmental concerns. Phelps Dodge also has been
advised by trustees for natural resources that the Company
may be liable under CERCLA or similar state laws for in-
juries to natural resources caused by releases of hazardous
substances.

Phelps Dodge has established reserves for potential envi-
ronmental obligations that management considers probable
and for which reasonable estimates can be made. For closed
facilities and closed portions of operating facilities with en-
vironmental obligations, an environmental liability is accrued
when a decision to close a facility or a portion of a facility
is made by management, and when the environmental lia-
bility is considered to be probable. Environmental liabilities
attributed to CERCLA or analogous state programs are con-
sidered probable when a claim is asserted, or is probable of
assertion, and we have been associated with the site. Other
environmental remediation liabilities are considered probable
based upon specific facts and circumstances. Liability esti-
mates are based on an evaluation of, among other factors,
currently available facts, existing technology, presently en-
acted laws and regulations, Phelps Dodge’s experience in re-
mediation, other companies’ remediation experience, Phelps
Dodge’s status as a potentially responsible party (PRP), and
the ability of other PRPs to pay their allocated portions. Ac-
cordingly, total environmental reserves of $367.9 million and
$303.6 million were recorded as of December 31, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The long-term portion of these reserves is
included in other liabilities and deferred credits on the Con-
solidated Balance Sheet and amounted to $285.6 million and
$239.5 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The site currently considered to be the most significant is
the Pinal Creek site near Miami, Arizona. The sites with the
most significant reserve changes in 2005 were the Anniston
Lead and PCB sites, and the Laurel Hill site, and in 2004, the
Yonkers site.

Pinal Creek Site

The Pinal Creek site was listed under the Arizona Depart-
ment of Environmental Quality (ADEQ) Water Quality Assur-
ance Revolving Fund program in 1989 for contamination in
the shallow alluvial aquifers within the Pinal Creek drainage
near Miami, Arizona. Since that time, environmental remedi-
ation has been performed by the members of the Pinal Creek
Group (PCG), comprising Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc. (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company) and two other companies.
In 1998, the District Court approved a Consent Decree be-
tween the PCG members and the state of Arizona resolving
all matters related to an enforcement action contemplated by
the state of Arizona against the PCG members with respect
to the groundwater matter. The Consent Decree commit-
ted Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc. and the other PCG members
to complete the remediation work outlined in the Consent
Decree. That work continues at this time pursuant to the Con-
sent Decree and consistent with state law and the National
Contingency Plan prepared by EPA under CERCLA.
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Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc. and the other PCG members
have been pursuing contribution litigation against three other
parties involved with the site. Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc. dis-
missed its contribution claims against one defendant when
another PCG member agreed to be responsible for any share
attributable to that defendant. Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc. and
the other members of the PCG settled their contribution
claims against another defendant In April 2005, which re-
sulted in cancellation of the Phase | trial. While the terms of
the settlement are confidential, the proceeds of the settle-
ment will be used to address remediation at the Pinal Creek
site. The Phase Il trial, which will allocate liability, is sched-
uled for October 30, 2006, subject to approval by the trial
judge.

While significant recoveries may be achieved in the con-
tribution litigation, the Company cannot reasonably estimate
the amount and, therefore, has not taken potential recoveries
into consideration in the recorded reserve.

Phelps Dodge Miami, Inc.’s share of the planned reme-
diation work based on the interim agreements between the
parties has a cost range for reasonably expected outcomes
estimated to be from $104 million to $211 million. Approxi-
mately $108 million remained in the Company’s Pinal Creek
remediation reserve at December 31, 2005.

Anniston Lead and PCB Sites

Phelps Dodge Industries, Inc. (PDIl) formerly operated a
brass foundry in Anniston, Alabama, and has been identi-
fied by EPA as a PRP at the Anniston Lead and PCB sites.
The Anniston Lead site consists of lead contamination origi-
nating from historical industrial operations in and about An-
niston; the Anniston PCB site consists of PCB contamina-
tion originating primarily from historical PCB manufacturing
operations in Anniston. Pursuant to an administrative order
on consent/settiement agreement (Settlement Agreement),
PDII, along with 10 other parties identified by EPA as PRPs,
agreed to conduct a non-time-critical removal action at cer-
tain residential properties identified to have lead and PCB
contamination above certain thresholds. While PDII and the
other parties to the Settlement Agreement have some re-
sponsibility to address residential PCB contamination, that
responsibility is limited, with EPA characterizing PDIl and the
parties to the Settlement Agreement as de minimis PRPs.
The Settlement Agreement was subject to public comment,
which ended on October 11, 2005. Upon EPA issuance of its
response to public comment, the Settlement Agreement be-
came final on January 17, 2006. PDIl and the other PRPs have
entered into an interim cost-sharing agreement that assigns
PDIl approximately one-eighth of the costs to be incurred un-
der the Settlement Agreement. During the 2005 third quarter,
PDII increased its reserve by approximately $20 million to a
total reserve of approximately $27 million at December 31,
2005, which covers remedial costs, PRP group settlement
costs, and legal and consulting costs.

Laurel Hill Site

Phelps Dodge Refining Corporation, a subsidiary of the Com-
pany, owns a portion of the Laurel Hill property in Maspeth,
New York, that formerly was used for metal-related smelt-
ing, refining and manufacturing. All industrial operations at
the Laurel Hill site ceased in 1984. In June 1999, the Com-
pany entered into an Order on Consent with New York State
Department of Environmental Conservation (NYSDEC) that
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required the Company to perform, among other things, a re-
medial investigation and feasibility study relating to environ-
mental conditions and remedial options at the Laurel Hill site.
NYSDEC issued a final remedial decision in January 2003 in
the form of a Record of Decision (ROD) regarding the prop-
erty. The Company expects to complete the work under the
ROD in 2006.

In July 2002, Phelps Dodge entered into another Order
on Consent with NYSDEC requiring the Company to con-
duct a remedial investigation and feasibility study relating to
sediments in Newtown and Maspeth Creeks, which are lo-
cated contiguous to the Laurel Hill site. The Company com-
menced the remedial investigation in 2004. The Company
is currently scheduled to submit to the NYSDEC in 2006 its
remedial investigation report and its remedial feasibility re-
port. The Company is currently engaged in settlement dis-
cussions with the NYSDEC concerning the types of remedial
actions in the feasibility study that would be acceptable to
the agency. Based on the types of remedial actions being
discussed and associated transactional costs, the environ-
mental reserve was increased to approximately $20 million
in December 2005. The amount encompasses ongoing con-
sulting and legal costs to complete the required studies and
assess contributions from other potential parties plus reme-
dial action costs for impacted sediments associated with the
Laurel Hill site.

Yonkers Site

In 1984, the Company sold a cable manufacturing facility
located in Yonkers, New York. Pursuant to the sales agree-
ment, the Company agreed to indemnify the buyer for certain
environmental liabilities at the facility. In 2000, the owner of
the property entered into a consent order with the NYSDEC
under which the owner committed to complete a remedial in-
vestigation and feasibility study. In December 2001, the Com-
pany entered into an Interim Agreement with the owner of the
property regarding the owner’s claim for both contractual and
statutory indemnification from the Company for certain en-
vironmental liabilities at the facility. The owner submitted its
revised feasibility study to NYSDEC in September 2004. On
November 30, 2004, NYSDEC issued a Proposed Remedial
Action Plan (PRAP) for the Yonkers site. The PRAP accepted
the remedy recommendation of the feasibility study, with cer-
tain modifications. On December 31, 2004, the Company
and the Yonkers site owner finalized a settlement agreement
that relieves the Company of financial responsibility for im-
plementation of the NYSDEC’s remedy at the Yonkers site.
Pursuant to this settlement agreement, the Company agreed
to pay a portion of the future anticipated remedial costs,
as well as portions of the premiums associated with cost
cap and pollution legal liability insurance associated with fu-
ture site remedial actions. In addition, the Company resolved
the site owner’s claims of contractual and statutory indem-
nity for past remedial costs at the site. To address all as-
pects of the settlement agreement, the reserve was increased
from approximately $20 million to $50 million during 2004. A
partial payment of approximately $43 million was made on
December 31, 2004; final payments of approximately $7 mil-
lion were made in 2005.
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Other

In 2005, the Company recognized net charges of $113.4
million for environmental remediation. As discussed above,
the sites with significant charges were the Anniston Lead and
PCB sites and Laurel Hill sediment site (an increase of $43.2
million). The remainder of environmental remediation charges
was primarily at closed sites, none of which increased or de-
creased individually more than approximately $10 mitlion.

At December 31, 2005, the cost range for reasonably pos-
sible outcomes for all reservable environmental remediation
sites (including Pinal Creek’s estimate of approximately $104
million to $211 million) was estimated from approximately
$329 million to approximately $642 million, of which $367.9
million has been reserved. Significant work is expected to be
completed in the next several years on the sites that con-
stitute a majority of the reserve balance, subject to inherent
delays involved in the remediation process.

Phelps Dodge believes certain insurance policies partially
cover the foregoing environmental liabilities; however, some
of the insurance carriers have denied coverage. We presently
are negotiating with the carriers over some of these disputes.
Further, Phelps Dodge believes it has other potential claims
for recovery from other third parties, including the United
States Government and other PRPs. Neither insurance re-
coveries nor other claims or offsets are recognized unless
such offsets are considered probable of realization. In 2005
and 2004, the Company recognized proceeds from settle-
ments reached with several insurance companies on his-
torical environmental liability claims of $0.6 million and $9.3
million, net of fees and expenses, respectively.

Phelps Dodge has a number of sites that are not the sub-
ject of an environmental reserve because it is not probable
that a successful claim will be made against the Company for
those sites, but for which there is a reasonably possibie like-
lihood of an environmental remediation liability. At December
31, 2005, the cost range for reasonably possible outcomes
for all such sites, for which an estimate can be made, was es-
timated to be from approximately $2 million to approximately
$14 million. The liabilities arising from potential environmen-
tal obligations that have not been reserved at this time may
be material to the operating results of any single quarter or
year in the future. Management, however, believes the liability
arising from potential environmental obligations is not likely
to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s liquidity
or financial position as such obligations could be satisfied
over a period of years.

The following table summarizes environmental reserve ac-
tivities for the years ended December 31:

2005 2004 2003

Balance, beginning of year $303.6  $317.2  $305.9
Additions to reserves 116.0 63.6 54.6
Reductions in reserve estimates (2.6) 4.7) (12.7)
Spending against reserves (49.1) (72.5) (24.1)
Reclassification to asset retirement

obligations* — — (6.5)
Balance, end of year $367.9  $3036  $317.2

* Upon adoption of SFAS No. 143, reserves for certain matters ($6.5
million) required by reclamation rules or laws were reclassified to
asset retirement obligations (previously classified as environmetal
reserves).
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1.90
QUANEX CORPORATION (OCT)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Critical Accounting Estimates

Environmental Contingencies

Quanex is subject to extensive laws and regulations con-
cerning the discharge of materials into the environment and
the remediation of chemical contamination. To satisfy such
requirements, Quanex must make capital and other expendi-
tures on an ongoing basis. The Company accrues its best es-
timates of its remediation obligations and adjusts such accru-
als as further information and circumstances develop. Those
estimates may change substantially depending on informa-
tion about the nature and extent of contamination, appro-
priate remediation technologies, and regulatory approvals.
Costs of future expenditures for environmental remediation
are not discounted to their present value, unless the amount
and timing of the expenditures are fixed or reliably deter-
minable. When environmental laws might be deemed to im-
pose joint and several liability for the costs of responding to
contamination, the Company accrues its allocable share of
liability taking into account the number of parties participat-
ing, their ability to pay their shares, the volumes and nature
of the wastes involved, the nature of anticipated response
actions, and the nature of the Company’s alleged connec-
tions. Unanticipated changes in circumstances and/or legal
requirements could result in expenses being incurred in fu-
ture periods in addition to an increase in actual cash required
to remediate the contamination.

18 (In Part): Contingencies

Environmental

Quanex is subject to extensive laws and regulations concern-
ing the discharge of materials into the environment and the re-
mediation of chemical contamination. To satisfy such require-
ments, Quanex must make capital and other expenditures on
an ongoing basis. The Company accrues its best estimates
of its remediation obligations and adjusts such accruals as
further information and circumstances develop. Those esti-
mates may change substantially depending on information
about the nature and extent of contamination, appropriate
remediation technologies, and regulatory approvals. Costs
of future expenditures for environmental remediation are not
discounted to their present value, unless the amount and
timing of the expenditures are fixed or reliably determinable.
When environmental laws might be deemed to impose joint
and several liability for the costs of responding to contam-
ination, the Company accrues its allocable share of liability
taking into account the number of parties participating, their
ability to pay their shares, the volumes and nature of the
wastes involved, the nature of anticipated response actions,
and the nature of the Company’s alleged connections. The
cost of environmental matters has not had a material ad-
verse effect on Quanex’s operations or financial condition in
the past, and management is not aware of any existing con-
ditions that it currently believes are likely to have a material
adverse effect on Quanex’s operations, financial condition or
cash flows.
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During the third quarter of 2005, the United States Depart-
ment of Justice filed a complaint against the Company for
recovery of cleanup costs incurred at the “Jepscor” Super-
fund site in Dixon, lllinois. The United States Environmen-
tal Protection Agency has indicated that it incurred approxi-
mately $2.6 million to remove processing residue and other
materials from that former metal recovery plant. Of the Jep-
scor site’s former owners, operators, and many customers,
the government is asserting liability for cleanup only against
the Company. During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2005, the
Company and the Department of Justice reached a tenta-
tive agreement to settle this matter. If that settlement cannot
be finalized, the Company intends to defend itself vigorously
against the government’s Jepscor allegations.

Total remediation reserves, at October 31, 2005, for
Quanex’s current plants, former operating locations, and
disposal facilities were approximately $8.9 million, which is
within $0.3 million of the reserve at October 31, 2004. Of
the current remediation reserve, approximately $2.0 million
represents administrative costs; the balance represents es-
timated costs for investigation, studies, cleanup, and treat-
ment. On the balance sheet, $6.7 million of the remediation
reserve is included in non-current liabilities with the remain-
der in accrued liabilities (current).

Approximately 51% of the total remediation reserve is cur-
rently allocated to cleanup work related to Piper Impact. Dur-
ing the first quarter of 2005, the Company sold the operating
assets of the Piper Impact business, including its only ac-
tive plant on Barkley Drive in New Albany, Mississippi. In the
fourth fiscal quarter of 2005, the Company sold the location
on Highway 15 in New Albany where Piper Impact previously
had operated a plant (the Highway 15 location), but as part of
the sale retained environmental liability for pre-closing con-
tamination there. At present, the largest component of the
Piper Impact remediation reserve is for remediation of soil
and groundwater contamination from prior operators of the
Highway 15 location in New Albany. The Company voluntar-
ily implemented a state-approved remedial action plan there
that includes natural attenuation together with a groundwater
collection and treatment system. The Company continues to
monitor conditions at the site and to evaluate performance
of that remedy.

Included in the current reserve is the estimated cost of op-
erating the existing groundwater remediation system at the
Highway 15 location over the next 20 years, which was dis-
counted to a net present value using an interest rate of 3.0%.
The Company has estimated the annual cost of operating the
existing system to be approximately $0.2 million and has as-
sumed that the existing system will continue to be effective.

The final remediation costs and the timing of the expendi-
tures at the Highway 15 location and other sites will depend
upon such factors as the nature and extent of contamina-
tion, the cleanup technologies employed, and regulatory con-
currences. While actual remediation costs therefore may be
more or less than amounts accrued, the Company believes it
has established adequate reserves for all probable and rea-
sonably estimable remediation liabilities. It is not possible at
this point to reasonably estimate the amount of any obligation
for remediation in excess of current accruals because of un-
certainties as to the extent of environmental impact, cleanup
technologies, and concurrence of governmental authorities.
The Company currently expects to pay the accrued remedi-
ation reserve through at least fiscal 2025, although some of
the same factors discussed earlier could accelerate or extend
the timing.
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Insurance Coverage/Self-Insurance
1.91
WASTE MANAGEMENT, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Self-Insurance Reserves and Recoveries

We have retained a portion of the risks related to our automo-
bile, general liability and workers’ compensation insurance
programs. The exposure for unpaid claims and associated
expenses, including incurred but not reported losses, gen-
erally is estimated with the assistance of external actuaries
and by factoring in pending claims and historical trends and
data. The gross estimated liability associated with settling un-
paid claims is included in “Accrued liabilities” if expected to
be settled within one year, or otherwise is included in long-
term “Other liabilities.” Estimated insurance recoveries re-
lated to recorded liabilities are reflected as current “Other
receivables” or long-term “Other assets,” when we believe
that the receipt of such amounts is probable.

Contingent Liabilities

We estimate the amount of potential exposure we may have
with respect to claims, assessments and litigation in accor-
dance with SFAS No. 5. We are party to pending or threat-
ened legal proceedings covering a wide range of matters
in various jurisdictions. It is not always possible to predict
the outcome of litigation, as it is subject to many uncertain-
ties. Additionally, it is not always possible for management
to make a meaningful estimate of the potential loss or range
of loss associated with such litigation.

10 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Insurance

We carry insurance coverage for protection of our assets
and operations from certain risks including automobile lia-
bility, general liability, real and personal property, workers’
compensation, directors’ and officers’ liability, pollution legal
liability and other coverages we believe are customary to the
industry. Our exposure to loss for insurance claims is gener-
ally limited to the per incident deductible under the related
insurance policy. Our exposure, however, could increase if
our insurers were unable to meet their commitments on a
timely basis.

We have retained a portion of the risks related to our au-
tomobile, general liability and workers’ compensation insur-
ance programs. For our self-insured retentions, the expo-
sure for unpaid claims and associated expenses, including
incurred but not reported losses, is based on an actuarial
valuation and internal estimates. The estimated accruals for
these liabilities could be affected if future occurrences or loss
development significantly differ from utilized assumptions.
As of December 31, 2005, our insurance programs carried
self-insurance exposures of up to $2.5 million, $1 million and
$20,000 per incident with regards to general liability, work-
ers’ compensation and auto, respectively. Effective January
1, 2006, we increased the per incident deductible for our
auto insurance programs to $1 million. Self-insurance claims
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reserves acquired as part of our acquisition of WM Holdings
in July 1998 were discounted at 4.25% at December 31, 2005
and 2004. The changes to our net insurance liabilities for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005 are summarized
below (in millions):

Gross  Estimated Net
Claims  Insurance  Claims
Liability =~ Recoveries  Liability
Balance, December 31, 2003 $644 $(293) $ 351
Self-insurance expense incurred 266 (82) 184
Payments made to fund
self-insurance related liabilities (229) 60 (169)
Balance, December 31, 2004 681 (315) 366
Self-insurance expense incurred 227 (46) 181
Payments made to fund
self-insurance related liabilities (248) 67 (181)
Balance, December 31, 2005 $ 660 $(294) $ 366
Current portion at
December 31, 2005 $232 $(137) $ 95
Long-term portion at
December 31, 2005 $428 $(157) $271

For the 14 months ended January 1, 2000, we insured certain
risks, including auto, general liability and workers’ compen-
sation, with Reliance National Insurance Company, whose
parent filed for bankruptcy in June 2001. In October 2001,
the parent and certain of its subsidiaries, including Reliance
National Insurance Company, were placed in liquidation. We
believe that because of various state insurance guarantee
funds and probable recoveries from the liquidation, currently
estimated to be $19 million, it is unlikely that events relat-
ing to Reliance will have a material adverse impact on our
financial statements.

We do not expect the impact of any known casualty, prop-
erty, environmental or other contingency to have a material
impact on our financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows.

Possible Tax Assessments
1.92
INTEL CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 10 (In Part): Provision for Taxes

During 2004, in connection with preparing and filing its 2003
federal tax return and preparing its state tax returns, the com-
pany reduced its 2004 tax provision by $195 million. This
reduction in the 2004 tax provision was primarily driven by
tax benefits for export sales and state tax benefits for di-
vestitures that exceeded the amounts originally estimated in
connection with the 2003 provision. Also during 2004, the
company reversed previously accrued taxes related primar-
ily to the closing of a state income tax audit that reduced the
tax provision for 2004 by $62 million.
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The company reduced its tax provision for 2003 by ap-
proximately $758 million due to the tax benefits related to
the sale of certain businesses and assets through the sale of
stock of acquired companies.

The U.S. Internal Revenue Service (IRS) formally assessed
certain adjustments to the amounts reflected by the company
in its tax returns for the years 1999 through 2002. See “Note
18: Contingencies” for a discussion of these matters.

Note 18 (In Part): Contingencies

Tax Matters

In connection with the IRS’s regular examination of Intel’s
tax returns for the years 1999 and 2000, the IRS formally
assessed in early 2005 certain adjustments to the amounts
reflected by Intel on those returns as a tax benefit for its
export sales. Also in 2005, the IRS formally assessed similar
adjustments to the amounts reflected by Intel for the years
2001 and 2002 as a tax benefit for export sales. The company
does not agree with these adjustments and has appealed the
assessments. If the IRS prevails in its position, Intel’s federal
income tax due for 1999 through 2002 would increase by
approximately $1.0 billion, plus interest. The IRS may make
similar claims for years subsequent to 2002 in future audits,
and if the IRS prevails, income tax due for 2003 through 2005
would increase by approximately $1.2 billion, plus interest.
Although the final resolution of the adjustments is uncer-
tain, based on currently available information, management
believes that the ultimate outcome will not have a material ad-
verse effect on the company’s financial position, cash flows
or overall trends in results of operations. There is the possibil-
ity of a material adverse impact on the results of operations
of the period in which the matter is ultimately resolved, if it is
resolved unfavorably, or in the period in which an unfavorable
outcome becomes probable and reasonably estimable.

1.93
W. R. GRACE & CO. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 (In Part): Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Tax Matters

On May 19, 2005, Grace received a revised examination re-
port (the “1993-1996 Examination Report”) from the Internal
Revenue Service (the “IRS”) for the 1993-1996 tax periods
asserting, in the aggregate, approximately $77.3 million of
proposed tax adjustments, plus accrued interest. The most
significant issue addressed in the 1993-1996 Examination
Report concerns corporate-owned life insurance (“COLI")
policies, as discussed below. Grace reached an agreement
with the IRS with respect to all proposed tax adjustments in
the Examination Report with the exception of approximately
$7.0 million of proposed adjustments relating to research
and development credits. On April 14, 2005, Grace made a
$90 million payment to the IRS with respect to federal taxes
and accrued interest for the 1993-1996 tax periods, consis-
tent with the revised Examination Report. On June 17, 2005,
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Grace filed its protest with respect to the R&D matter with
the IRS Office of Appeals and on December 7, 2005 Grace
received an acknowledgment from that office that the matter
is under consideration at IRS Appeals.

With respect to COLI, in 1988 and 1990, Grace acquired
COLlI policies and funded policy premiums in part using loans
secured against policy cash surrender value. Grace claimed a
total of approximately $258 million in deductions attributable
to interest accrued on such loans through the 1998 tax year,
after which such deductions were no longer permitted by taw.
On January 20, 2005, Grace terminated the COLI policies
and Grace, Fresenius, Sealed Air and the IRS entered into
a COLI Closing Agreement. Under the COLI Closing Agree-
ment, the government allowed 20% of the aggregate amount
of the COLI interest deductions and Grace owed federal in-
come tax and interest with respect to the remaining 80% of
the COLI interest deductions disallowed. The federal tax li-
ability resulting from the COLI settlement is approximately
$57.5 million, $10.4 million of which was paid in 2000 in con-
nection with the 1990-1992 tax audit, and $30.8 million of
which was paid in the April 14, 2005 payment in connection
with the 1993-1996 federal tax audit discussed above. The
remaining approximately $16.3 miilion of additional tax lia-
bility will be satisfied in connection with the 1997 and 1998
federal tax audits, which are still under examination by the
IRS. The COLI Closing Agreement also provides that, with
respect to the termination of the COLI policies, Grace will
include 20% of the gain realized in taxable income, with the
government exempting 80% of such gain from tax. As a re-
sult of the termination, Grace received $14.8 million in cash
proceeds and will report income for tax purposes of approx-
imately $60 million in 2005. It is anticipated that Grace wil
apply its net operating loss carryforwards to offset the tax-
able income generated from terminating the COLI policies,
although alternative minimum taxes may apply.

As a consequence of having finally determined federal tax
adjustments for the 1990-1996 tax periods, Grace became
liable for additional state taxes plus interest accrued thereon.
Grace’s estimate for state taxes and interest to be paid for
these years is approximately $18.3 million, of which it has al-
ready paid approximately $6.3 million. The remainder is ex-
pected to be paid in accordance with Grace’s bankruptcy
proceedings.

Grace’s federal tax returns covering 1997 and later years
are either under examination by the IRS or open for future
examination. In connection with the years 1997-2001 that
are currently under examination, Grace reached agreement
with the IRS on a number of issues. After taking all issues into
consideration, Grace reduced its recorded liabilities in 2005
by $13.5 million. Grace believes that the remaining recorded
tax liability is adequate to cover the impact of probable tax
return adjustments at December 31, 2005.

The IRS has assessed additional federal income tax with-
holding and Federal Insurance Contributions Act taxes plus
interest and related penalties for calendar years 1993 through
1998 against a Grace subsidiary that formerly operated a
temporary staffing business for nurses and other health care
personnel. The assessments, aggregating $61.9 million, were
made in connection with a meal and incidental expense per
diem plan for traveling health care personnel, which was in ef-
fect through 1999, the year in which Grace sold the business.
(The statute of limitations has expired with respect to 1999.)
The IRS contends that certain per diem reimbursements
should have been treated as wages subject to employment
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taxes and federal income tax withholding. Grace contends
that its per diem and expense allowance plans were in ac-
cordance with statutory and regulatory requirements, as well
as other published guidance from the IRS. Grace has a right
to indemnification from its former partner in the business
for approximately 36% of any tax liability (including inter-
est thereon) for the period from July 1996 through December
1998. The matter is currently pending in the United States
Court of Claims. Grace has tentatively agreed with the De-
partment of Justice and IRS on a settlement amount and
certain other terms that would resolve the matter. The prelim-
inary settlement is subject to the execution of written closing
agreements with the IRS and a written settlement agreement
with the Department of Justice, and to Bankruptcy Court
approval.

Governmental Investigations
1.94
UNITED TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 15 (In Part): Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Government

We are the subject of one or more investigations and legal
proceedings initiated by the U.S. government with respect to
government contract matters. We believe that in light of the
current U.S. government contracting environment we will be
the subject of one or more U.S. government investigations. If
we or one of our business units were charged with wrongdo-
ing as a result of any of these investigations or other govern-
ment investigations (including violations of certain environ-
mental or export laws) we could be suspended from bidding
on or receiving awards of new U.S. government contracts
pending the completion of legal proceedings. If convicted or
found liable, we could be fined and debarred from new U.S.
government contracting for a period generally not to exceed
three years. Any contracts found to be tainted by fraud could
be voided by the U.S. government.

Our contracts with the U.S. government are also subject
to audits. Like many defense contractors, we have received
audit reports, which recommend that certain contract prices
should be reduced to comply with various government reg-
ulations. Some of these audit reports have involved sub-
stantial amounts. We have made voluntary refunds in those
cases we believe appropriate and continue to litigate cer-
tain cases. In addition, we accrue for liabilities associated
with those matters that are probable and can be reasonably
estimated.

As previously disclosed, we received a demand notice in
2003 for $755 million from the U.S. Department of Defense
(DoD) relating to an ongoing dispute over Pratt& Whitney’s
government cost accounting practices for engine parts re-
ceived from its partners on certain commercial engine col-
laboration programs from 1984 to the present. In 2001, the
U.S. Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals (ASBCA)
ruled that Pratt & Whitney’s accounting for these parts was
in compliance with U.S. Government Cost Accounting Stan-
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dards (CAS). The DoD appealed the ruling to the Court of
Appeals for the Federal Circuit and in January 2003, the
Court reversed the ASBCA’s decision and remanded the case
back to the ASBCA. The case is currently pending before the
ASBCA.

In addition, and as previously disclosed, the U.S. Depart-
ment of Justice (DoJ) sued us in 1999 under the civil False
Claims Act and other theories related to the “Fighter En-
gine Competition” between Pratt& Whitney’s F100 engine
and GE’s F110 engine. The DoJ alleges that the Government
overpaid for engines because Pratt& Whitney inflated certain
costs and withheld data. The Government claims damages of
$624 million. We believe this estimate is substantially over-
stated, deny any liability and are vigorously defending the
matter. Trial of this matter was completed in December 2004
and a decision is expected in 2006.

Should the U.S. government ultimately prevail with respect
to either of the foregoing government contracting matters,
the outcome could result in a material effect on our results of
operations in the period in which a liability would be recog-
nized or cash flows for the period in which damages would
be paid. However, we believe that the resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations, competitive position, cash flows or financial
condition.

As previously reported, the European Commission’s Di-
rectorate (the “EU Commission”) conducted inspections in
early 2004 at offices of our Otis subsidiary in Berlin, Brussels,
Luxembourg and Paris relating to an investigation of possi-
ble unlawful collusive arrangements involving the European
elevator and escalator industry. Based on the result of our
own internal investigation, we believe that some of Otis’ em-
ployees engaged in activities at a local level in Belgium,
Luxembourg, the Netherlands and Germany in violation of
Otis and UTC policies and European competition law. On
October 13, 2005, we received a Statement of Objections
from the EU Commission relating to this investigation. The
Statement of Objections, an administrative complaint, al-
leges infringements of EU competition rules by certain el-
evator companies, including Otis, in Belgium, Luxembourg,
the Netherlands and Germany. We are carefully reviewing the
Statement of Objections and will respond timely to the EU
Commission. As we have from the start, we continue to coop-
erate fully with the EU Commission. As previously disclosed,
we believe it is still too early in the EU Commission’s inves-
tigation for us to reasonably estimate the range of civil fines
to which we or Otis would likely be subject. The aggregate
amount of such fines, if ultimately imposed, could be mate-
rial to our operating results for the period in which the liability
would be recognized or cash flows for the period in which
the fines would be paid. We do not believe that any such
fines would have a material adverse effect on our financial
condition, or that the resolution of this matter would have a
material adverse effect on Otis’ competitive position.
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Multiemployer Benefit Plan
1.95
ARKANSAS BEST CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note L (In Part): Employee Benefit Plans

Multiemployer Plans (In Part)

Retirement and health care benefits for ABF’s contractual
employees are provided by a number of multi-employer
plans, under the provisions of the Taft-Hartley Act. The trust
funds are administered by trustees, who generaily are ap-
pointed equally by the IBT and certain management carrier
organizations. ABF is not directly involved in the adminis-
tration of the trust funds. ABF contributes to these plans
monthly based on the hours worked by its contractual em-
ployees, as specified in the National Master Freight Agree-
ment and other supporting supplemental agreements. No
amounts are required to be paid beyond ABF’s monthly con-
tractual obligations based on the hours worked by its em-
ployees, except as discussed below.

ABF has contingent liabilities for its share of the unfunded
liabilities of each plan to which it contributes. ABF’'s con-
tingent liability for a plan would be triggered if it were to
withdraw from that plan. ABF has no current intention of
withdrawing from any of the plans. Previously, information
regarding the funded status of the various plans and an esti-
mate of ABF’s contingent withdrawal liabilities were not ac-
cessible. Now, because of improved disclosure and cooper-
ation from the multiemployer plans, more of this information
is available. As a result, ABF has gathered data from the ma-
jority of these plans and currently estimates its total contin-
gent withdrawal liabilities for these plans to be approximately
$500 million, on a pre-tax basis. Though the best information
available to ABF was used in computing this estimate, it is
calculated with numerous assumptions, is not current and is
continually changing. If ABF did incur withdrawal liabilities,
those amounts would generally be payable over a period of
10 to 15 years.

Aside from the withdrawal liabilities, ABF would only have
an obligation to pay an amount beyond its contractual obliga-
tions if it received official notification of a funding deficiency.
ABF has not received notification of a funding deficiency and
has no expectation of receiving notification of a funding defi-
ciency for any of the plans to which it contributes. The amount
of any potential funding deficiency, if it were to materialize
in the future, should be substantially less than the full with-
drawal liability for each plan.

There are several factors that can provide a positive impact
on the funding status of these plans. These factors include:
reductions in member benefits, an increase in the contractual
contributions by the participating employers or improved in-
vestment returns on plan assets. Any combination of these
items has the potential for positively affecting the funding
status. In addition, the Central States Southeast and South-
west Area Pension Fund (“Central States”), to which ABF
makes approximately 50% of its contributions, recently re-
ceived a ten-year extension from the IRS of the period over
which it amortizes unfunded liabilities. For the foreseeable fu-
ture, this extension should help the Central States fund avoid
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a funding deficiency. Multiemployer plan funding issues,
including mandatory information disclosure, are currently be-
ing addressed in proposed pension plan legislation in both
houses of the United States Congress.

GAIN CONTINGENCIES

Plaintiff Litigation
1.96
THE MANITOWOC COMPANY, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14 (In Part): Contingencies and Significant Estimates

The company has been in negotiations with one of its
Marine customers to recover certain cost overruns that re-
sulted from change orders related to a particular contract.
During the third quarter of 2005, due to the fact that these
negotiations were not successful within a timeframe satisfac-
tory to the company, we filed a lawsuit seeking recovery of
these cost overruns from the customer. The customer sub-
sequently filed a counter suit against the company in the
fourth quarter of 2005. During the fourth quarter of 2005,
the company established a reserve of $10.2 million to reflect
the inherent uncertainties in litigation of this type. The $10.2
million reserve is recorded in cost of sales of the Marine seg-
ment in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the
year ended December 31, 2005. Although the company has
established this reserve, it believes it is contractually entitled
to these cost recoveries and it intends to continue to seek
recovery of all amounts owed. If the company is successful
in our recovery of costs as a result of this lawsuit or negotia-
tions, the favorable impact on our Consolidated Statements
of Operations and Cash Flows in a future period could be
material.

1.97
UTSTARCOM, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 18 (In Part): Commitments and Contingencies

Starent Patent Infringement Litigation

The Company has sued Starent Networks Corporation
(“Starent”) for patent infringement in the U.S. District Court
for the Northern District of California. On March 22, 2004, the
Company filed its Complaint. On June 3, 2004, the Company
served its Complaint on Starent. On July 30, 2004, Starent
filed and served its answer and counterclaims. On August
30, 2004, the Company served and filed its Amended Com-
plaint. In the Company’s Amended Complaint, the Company
asserts that Starent infringes a UTStarcom patent through the
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manufacture, use, offer for sale, and sale of Starent’s ST-16
Intelligent Mobile Gateway. We seek, inter alia, compensatory
damages and injunctive relief. Starent filed its answer to
the Amended Complaint and counterclaims on September
17, 2004. In its answer and counterclaims, Starent denies
the Company’s allegations and seeks a declaration that the
patent-in-suit is not infringed, is invalid, and is unenforce-
able. The Court held an initial case management conference
on November 2, 2004. On February 17, 2005, the Company
filed a motion for a preliminary injunction against Starent’s
use, sale, and offer for sale of products having the infringing
feature. The Court held a hearing on the Company’s motion
on May 11, 2005 and denied the Company’s motion on June
17, 2005. On June 30, 2005, the Court held a hearing on the
proper meaning or construction of the claims of the patent-in-
suit and entered an order construing these claims on August
11, 2005. On September 20, 2005, Starent filed a motion for
summary judgment of non-infringement and UTStarcom filed
amotion for summary judgment that Starent is estopped from
asserting invalidity and unenforceability. On October 4, 2005,
Starent filed a motion to strike UTStarcom’s final infringement
contentions. On November 7, 2005, Starent’s motion to strike
was denied. Oral argument on UTStarcom’s estoppel motion
and Starent’s non-infringement motion was held on Novem-
ber 8, 2005. On December 6, 2005, the Court granted Star-
ent’s motion for summary judgment of non-infringement. On
December 12, 2005, the Court dismissed as moot Starent’s
counterclaims for declaratory relief based on invalidity or un-
enforceability of the asserted patent. On February 2, 2006,
the Court entered judgment in favor of Starent. On March
2, 2006, UTStarcom filed a notice of appeal. The Company
has indicated that it believes that this adverse judgment will
not have a material adverse effect on the business, financial
condition, or results of the Company’s operations.

On February 16, 2005, the Company filed a second suit
against Starent for patent infringement in the U.S. District
Court for the Northern District of California. On May 6, 2005,
the Company served the Complaint on Starent. In the Com-
plaint, the Company asserts that Starent infringes a UTStar-
com patent through Starent’s development and testing of a
software upgrade for its customer’s installed ST-16 Intelligent
Mobile Gateways. The Company seeks, inter alia, declaratory
and injunctive relief.

Starent filed its answer and counterclaims on May 31,
2005, denying the Company’s allegations and seeking a dec-
laration that the patent-in-suit is not infringed, is invalid, and
is unenforceable. On June 16, 2005, the Company filed a mo-
tion to strike Starent’s affirmative defense and dismiss Star-
ent’s counterclaim alleging inequitable conduct. Pursuant to
the parties’ stipulation, the Company withdrew its motion to
strike and, on July 27, 2005, Starent filed an amended an-
swer and counterclaims, which pleaded its inequitable con-
duct allegations with more specificity. UTStarcom filed its
answer to the amended counterclaims on August 10, 2005.
The Company has indicated that it believes that any adverse
judgment on Starent’s counterclaims will not have a material
adverse effect on the business, financial condition, or results
of the Company’s operations. However, we have not made
an evaluation of the possibility of a favorable or unfavorable
outcome.
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Contingent Receivables
1.98
VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 (In Part): Discontinued Operations, Assets Held
for Sale and Liabilities of Assets Held for Sale

In June 2005, we sold substantially all the assets of our
Chemicals business, known as Vulcan Chemicals, to a sub-
sidiary of Occidental Chemical Corporation, Basic Chemi-
cals. These assets consisted primarily of chloralkali facilities
in Wichita, Kansas, Geismar, Louisiana and Port Edwards,
Wisconsin; and the facilities of our Chloralkali joint venture
located in Geismar. The decision to sell the Chemicals busi-
ness was based on our desire to focus our resources on the
Construction Materials business.

In consideration for the sale of the Chemicals business, Ba-
sic Chemicals made an initial cash payment of $214.0 million
and assumed certain liabilities relating to the business as de-
scribed below. Concurrent with the sale transaction, we ac-
quired the 49% interest in the joint venture not owned by us
for an initial cash payment of $62.7 million, and conveyed
such interest to Basic Chemicals. The net initial cash pro-
ceeds of $151.3 million are subject to adjustments for ac-
tual working capital balances at the closing date, transaction
costs and income taxes. The purchaser also assumed cer-
tain liabilities relating to the Chemicals business, including
the obligation to monitor and remediate historical and future
releases of hazardous materials at or from the three plant
facilities.

Basic Chemicals is required to make future payments un-
der two separate earn-out agreements subject to certain con-
ditions. The first earn-out agreement is based on ECU and
natural gas prices during the five-year period beginning July
1, 2005, and is capped at $150 million (ECU earn-out or ECU
derivative). The ECU earn-out is accounted for as a derivative
instrument; accordingly, it is reported at fair value. Changes
to the fair value of the ECU derivative, if any, are recorded
within continuing operations pursuant to SAB Topic 5:Z:5. Fu-
ture estimates of this derivative’s fair value could vary materi-
ally from period to period. Proceeds under the second earn-
out agreement will be determined based on the performance
of the hydrochlorocarbon product HCC-240fa (commonly re-
ferred to as 5CP) from the closing of the transaction through
December 31, 2012. Under this earn-out agreement, cash
plant margin for 5CP, as defined in the Asset Purchase Agree-
ment, in excess of an annual threshold amount will be shared
equally between Vulcan and Basic Chemicals. The pri-
mary determinant of the value for this earn-out will be growth
in 5CP sales volume. There can be no assurance as to the
future amount received from the earn-outs, if any.

The fair value of the consideration received in connection
with the sale of the Chemicals business, including anticipated
cash flows from the two earn-out agreements, is expected to
exceed the net carrying value of the assets and liabilities sold.
However, since SFAS No. 5, “Accounting for Contingencies,”
precludes the recognition of a contingent gain until realization
is assured beyond a reasonable doubt, no gain was recog-
nized on the Chemicals sale. Accordingly, the value recorded
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at the June 7, 2005 closing date referable to these two earn-
outs was limited to $128.2 million. The combined carrying
amount of these earn-outs (reflected in accounts and notes
receivable—other and noncurrent other assets in the accom-
panying Consolidated Balance Sheets) as of December 31,
2005 was $148.4 million, of which $105.7 million is classi-
fied as current. The increase from the June 2005 closing is
primarily due to a $20.4 million gain on the ECU earn-out,
which is included as a component of other income, net of
other charges, in our Consolidated Statements of Earnings
for the year ended December 31, 2005.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

1.99 Statement of Position (SOP) 94-6, Disclosure of Cer-
tain Significant Risks and Uncertainties, issued by the Ac-
counting Standards Division of the American Institute of Cer-
tified Public Accountants (AICPA), requires reporting entities
to disclose information about the nature of their operations,
the use of estimates in preparing financial statements, cer-
tain significant estimates, and vulnerabilities due to certain
concentrations.

1.100 Examples of disclosures made by the survey compa-
nies to conform to the requirements of SOP 94-6 follow.

Nature of Operations
1.101
JOY GLOBAL INC. (OCT)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Description of Business

Joy Global Inc. is the world’s leading manufacturer and ser-
vicer of high productivity mining equipment for the extraction
of coal and other minerals and ores. Our equipment is used
in major mining regions throughout the world to mine coal,
coppet, iron ore, oil sands and other minerals. We operate in
two business segments: underground mining machinery (Joy
Mining Machinery or “Joy”) and surface mining equipment
(P&H Mining Equipment or “P&H”). Joy is a major manufac-
turer of underground mining equipment for the extraction of
coal and other bedded minerals and offers comprehensive
service locations near major mining regions worldwide. P&H
is a major producer of surface mining equipment for the ex-
traction of ores and minerals and provides extensive opera-
tional support for many types of equipment used in surface
mining.
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1.102
LS| LOGIC CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of the Business

LSl Logic Corporation (“the Company” or “LSI”) designs, de-
velops, and markets complex, high-performance semicon-
ductors and storage systems. In 2005, our operations were
organized in four markets: communications, consumer prod-
ucts, storage components and storage systems. On March 6,
2006, we announced plans to focus our business on growth
opportunities in the storage and consumer markets.

The Company offers integrated circuit products, board-
level products, and software for use in consumer applica-
tions, high-performance storage controllers, enterprise hard
disk controllers, and systems for storage area networks. The
Company’s integrated circuits are also used in a wide range
of communication devices.

The Company operates in two Reportable segments—
the Semiconductor segment and the Storage Systems
segment—in which the Company offers products and ser-
vices for a variety of electronic systems applications. LSI’s
products are marketed primarily to original equipment manu-
facturers (“OEMs”) that sell products to the Company’s target
markets. The information provided herein has been recast to
include the RAID Storage Adapter (“RSA”) business as part
of the Storage Systems segment from the Semiconductor
segment for all periods presented.

The semiconductor and storage systems industries are
characterized by rapid technological change, competitive
pricing pressures and cyclical market patterns. The Com-
pany’s financial results are affected by a wide variety of fac-
tors, including general economic conditions worldwide, eco-
nomic conditions specific to the semiconductor and storage
systems industries, the timely implementation of new tech-
nologies and the ability to safeguard patents and intellectual
property in a rapidly evolving market. In addition, the semi-
conductor and storage systems markets have historically
been cyclical and subject to significant economic downturns
at various times.

1.103
LYONDELL CHEMICAL COMPANY (DEC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Company and Operations

Lyondell Chemical Company, together with its consolidated
subsidiaries (collectively, “Lyondell” or “the Company”), is
a global chemical company that manufactures and markets
a variety of basic chemicals and gasoline blending com-
ponents. As a result of Lyondell’s acquisition of Millennium
Chemicals Inc. (together with its consolidated subsidiaries,
“Millennium”) and Lyondell’s resulting 100% ownership of
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Millennium and Equistar Chemicals, LP (together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, “Equistar”), the operations of Mil-
lennium and Equistar are consolidated prospectively from
December 1, 2004.

The ethylene, co-products and derivatives (“EC&D”) seg-
ment includes: ethylene; co-products, such as propylene, bu-
tadiene and aromatics; and ethylene derivatives, including
the ethylene oxide, ethylene glycol and polyethylene busi-
nesses of Equistar; and the Millennium acetyls business,
including vinyl acetate monomer (“VAM”), acetic acid and
methanol.

Through November 30, 2004, Lyondell’'s EC&D operations,
excluding acetyls, were conducted through its 70.5% owner-
ship interest in Equistar, which was accounted for using the
equity method. After November 30, 2004, Equistar became
a wholly owned subsidiary of Lyondell.

The propylene oxide and related products (“PO&RP”)
segment includes: propylene oxide (“PO”); its co-products,
styrene monomer (“SM” or “styrene”), and tertiary butyl al-
cohol (“TBA”), together with its derivatives, methyl tertiary
butyl ether (“MTBE”) and ethyl tertiary butyl ether (“ETBE”);
PO derivatives, including propylene glycol (“PG”), propylene
glycol ethers (“PGE”) and butanediol (“BDO”); and toluene
diisocyanate (“TDI”).

The inorganic chemicals segment includes Millennium’s ti-
tanium dioxide (“TiO,”) and related products business.

Lyondell’s refining segment operations are conducted
through its joint venture ownership interest in LYONDELL-
CITGO Refining LP (“LCR”). Lyondell accounts for its invest-
ment in LCR using the equity method. LCR produces refined
petroleum products, including gasoline, low sulfur diesel, jet
fuel, aromatics and lubricants.

Use of Estimates
1.104
W. W. GRAINGER, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Background and Basis of Presentation

Management Estimates

In preparing financial statements in conformity with account-
ing principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, management is required to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities,
and revenues and expenses. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.
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1.105
XEROX CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
(Dollars in millions)

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements,
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America, requires that we make es-
timates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities, as well as the disclosure of contin-
gent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial state-
ments, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Significant estimates and as-
sumptions are used for, but not limited to: (i) allocation of
revenues and fair values in leases and other multiple ele-
ment arrangements; (i) accounting for residual values; (jii)
economic lives of leased assets; (iv) allowance for doubtful
accounts; (v} inventory valuation; (vi) restructuring and re-
lated charges; (vii) asset impairments; (viii) depreciable lives
of assets; (ix) useful lives of intangible assets; (x) pension
and post-retirement benefit plans; (xi) income tax reserves
and valuation allowances and (xii) contingency and litigation
reserves. Future events and their effects cannot be predicted
with certainty; accordingly, our accounting estimates require
the exercise of judgment. The accounting estimates used in
the preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statements will
change as new events occur, as more experience is acquired,
as additional information is obtained and as our operating
environment changes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

The following table summarizes certain significant charges
that require management estimates:

(In millions) 2005 2004 2003
Restructuring provisions and asset

impairments $366 $ 8  $176
Amortization of intangible assets 42 38 36
Provisions for receivables 51 86 224
Provisions for obsolete and excess

inventory 56 73 78
Provisions for litigation and regulatory

matters 115 9 242

Depreciation and obsolescence of
equipment on operating leases 205 210 271
Depreciation of buildings and equipment 280 305 299

Amortization of capitalized software 114 134 143
Pension benefits—net periodic benefit

cost 343 350 364
Other post-retirement benefits—net

periodic benefit cost 117 11 108
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance

provisions (38) 12 (16)
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Changes in Estimates

In the ordinary course of accounting for items discussed
above, we make changes in estimates as appropriate, and as
we become aware of circumstances surrounding those esti-
mates. Such changes and refinements in estimation method-
ologies are reflected in reported results of operations in the
period in which the changes are made and, if material, their
effects are disclosed in the Notes to the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements.

Significant Estimates
1.106
SPX CORPORATION (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All dollar amounts in millions)

2) Use of Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States (“GAAP”) requires us to make estimates
and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the con-
solidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. We eval-
uate these estimates and judgments on an ongoing basis and
base our estimates on experience, current and expected fu-
ture conditions, third-party evaluations and various other as-
sumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circum-
stances. The results of these estimates form the basis for
making judgments about the carrying values of assets and
liabilities as well as identifying and assessing the accounting
treatment with respect to commitments and contingencies.
Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions
used in the financial statements and related notes.

Listed below are certain significant estimates and assump-
tions used in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements. Certain other estimates and assumptions are fur-
ther explained in the related Notes.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate losses for uncollectible accounts based on our
historical experience and the evaluation of the likelihood of
success in collecting specific customer receivables. Sum-
marized below is the activity for the allowance for doubtful
accounts.

2005 2004 2003

Allowance for doubtful accounts:

Balance at beginning of year $36.1 $267 §22.1
Acquisitions/divestitures, net 0.8 7.0 2.2
Provisions 26.3 20.5 14.0
Write-offs, net of recoveries (19.9) (18.1) (11.6)
Balance at end of year $433 $361 $26.7
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Inventory

We estimate losses for excess and/or obsolete inventory and
the net realizable value of inventory based on the aging of the
inventory and the evaluation of the likelihood of recovering
the inventory costs based on anticipated demand and selling
price.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles Subject
to Amortization

We continually review whether events and circumstances
subsequent to the acquisition of any long-lived assets, or
intangible assets subject to amortization, have occurred that
indicate the remaining estimated useful lives of those as-
sets may warrant revision or that the remaining balance of
those assets may not be recoverable. If events and circum-
stances indicate that the long-lived assets should be re-
viewed for possible impairment, we use projections to as-
sess whether future cash flows on a non-discounted basis
related to the tested assets are likely to exceed the recorded
carrying amount of those assets to determine if a write-down
is appropriate. If we identify impairment, we will report a loss
to the extent that the carrying value of the impaired assets
exceeds their fair values as determined by valuation tech-
niques appropriate in the circumstances that could include
the use of similar projections on a discounted basis.

In determining the estimated useful lives of definite lived
intangibles, we consider the nature, competitive position, life
cycle position, and historical and expected future operating
cash flows of each acquired asset, as well as our commitment
to support these assets through continued investment and
legal infringement protection.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

We test goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for im-
pairment annually during the fourth quarter and continually
review whether a triggering event has occurred to determine
whether the carrying value exceeds the implied value. The
fair value of reporting units is based generally on discounted
projected cash flows, but we also consider factors such as
comparable industry price multiples. We employ cash flow
projections that we believe to be reasonable under current
and forecasted circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying values of the
reported net assets of our reporting units. Many of our busi-
nesses closely follow changes in the industries and end-
markets that they serve. Accordingly, we consider estimates
and judgments that affect the future cash flow projections,
including principal methods of competition, such as volume,
price, service, product performance, and technical innova-
tions, as well as estimates associated with cost improvement
initiatives, capacity utilization, and assumptions for inflation
and foreign currency changes. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
See Note 8 for more information, including discussion of im-
pairment charges recorded in 2005 for our Air Filtration and
Dock Products businesses and in 2004 for our Dock Prod-
ucts, Fluid Power, Radiodetection, and TPS businesses.
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Accrued Expenses

We make estimates and judgments in establishing accruals
as required under generally accepted accounting principles.
Summarized in the table below are current accrued expenses
at December 31, 2005 and 2004.

2005 2004
Employee benefits $181.6  $2255
Warranty 52.3 58.0
Other" 4493 3843

experience. Because warranty estimates are forecasts that
are based on the best available information, claims costs
may differ from amounts provided. In addition, due to the
seasonal fluctuations at certain of our businesses, the timing
of warranty provisions and the usage of warranty accruals
can vary period to period. We make adjustments to initial
obligations for warranties as changes in the obligations be-
come reasonably estimable. The following is an analysis of
our product warranty accrual for the periods presented:

2005 2004 2003

$683.2  $667.8

() Other consists of various items, including legal, interest, and
dividends payable, none of which individually require separate
disclosure.

Legal

It is our policy to accrue for estimated losses from legal ac-
tions or claims, including legal expenses, when events exist
that make the realization of the losses or expenses probable
and they can be reasonably estimated. We do not discount
legal obligations or reduce them by anticipated insurance
recoveries.

Environmental Remediation Costs

We expense costs incurred to investigate and remediate en-
vironmental issues unless they extend the economic use-
ful life of related assets. We record liabilities and report
expenses when it is probable that an obligation has been
incurred and the amounts can be reasonably estimated. Our
environmental accruals cover anticipated costs, including in-
vestigation, remediation, and operation and maintenance of
clean-up sites. Our estimates are based primarily on inves-
tigations and remediation plans established by independent
consultants, regulatory agencies and potentially responsible
third parties. We do not discount environmental obligations
or reduce them by anticipated insurance recoveries.

Self-Insurance

We are primarily self-insured for workers’ compensation, au-
tomobile, product, general liability and health costs, and we
believe that we maintain adequate accruals to cover our re-
tained liability. Our accruals for self-insurance liabilities are
determined by management, are based on claims filed and
an estimate of claims incurred but not yet reported, and are
not discounted. Management considers a number of factors,
including third-party actuary valuations, when making these
determinations. We maintain third-party stop-loss insurance
policies to cover certain liability costs in excess of predeter-
mined retained amounts.

Warranty

In the normal course of business, we issue product war-
ranties for specific product lines and provide for the es-
timated future warranty cost in the period in which the
sale is recorded. We provide for the estimate of warranty
cost based on contract terms and historical warranty loss
experience that is periodically adjusted for recent actual
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Balance at beginning of year $580 $658 $497
Acquisitions/divestitures, net 0.3 0.8 15.4
Provisions 22.0 13.8 254
Usage (28.0) (224) (24.7)
Balance at end of year $523 $580 $658

Income Taxes

We perform reviews of our income tax positions on a con-
tinuous basis and accrue for potential contingencies when
we believe a liability is probable and can be reasonably esti-
mated. Accruals for these contingencies are recorded in “in-
come taxes payable” and “deferred and other income taxes”
in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets based on
an expectation as to the timing of when the contingency will
be resolved. As events change or resolution occurs, these ac-
cruals are adjusted, such as in the case of audit settlements
with taxing authorities. Any potential liabilities in excess of
amounts recorded are not material. These reviews also entail
analyzing the realization of deferred tax assets associated
with net operating loss and credit carryforwards. When we
believe that it is more likely than not that a net operating
loss or credit carryforward may expire unused, we establish
a valuation allowance against them.

Employee Benefit Plans

We have defined benefit plans that cover a significant portion
of our salaried and hourly paid employees, including certain
employees in foreign countries. We derive pension expense
from an actuarial calculation based on the defined benefit
plans’ provisions and management’s assumptions regarding
discount rate, rate of increase in compensation levels and
expected long-term rate of return on assets. Management
determines the expected long-term rate of return on plan as-
sets based upon historical actual asset returns and the ex-
pectations of asset returns over the expected period to fund
participant benefits based on the current investment mix of
our plans. Management sets the discount rate based on the
yield of high quality fixed income investments, commonly de-
fined as fixed income investments with at least a Moody’s Aa
credit rating. The rate of increase in compensation levels is
established based on management’s expectations of current
and foreseeable future increases in compensation. Manage-
ment also consults with independent actuaries in determining
these assumptions.
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1.107
YUM! BRANDS, INC. (DEC)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Our preparation of the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements in conformity with accounting principles gener-
ally accepted in the United States of America requires us
to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements,
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these
estimates.

21 (In Part): Guarantees, Commitments and Contingencies

Insurance Programs

We are self-insured for a substantial portion of our current
and prior years’ coverage including workers’ compensation,
employment practices liability, general liability, automobile
liability and property losses (collectively, “property and ca-
sualty losses”). To mitigate the cost of our exposures for cer-
tain property and casualty losses, we make annual decisions
to self-insure the risks of loss up to defined maximum per
occurrence retentions on a line by line basis or to combine
certain lines of coverage into one loss pool with a single seif-
insured aggregate retention. The Company then purchases
insurance coverage, up to a certain limit, for losses that ex-
ceed the self-insurance per occurrence or aggregate reten-
tion. The insurers’ maximum aggregate loss limits are sig-
nificantly above our actuarially determined probable losses;
therefore, we believe the likelihood of losses exceeding the
insurers’ maximum aggregate loss limits is remote.

In the U.S. and in certain other countries, we are also self-
insured for healthcare claims and long-term disability for eli-
gible participating employees subject to certain deductibles
and limitations. We have accounted for our retained liabilities
for property and casualty losses, healthcare and long-term
disability claims, including reported and incurred but not re-
ported claims, based on information provided by indepen-
dent actuaries.

Due to the inherent volatility of actuarially determined prop-
erty and casualty loss estimates, it is reasonably possible
that we could experience changes in estimated losses which
could be material to our growth in quarterly and annual net
income. We believe that we have recorded reserves for prop-
erty and casualty losses at a level which has substantially
mitigated the potential negative impact of adverse develop-
ments and/or volatility.
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Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations
1.108
ANALOGIC CORPORATION (JUL)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks common to companies in
the medical and security technology industries. These risks,
which could have a material and negative impact on the Com-
pany’s business, financial condition, and results of opera-
tions, include, but are not limited to, loss of any significant
customer, dependence on key suppliers, and United States
and foreign regulatory clearances and approvals.

Customers

The Company depends on a small number of customers for
a large portion of its business, and changes in its customers’
orders may have a significant impact on its operating results.
If a major customer significantly reduces the amount of busi-
ness it does with the Company, there would be an adverse
impact on the Company’s operating results. The following ta-
ble sets forth the percentages of the Company’s net product
and engineering revenue from its five largest customers in
each of the last three fiscal years and the percentage of our
product and engineering sales to our ten largest customers
during these periods:

2005 2004 2003

L-3 Communications 14% 8% 43%
Toshiba 14% 12% 7%
General Electric 10% 10% 9%
Siemens 8% 9% 6%
Philips 6% 7% 4%
Ten largest customers as a group 61% 61% 7%

The Company will continue to depend on sales to a relatively
small number of major customers. Because it often takes
significant time to replace lost business, it is likely that oper-
ating results would be adversely affected if one or more major
customers were to cancel, delay, or reduce significant orders
in the future. Customer agreements typically permit the cus-
tomer to discontinue future purchases after timely notice.

In addition, the Company generates significant accounts
receivable in connection with the products it sells and the
services it provides to its major customers. Although its ma-
jor customers are large corporations, if one or more of its
customers were to become insolvent or otherwise be un-
able to pay for the Company’s products and services, the
Company’s operating results and financial condition could
be adversely affected.

Suppliers of Raw Materials and Components

In general, the Company’s products are composed of
Company-designed proprietary integrated circuits, printed
circuit boards, and precision resistor networks manufactured
by it and others in accordance with its specifications, as well
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as standard electronic integrated circuits, transistors, dis-
plays, and other components. The Company orders raw ma-
terials and components to complete customers’ orders, and
some of these raw materials and components are ordered
from sole-source suppliers and may have long-lead times for
delivery.

Although the Company works with its customers and sup-
pliers to minimize the impact of shortages in raw materi-
als and components, it sometimes experiences short-term
adverse effects due to price fluctuations and delayed ship-
ments. The failure of a supplier to deliver on schedule could
delay or interrupt the Company’s delivery of products and
thereby adversely affecting the Company’s operating results.
The Company is not always able to pass on price increases
to its customers. Accordingly, some raw material and com-
ponent price increases could adversely affect its operating
results. In addition, it might become necessary, if a given
component ceases to be available, for Analogic to modify
its product design to adapt to a substitute component or to
purchase new tooling to enable a new supplier to manufac-
ture the component, which could result in additional expense
and/or delay in product sales.

The Company aiso depends on a small number of sup-
pliers, some of which are affiliated with customers or com-
petitors and others of which may be small, poorly financed
companies, for many of the other raw materials and compo-
nents that the Company uses in its business. If it were unable
to continue to purchase these raw materials and components
from its suppliers, the Company’s operating results could be
adversely affected. Many of the Company’s costs are fixed,
and its margins depend on its volume of output at its facilities
and a reduction in volume could adversely affect its margins.

United States or Foreign Regulatory Clearances
and Approvals

The Company’s products are used by a number of its cus-
tomers in the production of medical devices that are subject
to a high level of regulatory oversight. A delay or inability
to obtain any necessary United States or foreign regula-
tory clearances or approvals for products could have a
material adverse effect on its business. The process of ob-
taining clearances and approvals can be costly and time-
consuming. There is a further risk that any approvals or
clearances, once obtained, might be withdrawn or modified.
Medical devices cannot be marketed in the United States
without clearance from the FDA. Medical devices sold in
the United States must also be manufactured in compliance
with FDA rules and regulations, which regulate the design,
manufacture, packing, storage, and installation of medical
devices. Moreover, medical devices are required to comply
with FDA regulations relating to investigational research and
labeling. Each state may also regulate the manufacture, sale,
and use of medical devices. Medical devices are also subject
to approval and regulation by foreign regulatory and safety
agencies.
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1.109
GENCORP INC. (NOV)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

b. Workforce

As of November 30, 2005, 17% of our 3,101 employees were
covered by collective bargaining or similar agreements all of
which are due to expire within two years.

m. Concenilrations

Dependence Upon Government Programs and Contracts

Sales in fiscal 2005, fiscal 2004, and fiscal 2003 directly and
indirectly to the U.S. government and its agencies, includ-
ing sales to the Company’s significant customers discussed
below, totaled $501 million, $420 million, and $263 million,
respectively. The demand for certain of the Company’s ser-
vices and products is directly related to the level of funding
of government programs.

Major Customers

During fiscal 2005, Lockheed Martin Corporation (Lockheed
Martin) and Raytheon Company (Raytheon) accounted for
39% and 16%, respectively, of net sales. During fiscal 2004,
Lockheed Martin and Raytheon accounted for 32% and 15%,
respectively, of net sales. During fiscal 2003, Lockheed Mar-
tin, The Boeing Company (Boeing), and Raytheon accounted
for 28%, 15%, and 10%, respectively, of net sales.

Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company
to concentration of credit risk consist primarily of cash equiv-
alents and trade receivables. The Company invests available
cash in money market securities of various banks and se-
curities backed by the U.S. government. The Company per-
forms ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial
condition and maintains an appropriate allowance for uncol-
lectible accounts receivable based upon the expected col-
lectiblity of alf accounts receivable. The Company’s accounts
receivables are generally unsecured and are not backed
by collateral from its customers. At November 30, 2005,
Lockheed Martin and Raytheon accounted for 46% and 21%,
respectively, of accounts receivable. At November 30, 2004,
Lockheed Martin and Raytheon accounted for 44% and 17 %,
respectively, of accounts receivable.

Dependence on Single Source and Other Third
Party Suppliers

The Company depends on a single or limited number of
outside suppliers for raw materials. The Company closely
monitors sources of supply to assure that adequate raw
materials and other supplies needed in the manufacturing
processes are available. As a U.S. government contractor,
the Company is frequently limited to procuring materials and
components from sources of supply that can meet rigorous
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customer and/or government specifications. In addition, as
business conditions, the DoD budget, and Congressional al-
locations change, suppliers of specialty chemicals and ma-
terials sometimes consider dropping low volume items from
their product lines, which may require, as it has in the past,
qualification of new suppliers for raw materials on key pro-
grams. Current suppliers of some insulation materials used
in rocket motors have announced plans to close manufac-
turing plants and discontinue certain product lines. These
materials, which include a neoprene compound and silica
phenolic used as an insulator, are used industry-wide in the
production of rocket motors and, therefore, are key to many
of the Company’s solid booster/motor programs. The Com-
pany has qualified new suppliers and materials for this insu-
lation and it expects that such new materials can be available
in time to meet future production needs. Another supplier has
announced it will stop production of a primary binder com-
pound (R45) used industry-wide in all solid propellants. The
U.S. government and companies operating in the propulsion
industry worked together to resolve the availability issue of
the R45 primary binder material. The Company entered into a
new supply contract which includes a “surcharge” as a price
adjustment. The Company was able accomplish this with the
assistance of its customers through similar price adjustment
clauses on many of the Company’s existing contracts.

The supply of ammonium perchlorate, a principal raw ma-
terial used in solid propellant, is limited to a single source
that supplies the entire domestic solid propellant industry.
This single source, however, maintains two separate manu-
facturing lines a reasonable distance apart which mitigates
the likelihood of a fire, explosion, or other problem impacting
production. The industry also currently relies on one primary
supplier for graphite fiber, which is used in the production of
composite materials. This supplier has multiple manufactur-
ing lines for such material. Although other sources of graphite
fiber exist, the addition of a new supplier would require the
Company to qualify the new source for use. As of November
30, 2005, neither of these key materials has had any indica-
tion that their availability is in jeopardy.

The Company is also impacted, as is the rest of the indus-
try, by increases in the prices and lead-times of raw materials
used in production on various fixed-price contracts. Most re-
cently, the Company has seen an increase in the price and
lead-times of commodity metals, primarily steel, titanium and
aluminum. The Company monitors the price and supply of
these materials and works closely with suppliers to schedule
purchases far enough in advance and in the most economical
means possible to reduce program impact. Additionally, the
Company has negotiated economic and/or price adjustment
clauses tied to commodity indices, whenever possible with
its customers. The Company’s past success in negotiating
these terms is no indication of its ability to continue to do so.

Prolonged disruptions in the supply of any of key raw ma-
terials, difficulty completing qualification of new sources of
supply, or implementing use of replacement materials or new
sources of supply could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s operating results and financial condition.
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1.110
STEWART & STEVENSON SERVICES, INC. (JAN)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company extends credit to customers and other par-
ties in the normal course of business and maintains an al-
lowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability or unwillingness of customers to make re-
quired payments. The Company bases such estimates on
its historical experience, existing economic conditions and
any specific customer collection issues the Company has
identified. Uncollectible accounts receivable are written off
when a settlement is reached for an amount less than the
outstanding balance or when the Company determines that
the balance will not be collected. The allowance for doubtful
accounts balance was $0.1 million at January 31, 2006 and
2005. As discussed in Note 10, the U.S. government is the
Company’s primary customer and government contracts ac-
count for over 85% of the Company’s sales from continuing
operations.

Note 10: Government Contracts

The U.S. government is the Company’s primary customer
and the business depends largely on U.S. government ex-
penditures. As such, decreased government spending or
termination of significant government programs could ad-
versely affect the Company. Government contracts account
for over 85% of the Company’s sales and operating income
from continuing operations. During the fourth quarter of Fis-
cal 2004, the Company completed production under the sec-
ond multi-year contract with the U.S. Department of the Army
(“U.S. Army”) for production of the Family of Medium Tacti-
cal Vehicles (“FMTV”), and began production under the third
multi-year contract. The third U.S. Army contract includes
production of 10,889 FMTV trucks and trailers over a five-
year period, with options for approximately 12,000 additional
trucks and trailers. Funding of the current contract beyond
the first four program years is subject to the inherent un-
certainties of Congressional appropriations. As is typical of
multi-year defense contracts that may be canceled or ad-
justed by the government, the contract must be funded an-
nually by the U.S. Army and may be terminated at any time for
the convenience of the government. If the contract is termi-
nated, other than for the Company’s default (in which event
there could be serious adverse consequences and claims
against the Company), it provides for termination charges
that will reimburse the Company for certain allowable costs,
but not necessarily for all costs incurred.

The U.S. government has accounted for $630.5 million,
$532.0 million and $432.5 million of sales in Fiscal 2005, 2004
and 20083, respectively. Additionally, the U.S. government ac-
counts for approximately 89% and 71% of total accounts
receivable at January 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
loss of this customer would have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial condition and results
of operations. Additionally, the FMTV incorporates compo-
nents that are specified by the U.S. Army and are available
only from the source or sources selected by the U.S. Army. In
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addition, the Company uses other suppliers for certain com-
ponents of the FMTV, some of which are small businesses
that are not well capitalized. Interruption in the supply of any
of these components, for any reason, could have a material
adverse effect on the results of operations.

Major contracts for military systems are performed over
extended periods of time and are subject to changes in
scope of work and delivery schedules. Pricing negotiations
on changes and settlement of claims often extend over pro-
longed periods of time. The Company’s ultimate profitability
on such contracts may depend on the eventual outcome of
an equitable settlement of contractual issues with the U.S.
government. In the fourth quarter of Fiscal 2005, the Com-
pany recorded a $3.3 million charge to cost of sales to write
off previously anticipated cost recoveries under the FMTV
contract.

The Company’s government contract operations are sub-
ject to U.S. government investigations of business practices
and cost classifications from which legal or administrative
proceedings can result. Based on government procurement
regulations, under certain circumstances a contractor can
be fined, as well as suspended or debarred from govern-
ment contracting. In that event, the Company would also be
prohibited from selling equipment or services to customers
that depend on loans or financial commitments from the Ex-
port Import Bank, Overseas Private Investment Corporation
and similar government agencies during a suspension or
debarment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 (In Part): Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Wulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company
to concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash and
cash equivalents, marketable securities and trade accounts
receivable. Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade
accounts receivable is limited due to the large number of
customers in various geographic regions and industry seg-
ments comprising the Company’s customer base. No sin-
gle customer accounted for more than 10% of consolidated
revenues in fiscal 2005, 2004 and 2003. However, the Com-
pany’s five largest customers accounted for 9.4%, 12.0%
and 14.5% of its consolidated revenues in fiscal 2005, 2004
and 20083, respectively. This concentration of customers in-
creases the Company’s risk associated with nonpayment by
these customers. In an effort to reduce risk, the Company
performs ongoing credit evaluations of its significant retail
telecom, wholesale carrier and cable telephony customers,
as well as its significant video distribution and fee-for-hire
production customers. In addition, the Company often at-
tempts to mitigate the credit risk related to specific wholesale
carrier customers by also buying services from the customer
in question, in order to create the offset opportunity and re-
duce its net trade accounts receivable exposure risk.
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Trade accounts payable includes approximately $49.6
million and $71.3 million due to telecommunications carri-
ers at July 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The Company is also subject to risks associated with its
international operations, including fluctuations in exchange
rates and trade accounts receivable collections. Manage-
ment regularly monitors the creditworthiness of its domestic
and international customers and believes that it has ade-
quately provided for any exposure to potential credit losses.
Allowances for doubtful accounts are based on manage-
ment’s past collection experience and existing economic
conditions. Doubtful accounts are written-off upon final de-
termination that the trade accounts will not be collected.

COMMITMENTS

1.112 Paragraph 18 of SFAS No. 5 requires the disclosure
of commitments such as those for capital expenditures or an
obligation to restrict dividends. Table 1-12 lists the various
commitments disclosed in the annual reports of the survey
companies.

1.113 Examples of commitment disclosures follow.
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TABLE 1-12: COMMITMENTS

Number of Companies
2005 2004 2003 2002
Debt covenant restrictions.................... 384 408 406 388
Purchase agreements.......... 239 240 218 196
Capital expenditures.... .
Additional payments related to
acquisitions
Licensing agreements..

Employment contracts............c.ccecunen. 37 35 31 32
Sales agreements.........co.ccveercererneenens 33 27 24 35
Other—described..........ccvciniirinnnns 46 80 66 80

Debt Covenant Restrictions
1.115
BEAZER HOMES USA, INC. (